KENAI CITY COUNCIL - REGULAR MEETING
MAY 15, 2019 -6:00 PM
KENAI CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

210 FIDALGO AVE., KENAI, AK 99611
http://www.kenai.city

A CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

AGENDA APPROVAL

CONSENT AGENDA (Public comment limited to three (3) minutes per speaker; thirty (30) minutes
aggregated)

*All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered to be routine and non-controversial by the council and
will be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
council member so requests, in which case the item will be removed from the consent agenda and
considered in its normal sequence on the agenda as part of the General Orders.

B. SCHEDULED PUBLIC COMMENTS (Public comment limited to ten (10) minutes per speaker)

C. UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC COMMENTS (Public comment limited to three (3) minutes per
speaker; thirty (30) minutes aggregated)

D. PUBLIC HEARINGS

D.1.

D.2.

D.3.

D.4.

Ordinance No. 3063-2019 — Adopting the Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year Commencing
July 1, 2019 and Ending June 30, 2020 and Committing $500,000 of General Fund, Fund
Balance for Capital Improvements, Amending the Salary Schedule in Kenai Municipal Code
Chapter 23.55- Pay Plan, Amending Employee Classifications in Kenai Municipal Code
Chapter 23.50, and Amending Communication Department Uniform Allowance in Kenai
Municipal Code Chapter 23.55. (Administration)

Ordinance No. 3063-2019.pdf

Ordinance No. 3063-2019 Budget Amendments.pdf

Ordinance No. 3064-2019 — Increasing Estimated Revenues and Appropriations by $339.90
in the General Fund — Police Department for State Traffic Grant Overtime Expenditures.
(Administration)

Ordinance No. 3064-2019.pdf

Ordinance No. 3065-2019 — Accepting and Appropriating a Volunteer Fire Assistance (VFA)
Grant From the United States Department of Agriculture Forest Service Passed Through the
State of Alaska Division of Forestry for the Purchase of Forestry Firefighting Equipment.
(Administration)

Ordinance No. 3065-2019.pdf

Resolution No. 2019-28 — Authorizing a Budget Transfer within the Water and Sewer Fund for
Appraisal Costs Related to the Purchase of Well Radius Property for the City’s Public Water


http://www.kenai.city
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358369/Ordinance_No._3063-2019.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358370/Ordinance_No._3063-2019_Budget_Amendments.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358371/Ordinance_No._3064-2019.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358376/Ordinance_No._3065-2019.pdf

System. (Administration)
Resolution No. 2019-28.pdf

D.5. Resolution No. 2019-29 — Fixing the Rate of Levy of Property Tax for the Fiscal Year
Commencing July 1, 2019 and Ending June 30, 2020. (Administration)
Resolution No. 2019-29.pdf

D.6. Resolution No. 2019-30 - Supporting Kenai Peninsula Borough Ordinance 2019-09 Amending
the Borough’s Sales Tax Code to Levy a 12 Percent Tax on Temporary Lodging, Exempt
Temporary Lodging Rentals from the General Sales Tax, and Allow Cities that Levy a Similar
Sales Tax on Temporary Lodging to Exempt Up to One-Half of the Borough’s Temporary
Lodging Tax, Subject to Borough Voter Approval. (Administration)

Resolution No. 2019-30.pdf

D.7. Resolution No. 2019-31 — Awarding a Concession Agreement for Management and
Administrative Services to Provide Summer Ice Activities at the City of Kenai Multi-Purpose
Facility. (Administration)

Resolution No. 2019-31.pdf

D.8. Resolution No. 2019-32 — Authorizing an Amendment to the Airport Advertising Concession
Agreement for the Kenai Municipal Airport. (Administration)
Resolution No. 2019-32.pdf

D.9. Resolution No. 2019-33 — Authorizing Contracts for Employee Health Care and Other
Benefits Effective July 1, 2019. (Administration)
Resolution No. 2019-33.pdf

E. MINUTES

E.1. *Regular Meeting of May 1, 2019
05-01-19 Council Minutes - DRAFT.pdf

F. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - None.

G. NEWBUSINESS

G.1. *Action/Approval — Bills to be Ratified. (Administration)
Payments over $15,000.pdf

G.2. *Action/Approval — Purchase Orders Over $15,000. (Administration)
Purchase Orders over $15,000.pdf

G.3. *Action/Approval — Non-Objection to the Issuance of a New Liquor License for Griffin Golf,
LLC. (City Clerk)
Kenai Golf Course License No. 5788.pdf

G.4. *Ordinance No. 3066-2019 — Accepting and Appropriating a Grant from the Federal Aviation
Administration for the 2019 Airfield Marking, Crack Sealing, and Minor Pavement Repair
Project and Awarding a Construction Contract to Complete the Work. (Administration)
Ordinance No. 3066-2019.pdf

G.5. *Ordinance No. 3067-2019 — Accepting and Appropriating $26,605.40 in Asset Forfeiture
Sharing Funds and Appropriating Those Funds Into the Police Small Tools Account for the

Kenai City Council Meeting Page 2
May 15, 2019


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358830/Resolution_No._2019-28.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358600/Resolution_No._2019-29.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358602/Resolution_No._2019-30.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358753/Resolution_No._2019-31.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358755/Resolution_No._2019-32.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358613/Resolution_No._2019-33.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358624/05-01-19_Council_Minutes_-_DRAFT.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358627/Payments_over__15_000.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358765/Purchase_Orders_over__15_000.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358632/Kenai_Golf_Course_License_No._5788.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358637/Ordinance_No._3066-2019.pdf

Purpose of Purchasing Law Enforcement Equipment. (Administration)
Ordinance No. 3067-2019.pdf

G.6. *Ordinance No. 3068-2019 — Amending Kenai Municipal Code 14.20.320- Definitions and
14.20.330- Standards for Commercial Marijuana Establishments to Prohibit Onsite
Consumption of Marijuana at Retail Marijuana Stores Requiring an Onsite Consumption
Endorsement. (Council Members Pettey and Glendening)

Ordinance No. 3068-2019.pdf

G.7. Ordinance No. 3062-2019 — Increasing FY2019 General Fund Estimated Revenues and
Appropriations by $20,859 and FY2020 General Fund Estimated Revenues and
Appropriations by $35,418 in the General Fund Parks, Recreation and Beautification
Department for the Receipt of a Grant from the United States Environmental Protection
Agency Passed Through the State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation for
Bacteria Level Monitoring on the City’s Beaches from May to September During 2019 and
2020. (Administration)

[Clerk’'s Note: This ordinance was enacted at the 5/1/19 meeting. Notice has been received
by the granting agency that the amounts of the grant have changed. A motion to amend
something previously adopted is in order and as such, appearance on this agenda serves as
notice.]

Ordinance No. 3062-2019.pdf

Ordinance No. 3062-2019 Memo Amendment - Roberts Rules.pdf

Ordinance No. 3062-2019 Memo Amendment No. 2.pdf

G.8. Action/Approval — Application for Extension of Lease Application Expiration Date for the
Undeveloped Portion of Tract A, General Aviation Apron No. 2. (Administration)
Application for Extension of Lease.pdf

G.9. Action/Approval — Consenting to the Assignment of Lease to Don Moffis for Lot 5, Block 1,
Gusty Subdivision, Addition No. 1, Amended. (Administration)
Lease Assignment to Don Moffis.pdf

G.10. Action/Approval — Awarding an Employment Agreement between the City of Kenai and City
Attorney, Scott Bloom. (Mayor Gabriel) [Clerk’s Note: Council May Convene into Executive
Session to Discuss this Agenda ltem which Pursuant to AS 44.62.310(C)(2) May be a
Subject that Tends to Prejudice the Reputation and Character of the Applicant and per AS
44.62.310(c)(1) is a Matter of which the Immediate Knowledge may have an Adverse Effect

Upon the Finances of the City.]

G.11. Action/Approval — Amending an Employment Agreement between the City of Kenai and City
Attorney, Scott Bloom. (Mayor Gabriel)

G.12. Action/Approval — Amending an Employment Agreement between the City of Kenai and City
Manager, Paul Ostrander. (Mayor Gabriel)

G.13. Action/Approval — Amending an Employment Agreement between the City of Kenai and City
Clerk, Jamie Heinz. (Mayor Gabriel)

G.14. Discussion — Schedule a Work Session to Review and Discuss City Land Sale and Leasing

Kenai City Council Meeting Page 3
May 15, 2019


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358639/Ordinance_No._3067-2019.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358640/Ordinance_No._3068-2019.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358643/Ordinance_No._3062-2019.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358644/Ordinance_No._3062-2019_Memo_Amendment_-_Roberts_Rules.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358645/Ordinance_No._3062-2019_Memo_Amendment_No._2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358769/Application_for_Extension_of_Lease.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358655/Lease_Assignment_to_Don_Moffis.pdf

Policies and Practices. (Administration)
Land Sale and Leasing Policy Scheduling. pdf

H. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE REPORTS
H.1. Council on Aging

H.2. Airport Commission

H.3. Harbor Commission

H.4. Parks and Recreation Commission

H.5. Planning and Zoning Commission

H.6. Beautification Committee

H.7. Mini-Grant Steering Committee

L REPORT OF THE MAYOR

J. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

J.1. City Manager
Mid-Month Reports.pdf

Quarterly Financial Report.pdf
Quarterly Investment Report.pdf

J.2. City Attorney

J.3. City Clerk

K. ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT

K.1. Citizens Comments (Public comment limited to five (5) minutes per speaker)

K.2. Council Comments

L. EXECUTIVE SESSION - See item G.10.

M. PENDING ITEMS - None.

Kenai City Council Meeting Page 4
May 15, 2019


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358672/Land_Sale_and_Leasing_Policy_Scheduling.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358691/Mid-Month_Reports.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358692/Quarterly_Financial_Report.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358693/Quarterly_Investment_Report.pdf

INFORMATION ITEMS

Purchase Orders between $2,500 and $15,000 for Council Review
PO's between $2,500 - $15,000.pdf

Disability Pride Event
Disability Pride Event.pdf

N. ADJOURNMENT

The agenda and supporting documents are posted on the City’s website at ww.kenai.city. Copies of
resolutions and ordinances are available at the City Clerk’s Office or outside the Council Chamber prior to
the meeting. For additional information, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 907-283-8231.

Kenai City Council Meeting Page 5
May 15, 2019


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358700/PO_s_between__2_500_-__15_000.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/358701/Disability_Pride_Event.pdf

Sponsored by: Administration

v
KENAI, vAU\SI(I:\

CITY OF KENAI
ORDINANCE NO. 3063-2019

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA ADOPTING THE
ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JULY 1, 2019 AND ENDING JUNE
30, 2020 AND COMMITTING $500,000 OF GENERAL FUND, FUND BALANCE FOR CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS, AMENDING THE SALARY SCHEDULE IN KENAI MUNICIPAL CODE
CHAPTER 23.55- PAY PLAN, AMENDING EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATIONS IN KENAI
MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 23.50, AND AMENDING COMMUNICATION DEPARTMENT
UNIFORM ALLOWANCE IN KENAI MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 23.55.

WHEREAS, it is a requirement of the Code of the City of Kenai, Alaska, that the City Council, not
later than the tenth day of June, adopt a budget for the following fiscal year and make
appropriation of the monies needed; and,

WHEREAS, committed fund balance represents resources whose use is constrained by
limitations that Council imposes upon itself at its highest level of decision making, an Ordinance,
and that remain binding unless removed in the same manner; and,

WHEREAS, in recognition of deferred and ongoing maintenance needs of City roads and facilities,
Council commits $500,000 for future renovation and improvements to City facilities; and,

WHEREAS, the fiscal year 2020 Budget includes a 2.0% increase to the City's Salary Schedule;
and,

WHEREAS, the pay increase will go into effect beginning July 1, 2019; and,

WHEREAS, the FY2020 Budget includes a change in position requiring amendment to the City’s
employee classifications; and,

WHEREAS, a proposed change in uniform requirements in the Communication Department
requires amendment to the uniform allowance section of the Kenai Municipal Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA,
as follows:

Section 1. That certain document entitled "City of Kenai Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Budget"
which is available for examination by the public in the Office of the City Clerk, the City’'s website
and is incorporated herein by reference is hereby adopted as the budget for the City of Kenai for
the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2020.

Section 2. The following sums of money are hereby appropriated for the operations of the
City of Kenai for the fiscal year commencing on the first day of July, 2019, and ending the 30th
day of June, 2020, to be expended consistent with and subject to the restrictions, procedures,

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3063-2019
Page 2 of 6

and purposes set forth in the Code of the City of Kenai and to be expended substantially by line
item in the manner shown in the budget adopted by Section 1 hereof:

General Fund $16,520,301
Enterprise Fund —
Congregate Housing Fund 496,568
Internal Service Funds:
Equipment Replacement Fund 190,000
Employee Health Care Fund 2,733,336
Total Internal Service Funds 2,923,336
Special Revenue Funds:
Personal Use Fishery Fund 499,035
Water & Sewer Fund 3,687,457
Airport Fund 3,003,306
Senior Citizen Fund 946,606
Total Special Revenue Funds 8,136,404
Capital Project Funds:
Library Improvements Fund 50,000
Municipal Roadway Improvements Fund 200,000
Trail Construction Fund 37,800
Kenai Recreation Center Improvements Fund 100,000
Airport Operations Center Fund 40,000
Water & Sewer Improvements 75,000
Waste Water Treatment Plant Improvements Fund 630,000
1,132,800
Permanent Funds:
Airport Land Sale Permanent Fund 908,811
General Land Sale Permanent Fund 124,252
Total Permanent Revenue Funds 1,033,063
Debt Service Fund — Library Expansion Bonds 172,704
Total All Funds $30,415,176

Section 3. Council herby commits $500,000 of Unassigned General Fund, Fund Balance for
future renovations and improvements to City facilities and streets.

Section 4. Amendment of Salary Schedule in Chapter 23.55 of the Kenai Municipal Code: That
the Salary Schedule in Kenai Municipal Code Chapter 23.55-Pay Plan, is hereby amended as
follows:

Classified employees excluding those engaged in fire protection activities.

Range A B C D E F AA BB CcC
Step
1 $10.50 $10.76 $11.03 $11.29 $11.55 $11.81 $12.08 $12.34 $12.60

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3063-2019

Page 2 of 6
11 11.02 11.30 11.57 11.85 12.12 12.40 1267 12.95  13.22
2 11.72 12.01 12.31 12.60 12.89 13.19  13.48 13.77  14.06
2.1 12.34 12.65 12.96 13.27 13.57 13.88  14.19 1450  14.81
2.2 13.05 13.38 13.70 14.03 14.36 1468  15.01 1533  15.66
23 13.71 14.05 14.40 14.74 15.08 1542  15.77 16.11  16.45
2.4 16.00 16.40 16.80 17.20 17.60 18.00  18.40 18.80  19.20
25 18.14 18.59 19.05 19.50 19.95 2041 2086 2131  21.77
3 18.25 18.71 19.16 19.62 20.08 2053 2099 2144  21.90
4 19.17 19.65 20.13 20.61 21.09 2157 2205 2252  23.00
5 20.12 20.62 21.13 21.63 2213 22,64 2314 2364 2414
6 21.11 21.64 22.17 22.69 2322 2375 2428 2480  25.33
7 22.19 22.74 23.30 23.85 2441 2496 2552  26.07  26.63
8 23.31 23.89 24.48 25.06 25.64 2622 2681 2739  27.97
9 24.47 25.08 25.69 26.31 2692 2753 2814 2875  29.36
10 25.67 26.31 26.95 27.60 2824 28588 2952  30.16  30.80
11 26.96 27.63 28.31 28.98 29.66  30.33  31.00 3168  32.35
12 28.34 29.05 29.76 30.47 3117 3188 3259 3330  34.01
13 29.72 30.46 31.21 31.95 3269 3344 3418 3492 3566
14 31.22 32.00 32.78 33.56 3434 3512 3590  36.68  37.46
15 32.77 33.59 34.41 35.23 36.05 36.87  37.69 3850  39.32
16 34.41 35.27 36.13 36.99 37.85 3871 3957 4043  41.29
17 36.13 37.03 37.94 38.84  39.74  40.65 4155 4245  43.36
18 37.93 38.88 39.83 40.77 4172 4267  43.62 4457 4552
19 39.83 40.83 41.82 4282 4381 4481 4580  46.80  47.80
20 41.83 42.88 43.92 4497  46.01  47.06 4810  49.15  50.20
21 43.94 45.04 46.14 4724 4833 4943 5053 5163 5273
22 46.10 47.25 48.41 49.56 50.71  51.86  53.02 5417 5532
23 48.42 49.63 50.84 52.05 5326 5447 5568  56.89  58.10
24 50.91 52.18 53.46 54.73 56.00 57.27 5855  59.82  61.09

Classified employees engaged in fire protection activities

Range A B C D E F AA BB CcC
Step

13 21.23 21.76 22.29 22.82 23.35 23.88 24.41 24.95 25.48

14 22.30 22.86 23.42 23.97 24.53 25.09 25.65 26.20 26.76

15 23.42 24.01 24.59 25.18 25.76 26.35 26.93 27.52 28.10

16 24.59 25.20 25.82 26.43 27.05 27.66 28.28 28.89 29.51

17 25.82 26.47 27.11 27.76 28.40 29.05 29.69 30.34 30.98

Department Head Service employees
Range Minimum Maximum

18 $78,910 $104,153
19 80,930 109,345
20 87,010 114,864
21 91,390 120,638
22 95,897 126,579
23 100,722 132,963
24 105,887 139,769

Section 5. Amendment of Employee Classification in Chapter 23.50 of the Kenai Municipal
Code: Employee Classifications in Kenai Municipal Code Chapter 23.50 —Classification Plan, is
hereby amended as follows:

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3063-2019

Page 2 of 6
CLASS CODE CLASS TITLE
(a) SUPERVISORY AND PROFESSIONAL
101 City Manager
102 City Attorney
103 City Clerk
104 Finance Director*
105 Public Works Director*
106 Police Chief*
107 Fire Chief*
112 Airport Manager*
117 City Planner
118 Information Technology (IT) Manager
119 Assistant to City Manager/Special Projects
120 Library Director*
121 Senior Center Director*
122 Parks and Recreation Director*
123 Human Resources Director*
(b) ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT
203 Administrative Assistant |
204 Accounting Technician |
205 Accounting Technician Il
206 Accountant
210 Administrative Assistant Il
211 Administrative Assistant Il|
214 Library Assistant
218 Library Aide
219 Data Entry Clerk
(c) PUBLIC SAFETY
302 Fire Fighter
303 Police Lieutenant
304 Police Sergeant
305 Police Officer
306 Public Safety Dispatcher
307 Fire Engineer
311 Fire Captain
312 Fire Marshal
313 Communications Supervisor
314 Police Trainee
315 [BATTALION CHIEF/SAFETY OFFICER] Deputy Chief
316 Chief Animal Control Officer
317 Animal Control Officer

(d) PUBLIC WORKS

RANGE

NG
NG
NG
24
23
23
22
20
16
18
18
18
18
17
21

10
11
16

10

2.5
11

13
20
18
16

15
16
17
12

16/21
[17]20

11

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3063-2019

Page 2 of 6

401 Building Official/Manager 17
402 Shop Foreman 16
403 Street Foreman 16
404 Sewer Treatment Plant Operator 13
405 Water and Sewer Operator 13
407 Equipment Operator 11
408 Shop Mechanic 14
409 Equipment Lead Operator 14
410 Water and Sewer Foreman 16
412 Building Maintenance Technician 12
413 Sewer Treatment Plant Lead Operator 14
414 Sewer Treatment Plant Foreman 16
417 Airport Operations Specialist 11
418 Airport Operations Supervisor 15
419 Building Maintenance Lead Technician 14
420 Water and Sewer Lead Operator 14

(e) GENERAL SERVICES

504 Parks, Beautification and Recreation Operator 9
505 Parks, Beautification and Recreation Laborer 2.4
506 Cook 2.4
507 Activities/Volunteer Coordinator 2.4
508 Meals/Driver 2.4
509 Kitchen Assistant 2.2
510 Outreach Worker 1.1
511 Janitor 24
512 Driver 1

* Department Heads

Section 6. Amendment of Communication Department Uniform Allowance in Chapter 23.55
of the Kenai Municipal Code: Communication Department Uniform Allowance in Kenai Municipal
Code Chapter 23.55 — Pay Plan, is hereby amended as follows:

(a) The following annual allowances are established to defer the cost of uniform cleaning,
maintenance, and replacement for second and succeeding years of service:

Police $800
Fire $500
Animal Control $500
[DISPATCH $300]

Payment shall be made in advance in July and January installments.

(b) On hiring, the respective department head shall issue from stock or purchase from
appropriate funds a basic uniform and equipment issue.

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]



https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/23.50.010#23.50.010__*

Ordinance No. 3063-2019
Page 2 of 6

(c) Public Works Departments, Water and Sewer, and Animal Control personnel shall be
authorized to purchase from appropriated funds, safety shoes, hard hats, and other OSHA
required items. Laundry service will also be provided for those clothing items furnished.

Section 7. Severability: That if any part or provision of this ordinance or application thereof to
any person or circumstances is adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
judgment shall be confined in its operation to the part, provision, or application directly involved
in all controversy in which this judgment shall have been rendered, and shall not affect or impair
the validity of the remainder of this title or application thereof to other persons or circumstances.
The City Council hereby declares that it would have enacted the remainder of this ordinance even
without such part, provision, or application.

Section 8. Effective Date: That pursuant to KMC 1.15.070(f), this ordinance shall take effect
July 1, 2019.

ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 15" day of May, 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

7

Approved by Finance: y o

Introduced: May 1, 2019
Enacted: May 15, 2019
Effective: July 1, 2019

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]

11



’%Z%ya with a Fast &L} with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Terry Eubank, Finance Director
DATE: April 25, 2019
SUBJECT: Ordinance 3063-2019 to adopt the FY2020 Budget

The purpose of this memo is to summarize the changes that have been proposed to the FY2020
Budget since disbursement of work session materials on April 11", and to communicate the
result of these changes on each of the City’'s operating funds. The following are the
Administration’s recommended changes that have been incorporated into the draft budget and
appropriating ordinance. New summary pages for the all funds, after incorporating the changes,
are attached for your review.

Administration Recommended Amendments:
General Fund

Revenues:

Multipurpose Fees $20,000
Ambulance Fees 50,000
70,000

Expenditures:

Legislative
Transportation 4,800
Grants to Agencies 2,000
$6,800

These General Fund changes are the result of the following items:

1. Review of Multipurpose Facility revenues to date for FY19 and for fiscal years 2017 &
2018 suggest an increase in budgeted revenues by $20,000 to $130,000.

2. The Fire Chief is recommending an increase in Ambulance Billing Fees after comparison
to allowable Medicare/Medicaid rates and comparison to the fees being charged by other

12



Page 2 of 2
Ordinance 3063-2019

departments in the state. The result is expected to be an increase in annual revenue of
$50,000.

3. After discussion with Council at the budget work session, the City Manager thought it
appropriate to restore $4,800 of Council’s travel and restore the $2,000 in miscellaneous
grants to agencies.

Council Recommended Amendments:
General Fund

Revenues — PERS Funding $411
Expenditures:
Clerk

Wages $6,196
Leave 239
Medicare 94
PERS 1,363
Unemployment Insurance 32
Workers Compensation 20

$7,944

These General Fund changes are the result of the following items:

1. Council proposed amendment to the Clerk’s compensation agreement for FY2020 was
more than what was included in the draft budget.

attachments

13



TAXABLE VALUES (000'S)
MILL RATE

REVENUES
Property & Sales Taxes
Property Tax
Sales Tax

Total Property & Sales Taxes

Intergovernmental Revenue:
PERS Funding
Community Assistance
Fish Tax
Other
Total State/Federal Revenue

Other Revenue
Licenses and Permits
Ambulance Fees
Interest
Other
Total Other Revenue

Total Revenues

Transfer From Other Funds
Charges to other funds
Capital Projects / Special Revenue
Enterprise
Trust Fund
Total Transfers

Total Revenues and Transfers

EXPENDITURES/APPROPRIATIONS
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks, Recreation & Cultural

Total Operating Expenditures
Transfers or Non-Operating
Total Expenditures/Appropriations

Total Surplus (Deficit)
Projected Lapse - 5%

Adjusted Surplus (Deficit)
Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Unassigned Fund Balance

City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

General Fund
Budget Projection

Original

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed Projection Projection
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022
$ 868,724 $ 871,076 $ 872,108 $ 871,829 $ 892,023 $ 905,020 $ 918,839
4.35 4.35 4.35 4.35 4.35 4.35 4.35
3,919,797 3,868,445 3,855,798 3,881,792 3,940,692 4,008,100 4,067,011
6,715,501 6,854,253 7,124,915 7,207,189 7,387,175 7,572,053 7,761,354
10,635,298 10,722,698 10,980,713 11,088,981 11,327,867 11,580,153 11,828,365
288,137 218,726 386,406 386,406 470,553 484,670 499,210
278,232 250,852 223,258 210,345 171,001 171,001 171,001
165,087 118,543 165,000 130,000 130,000 133,900 137,917
83,990 101,120 58,000 96,740 113,300 118,965 124,913
815,446 689,241 832,664 823,491 884,854 908,536 933,041
48,557 93,863 63,500 63,000 63,500 65,405 67,367
419,940 443,544 425,000 450,000 500,000 515,000 530,450
35,762 45,801 100,000 150,000 180,000 180,000 180,000
613,358 585,268 736,541 683,256 606,346 624,536 643,272
1,117,617 1,168,476 1,325,041 1,346,256 1,349,846 1,384,941 1,421,089
12,568,361 12,580,415 13,138,418 13,258,728 13,562,567 13,873,630 14,182,495
1,494,200 1,542,390 1,574,200 1,574,200 1,596,000 1,643,880 1,693,196
124,303 - 283,221 283,221 50,000 50,000 50,000
34,000 400,000 - - - - -
149,802 161,561 162,999 - 124,252 126,737 129,272
1,802,305 _ 2,103,951 2,020,420 1,857,421 _ 1,770,252 1,820,617 1,872,468
14,370,666 14,684,366 _ 15,158,838 _ 15,116,149 15,332,819 _ 15,694,247 _ 16,054,963
2,682,321 2,526,974 3,417,880 3,430,630 3,565,592 3,641,610 3,714,442
6,679,790 7,075,417 7,559,066 7,559,066 7,702,840 7,856,897 8,014,035
2,148,432 2,270,210 2,492,669 2,496,246 2,399,834 2,447,831 2,496,788
1,984,887 _ 1,955,374 2,073,983 2,118,402 _ 2,070,830 2,112,247 2,154,492
13,495,430 13,827,975 15,543,598 15,604,344 15,739,096 16,058,585 16,379,757
745,130 833,913 622,429 622,429 781,205 640,684 652,405
14,240,560 14,661,888 16,166,027 16,226,773 16,520,301 16,699,269 17,032,162
130,106 22,478 (1,007,189) (1,110,624) (1,187,482) (1,005,022) (977,199)

- - 777,180 780,217 786,955 802,929 818,988
130,106 22,478 (230,009) (330,407)  (400,527) (202,093) (158,211)
10,418,100 10,548,206 _10,463,198 _ 10,570,684 10,240,277 9,839,750 9,637,657
10,548,206 10,570,684 10,233,189 10,240,277 9,839,750 9,637,657 9,479,446
(588,937)  (682,068) (700,599) (718,068)  (754,068) (790,068) (826,068)
(409,746) (6,976,762) (7,117,565) (7,175,452) (6,836,838) (6,616,234) (6,171,686)
(1,409,610) (2,416,658) (2,415,025)  (2,346,757) (2,248,844)  (2,231,355) _ (2,481,692)

$8,139,913 $ 495196 $ - - 3 - - -




Revenues
PERS Grant

Usage Fees
Beach Parking
Beach Camping
Dock Launch & Park
Dock Parking Only
Participant Drop-off Fee

Total Usage Fees
Miscellaneous Revenues

Investment earnings
Other

Total Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenue

Expenditures

Public Safety

Streets

Boating Facility

Parks, Recreation & Beautification
Total Expenditures

Transfers - General Fund

Total Expenditures & Transfers
Contribution To/(From) Fund Balance:
Projected Lapse

Adjusted (Deficit)/Surplus

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Budget Projection
Fund: 006 - Personal Use Fishery Fund

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
$ 2,688 $ 1546 $ 4,169 $ 4,169 $ 4,637
182,853 174,613 175,000 118,307 146,460
238,752 210,269 225,000 129,938 170,100
128,109 111,528 115,000 91,608 101,600
14,807 12,010 15,000 9,547 10,800
10,717 7,481 8,000 5,943 6,715
575,238 515,901 538,000 355,343 435,675
671 1,522 750 750 750
(3,680) 674 (1,500) (3,100) (3,500)
(3,009) 2,196 (750) (2,350) (2,750)
574,917 519,643 541,419 357,162 437,562
116,875 114,542 96,686 96,686 88,051
53,068 32,938 61,066 61,066 55,235
72,668 56,380 72,137 72,137 64,161
268,686 225,445 275,224 278,712 241,588
511,297 429,305 505,113 508,601 449,035
- - 50,000 50,000 50,000
511,297 429,305 555,113 558,601 499,035
63,620 90,338 (13,694) (201,439) (61,473)
- - 21,151 77,167 18,722
63,620 90,338 7,457 (124,272) (42,751)
139,936 203,556 209,896 293,894 169,622
$ 203556 $ 293,894 $ 217,353 $ 169,622 $ 126,871

15



Revenues
PERS Grant

Usage Fees
Service Hook-up
Residential Water
Commercial Water
Residential Sewer
Commercial Sewer

Total Usage Fees

Miscellaneous Revenues

Penalty and Interest
Interest Earnings
Other

Total Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Water Department
Sewer Department
Wastewater Treatment Plant Department

Total Expenditures

Contribution To/(From) Fund Balance:
Projected Lapse (6%)

Adjusted (Deficit)/Surplus

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Budget Projection
Fund: 010 - Water and Sewer Fund

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
$ 23,142 % 17,347 $ 33,668 $ 33,668 $ 42,205
2,205 2,608 3,927 2,945 3,063
791,580 830,102 832,279 839,251 872,821
315,494 327,519 350,141 335,700 349,128
1,170,897 1,182,083 1,182,299 1,197,528 1,245,429
445,805 453,930 494,807 466,251 484,901
2,725,981 2,796,242 2,863,453 2,841,675 2,955,342
35,839 36,959 43,250 40,000 41,600
5,117 11,775 16,000 12,000 12,480
4,361 24,775 3,000 3,000 3,000
45,317 73,509 62,250 55,000 57,080
2,794,440 2,887,098 2,959,371 2,930,343 3,054,627
719,328 841,231 949,971 967,771 1,037,087
723,136 456,195 499,384 499,384 594,826
987,096 1,116,312 1,208,057 1,208,057 2,055,544
2,429,560 2,413,738 2,657,412 2,675,212 3,687,457
364,880 473,360 301,959 255,131 (632,830)
- - 136,903 137,971 162,297
438,862 393,102 (470,533)
1,705,552 2,070,432 2,633,097 2,543,792 2,936,894
$ 2,070,432 $ 2,543,792 $ 3,071,959 $ 2,936,894 $ 2,466,361

16



Revenues
State & Federal Grants

Usage Fees
Fuel Sales
Fuel Flowage
Float Plane
Tie Down
Landing
Plane Parking

Total Usage Fees

Rents and Leases
Land
Total Rents and Leases

Miscellaneous
Penalty and Interest

Interest on Investments

Other
Total Miscellaneous

Terminal Revenue
Parking Fees
Rents and Leases
Penalty and Interest

Car Rental Commissions
Advertising Commissions

Miscellaneous
Total Terminal Revenue

Transfers In

Airport Land Trust Fund

Total Transfers In
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Airport Terminal
Airport Airfield
Airport Administration

Airport Other Buildings and Areas

Airport Training Facility

Total Expenditures

Contribution To/(From) Fund Balance:

Projected Lapse (6%)

Adjusted (Deficit)/Surplus

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

City of Kenai

Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Fund: 008 - Airport Fund
Department: Airport Fund Summary

Original Manager
Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
$ 29,726 $ 21,891 $ 36,385 $ 36,385 $ 42,663
7,621 10,685 10,000 17,500 17,500
29,207 12,093 35,000 15,000 15,000
620 722 1,500 750 750
7,403 6,832 7,500 7,500 7,500
529,132 401,556 432,500 432,500 505,500
5,725 9,018 5,000 10,000 10,000
579,708 440,906 491,500 483,250 556,250
674,781 691,152 547,610 547,610 563,293
674,781 691,152 547,610 547,610 563,293
8,321 7,513 5,000 5,000 5,000
15,598 20,563 25,000 25,000 35,000
12,666 9,769 10,000 10,000 10,000
36,585 37,845 40,000 40,000 50,000
233,284 223,360 250,000 250,000 250,000
308,275 317,431 378,160 378,160 395,344
1,728 3,989 4,500 4,500 4,500
156,497 171,096 175,000 175,000 180,000
7,421 10,648 9,000 9,000 9,000
1,145 3,983 1,500 1,500 1,500
708,350 730,507 818,160 818,160 840,344
1,175,414 1,210,348 1,230,025 1,230,025 908,811
1,175,414 1,210,348 1,230,025 1,230,025 908,811
3,204,564 3,132,649 3,163,680 3,155,430 2,961,361
578,256 578,328 630,109 2,200,875 616,753
1,640,517 1,631,810 1,731,779 1,757,779 1,750,795
411,745 621,759 596,199 591,699 348,507
139,947 261,943 164,943 169,443 248,777
40,295 36,125 38,474 38,474 38,474
2,810,760 3,129,965 3,161,504 4,758,270 3,003,306
393,804 2,684 2,176 (1,602,840) (41,945)
- - 116,255 116,254 116,016
118,431 (1,486,586) 74,071
4,682,502 5,076,306 5,380,197 5,078,990 3,592,404

$ 5,076,306 $ 5,078,990 $ 5,498,628

$ 3,592,404 $ 3,666,475

17



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Fund: 019 - Senior Citizens Fund
Department: Title lll Summary

Original Manager
Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
Revenues
State Grants $ 208,654 $ 198,577 $ 203,626 $ 203,626 $ 205,831
USDA Grant 22,415 18,958 15,000 15,000 20,000
Choice Waiver 220,419 195,012 200,000 135,000 125,000
KPB Grant 126,207 126,207 126,207 126,207 126,207
United Way 5,977 9,598 15,000 15,000 15,000
Rents and Leases 8,260 8,324 13,000 13,000 13,000
Donations 6,975 47,668 32,000 32,000 32,000
Donation - Senior Connection 7,677 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Meal Donations 75,321 82,837 82,500 82,500 82,500
Transfer from General Fund - Operations 183,291 176,739 170,857 214,252 241,393
Transfer from General Fund - Capital - - 45,670 45,670 14,100
Other 306 (42) 300 300 300
Total Revenue 865,502 913,878 954,160 932,555 925,331
Expenditures
Senior Citizen Access 153,905 157,065 157,364 157,364 191,256
Congregate Meals 218,035 220,661 285,370 287,995 261,266
Home Meals 176,509 205,562 209,875 210,750 223,664
Senior Transportation 67,803 80,087 81,234 81,234 104,527
Choice Waiver 249,525 250,503 244,671 244,671 165,893
Total Expenditures 865,777 913,878 978,514 982,014 946,606
Contribution To/(From) Fund Balance: (275) - (24,354) (49,459) (21,275)
Projected Lapse (3%) - - 24,354 49,459 23,460
Adjusted (Deficit)/Surplus (275) - - - 2,185
Beginning Fund Balance 275 - - - -
Ending Fund Balance $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 2,185

18



Revenues
PERS Grant

Rents and Leases

Interest on Investments
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenses

Net Income (loss)

Beginning Retained Earnings
Capital Asset Acquistions
Allocated to Capital Projects

Credit for Depreciation

Available Retained Earnings

City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Budget Projection
Fund: 009 - Congregate Housing Fund

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
$ 1,780 $ 1,153 $ 1,866 $ 1,866 $ 2,865
386,613 394,618 390,515 390,515 406,145
1,822 2,558 4,000 4,000 4,000
95 (300) - - -
390,310 398,029 396,381 396,381 413,010
498,181 475,300 503,144 503,144 496,568
(107,871) (77,271) (106,763) (106,763) (83,558)
474,257 506,832 539,893 570,007 482,690
- - (121,000) (121,000) -
140,446 140,446 140,446 140,446 140,446

$ 506,832 $ 570,007 $ 452576 $ 482,690 $ 539,578

19



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Fund: 011 - Employee Health Care Fund
Department: 18 - Health Care Fund Summary

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020

Revenues

Charge for Services $ - $ 1903581 $ 2,148,495 $ 2,148,495 $ 2,436,200
Participant premiums - 236,949 243,552 243,552 297,108
Transfer from Other Funds 117,637 - - - -
Interest Earnings - 836 1,000 1,000 1,000
Total Revenues 117,637 2,141,366 2,393,047 2,393,047 2,734,308
Expenses - 2,010,581 2,391,806 2,391,806 2,733,336
Net Income (loss) 117,637 130,785 1,241 1,241 972
Beginning Retained Earnings - 117,637 100,000 248,422 249,663

Available Retained Earnings $ 117,637 $ 248,422 $ 101,241 $ 249,663 $ 250,635




City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Fund: 061 - Equipment Replacement Fund
Department: 59 - Equipment Replacement Fund Summary

Original Manager
Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
Revenues
Rents & Leases $ 339,205 $ 324,104 $ 379,876 $ 379,876 $ 321,754
Interest Earnings 4,770 7,006 20,000 20,000 14,000
Other income - - - 400,000 25,000
Total Revenues 343,975 331,110 399,876 799,876 360,754
Expenses - Depreciation 168,486 160,125 160,125 160,125 190,000
Net Income (loss) 175,489 170,985 239,751 639,751 170,754
Transfers out - (400,000) - - -
Total net income (loss) and transfers out 175,489 (229,015) 239,751 639,751 170,754
Beginning Net Position 2,981,827 3,157,316 2,928,301 2,928,301 3,568,052
Ending Net Position 3,157,316 2,928,301 3,168,052 3,568,052 3,738,806
Invested in Capital Assets (1,456,036)  (1,754,920) (2,739,818) (2,594,366) (2,404,366)

Unrestricted Net Position $ 1,701,280 $ 1,173,381 $ 428,234 $ 973,686 $ 1,334,440




City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Budget Projection
Land Sales Permanent Funds

Original Manager
Actual Actual Budget FY2019 Proposed
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 Projection FY2020

FUND 082-52 Airport Land Sales Permanent Fund
Revenues

Acct. 36610 Investments Earnings $ 2,055039 $ 1513454 $ 1,520,536 $ 1,520,536 $ 1,333,556

Acct. 36645 Interest on Land Sale Contracts - - 10,000 10,000 10,000

Acct. 33640 Land Sales 362,731 9,234 - - -
Total Revenue 2,417,770 1,522,688 1,530,536 1,530,536 1,343,556
Expenses

Transfer to Airport Land System Fund 1,175,414 1,210,348 1,230,025 1,230,025 908,811
Contributions To/(From) Fund Balance 1,242,356 312,340 300,511 300,511 434,745
Beginning Fund Balance 23,037,659 24,280,015 24,600,203 24,592,355 24,892,866
Ending Fund Balance $ 24,280,015 $ 24,592,355 $ 24,900,714 $ 24,892,866 $ 25,327,611
FUND 081-52 General Land Sales Permanent Fund
Revenues

Acct. 36610 Investments Earnings $ 256,966 $ 187,598 $ 189,844 $ 189,844 $ 175,829

Acct. 36645 Interest on Land Sale Contracts - - - - -

Acct. 33640 Land Sales - 54,001 - - -
Total Revenue 256,966 241,599 189,844 189,844 175,829
Expenses

Transfer to General Fund 149,802 161,561 162,999 - 124,252
Contributions To/(From) Fund Balance 107,164 80,038 26,845 189,844 51,577
Beginning Fund Balance 2,942,775 3,049,939 2,965,790 3,129,977 3,319,821

Ending Fund Balance $ 3,049,939 $ 3,129,977 $ 2,992,635 $ 3,319,821 $ 3,371,398




Revenues
Bond Interest Subsidy
Transfer from General Fund

Total Revenue

Expenditures
Parks, Recreation & Culture

Contributions To/From Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Fund 048 - Debt Service

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
34,959 34,996 34,996 34,996 32,607
140,439 142,002 143,402 143,402 140,097
175,398 176,998 178,398 178,398 172,704
175,398 176,998 178,398 178,398 172,704
-3 -3 -3 -3 -

23



Funds Provided:
General Fund Revenues/Reserves
Airport Fund Revenues/Reserves
Water & Sewer Fund Revenues/Reserves
Transfer from Other Funds:
General Fund
Airport Special Revenue Fund
Water & Sewer Special Revenue Fund

Total Funds Provided

Funds Applied:
Network equipment replacement Phase |

City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Summary of Projects and Funding Sources

Airport
Special Water & Sewer
General Revenue Special
Fund Fund Revenue Fund

Senior Citizen
Special
Revenue

Fund

$ 14,100 $ - $ -
- 800 -
- - 355,000

14,000

Library
Improvements
Capital Project

Fund

50,000

Concrete sidewalk and retaining wall repair - - -

Kenai Recreation Center roof repair
Kenai Recreation Center grading repair

Airport Operations dry sprinkler system replacement - - -
Water & Sewer Utility masterplan and rate study - - 300,000

WWTP Clarifier/Pump house coatings
WWTP Belt Press replacement
WWTP Aeration basin restore/coating
SCADA system integration

Hydrant mapping & installation Phase |
City street sink hole repairs

Other street repair and improvement projects - - -

to be identified
Municipal Park trail construction

Senior Center sound system upgrade Phase Il - - -

Total Funds Applied

Net Results From Operations

14,000

50,000

24



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Summary of Projects and Funding Sources

Kenai
Recreation Municipal
Center Airport Waste Water Roadway Trail
Improvements Operations Treatment Water & Improvements Construction
Capital Project Facility Capital Plant Capital Sewer Capital Capital Project  Capital Project
Fund Project Fund Project Fund Project Fund Fund Fund Total
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 14,100
- - - - - - 800
- - - - - - 355,000
100,000 - - - 200,000 37,800 401,800
- 40,000 - - - - 40,000
- - 630,000 75,000 - - 705,000
100,000 40,000 630,000 75,000 200,000 37,800 1,516,700
- - - - - - 14,900
- - - - - - 50,000
50,000 - - - - - 50,000
50,000 - - - - - 50,000
- 40,000 - - - - 40,000
- - - - - - 300,000
- - 40,000 - - - 40,000
- - 500,000 - - - 500,000
- - 90,000 - - - 90,000
- - - - - - 55,000
- - - 75,000 - - 75,000
- - - - 71,000 - 71,000
- - - - 129,000 129,000
- - - - - 37,800 37,800
- - - - - - 14,000
100,000 40,000 630,000 75,000 200,000 37,800 1,516,700




City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: Network EQU|p Replacement Project Manager: Dan Castimore
Fund: Various Fund Number: 001, 008
Department: ~ Finance Department Priority: 2

Estimated Cost: $14,900

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: 0014182024 Amount: $14,100
Source 2: 0084642024 Amount: $800

Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

|:| Continuation of proposed project
D Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Purchase and install prior to July 2020.

Project Description:

Replace network equipment that is no longer supported by the vendor. This includes network switches that
are 10 years old, and wireless equipment that is no longer compatible with the wireless controller.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

None.




City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: Concrete Sidewalk & Retaining Project Manager: Scott Curtin

Fund: Library Impr. Capital Proj Fund Fund Number: 218

Department;  Buildings Department Priority: 1

Estimated Cost: $50,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: GF Amount; $50,000
Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

|:| Continuation of proposed project
D Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Design - 1st quarter FY20
Construction - dependent on block availability

Project Description:

The existing CMU wall at the Library was not replaced with the Library Renovation Project 10 years ago. ltis
failing and does not look good with the renovated portions of the Library. Additionally, there are several
cracked sidewalks that should be replaced for safety reasons.

Demolition and replacement of affected areas, installation of new concrete sidewalks and new landscape
retaining wall blocking.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

27



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: Kenai Rec. Center Roof Repair Project Manager; ~ Scott Curtin

Fund: Kenai Recreation Center CP Fund Number: 119

Department: ~ Recreation Department Priority: 2

Estimated Cost: $50,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: GF Amount; $50,000
Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

|:| Continuation of proposed project
EI Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Repair 1st Quarter FY20

Project Description:

The Recreation Center roof has portions that are beyond their intended useful life. Areas within the Rec
Center are experiencing some minor roof leaking. This project will provide for a Hot Mop and top cap layer to
seal up leaking areas.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:




City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name:; Kenai Rec. Center Grading Project Manager;  Scott Curtin
Fund: Kenai Recreation Center CP Fund Number: 119
Department: ~ Recreation Department Priority: 3

Estimated Cost: $50,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: GF Amount; $50,000
Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

|:| Continuation of proposed project
D Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Design / Construction - 1st quarter FY20

Project Description:

The grading at the Recreation Center does not currently provide enough positive drainage away from the
structure. Snow & Rain have begun to deteriorate the exterior siding, as well as interior drywall and tile within
the affected area. This project will regrade the property to drain away from the building down to a new storm
detention basin.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

29



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: Replace Dry Sprinkler Project Manager: ~ Scott Curtin
Fund: Airport Ops Capital Proj Fund Fund Number: 328
Department:  Airport - Kenai Ops Facility Department Priority: 1

Estimated Cost: $40,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: Airport SR Amount: $40,000

Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status: “ DPV-1 Dry Pipe Valve
New /

D Continuation of proposed project

Butterfly Valve to

El Supplemental funding to existing project ™ a Control Water Supply

to System

Proposed Project Schedule:

Water Supply 4% l
d

Seventeen year old Dry Sprinkler piping is corroding and again starting to develop leaks. When leaks occur,
the dry system could activate and fill with water. During freezing conditions, pipes could freeze and cause
extensive damage. Three bays are involved: Apparatus bay, wash bay and sand storage bay.

Project Description:

Replace dry sprinkler piping, and reroute under ceiling with galvanized pipe.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

Failure of dry sprinkler system will cause system discharge and damage to the facility and its contents.




City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: Update Master Plan/Rate StUdy Project Manager: Scott Curtin

Fund: Water & Sewer SR Fund Fund Number: 010

Department: ~ Water, Sewer & WWTP Department Priority: 2

Estimated Cost: $300,000 Final

Proposed Funding Source(s):
Source 1: 0104674531 Amount: $150,000 City Of Kenai

Source 2: 0104664531 Amount: $75,000 Wastewater Facility Master Plan
Source 3: 0104654531 Amount: $75,000

Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

Prepared for
New City of Kenai
[ ] continuation of proposed project A
D Supplemental funding to existing project ot Rt 014
. March 2004

Proposed Project Schedule:

RFP - 1st quarter FY20

CH2MHILL

301 West Northern Lights Boulevard, Suite 601
Anchorage, Alaska 99503-2682
(907) 278-2551

Project Description:

The current Master Plan was completed in 2003/2004. There have been numerous changes to permitting
requirements, personnel changes, equipment failures, etc. in that time. The rate increases that resulted from
that plan were implemented and we have not had a rate increase for two years. Costs split between water
and sewer are $75,000 each.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

The direction this report will provide will prevent funds from being expended on lower priority items. Master
Plans should be updated every 10 years. This will provide a direction for future improvements and
expenditures.




City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: Clarifier/Pump Housing Coatings  project Manager: ~ Scott Curtin

Fund: WWTP CP Fund Fund Number: 625

Department: ~ WWTP Department Priority: ©

Estimated Cost: $40,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: WWTP Amount; $40,000
Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

|:| Continuation of proposed project
D Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Seasonal work.
Begin 1st quarter FY20
Complete 4th quarter FY20

Project Description:

Exteriors of Clarifier Tanks are raw concrete that have weathered for 40 years. Areas of concrete have
exposed aggregate, doors and frames are extremely rusted due to the salt air. This project will provide an
exterior coating to both clarifier's and pump house and replacement of exterior doors. Most of the work will
be completed by staff.

Replacement of three metal doors, frames and hardware. Patching of rough concrete areas. Application of
topcoat. This will be rolled on product and will look similar to a rough stucco. Staff will work on as work/staff
availability permits.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

This is appropriate long term maintenance. It will provide a noticeable face lift to the facility where the public
will notice the property is being cared for.




City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: Belt Filter Press Project Manager: Roscoe Barrett
Fund: WWTP CP Fund Fund Number: 625
Department: ~ WWTP Department Priority: 1

Estimated Cost: $500,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: WWTP Amount; $500,000
Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

I:] Continuation of proposed project
El Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Design - 1st quarter FY20
Invitation to bid - 3rd quarter FY20
Construction - 4th quarter FY20

Project Description:

The belt press was installed during the last upgrade in 1981, for the past 15 years it has remained
serviceable only by the extraordinary effort of the crew. This press is no longer in production and it has
become difficult to find replacement parts. Some parts have been fabricated to remain operational.

Add a screw press to the existing system utilizing the same sludge piping, polymer injection and drainage
system currently in place. Estimates of design and improvements would cost approximately $500.000.00.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

The belt press is the last stage of wastewater treatment and a very critical component in operational control.
If for any reason this process through either a major breakdown or the possibility of a long delay in obtaining
parts our process could be compromised to the point of failing our permit.

33



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: Aeration Basin Restore/Coating  project Manager: ~ Scott Curtin

Fund: WWTP CP Fund Fund Number: 625

Department: WWTP Department Priority: 4

Estimated Cost: $90,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: WWTP Amount; $90,000
Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

I:] Continuation of proposed project
El Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Design - 1st quarter FY20
Construction - 4th quarter FY20

Project Description:

The WWTP has four, 130,000 gallon aeration basins. Each basin is approximately 76' x 20' x12'. The basins
are 40+ years old, and they have some concrete cracking, as well as some concrete scouring at the surface
from years of the basins churning. Basins need sand blasting, epoxy fill of cracks, patching of scoured areas
and epoxy coating. Phase | will complete one of the four basins.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

Completion of this work will allow the basins to continue to operate for another 30 years.




City of Kenai

Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: SCADA Integration

Fund: Water & Sewer SR Fund

Department: Water/Sewer/WWTP

Scott Curtin
621

Project Manager:

Fund Number:

Department Priority: 3

Estimated Cost: $55,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: 0104654531 Amount: $12,500
Source 2: 0104664531
Source 3: 0104674531

Source 4:
Source 5:

Amount:
Amount:

Project Status:

New

|:| Continuation of proposed project
D Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Phase | to be completed in FY2020.

Project Description:

Amount: $12,500
Amount: $30,000

THREAT
ATI'A(}(S INTERNET FELD  momcmue
HUMAN SOQ.U IONS SK(WALS W!IW__ TN USNG, RW

e it CONTROL
ELZ”%EUASYSTEM S

AT

ROTOCOLS

mqu

EC
3

wess DISTRIBUTED
OPEFIATGFI

=

Y e 5% ? COMMUNICATiDN msf_‘
mwm PLGS NEORNATIO £S
INDUSTR{AL<£ g

mws Ng_Fl‘.chE m-uw

The City has an existing Wonderware SCADA system operational. The Water/Sewer side is extensively
more setup than the WWTP. The only items tying into SCADA at the WWTP are level indicators for the
hypochlorite and bisulfite tanks. There are numerous other items that could be tied in, including the new

blowers and DO probes.

Requesting we spread costs out over the next few years to coincide with new equipment replacing old.
Water/Sewer: Continue with an annual $25K/year service contract for SCADA Integration split between

Water and Sewer for the next three years.
Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

Implementation of this system will gain insight and oversight into our operational processes which will provide
opportunities for efficiency and lower operating costs.

35



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: _Hydrant Mapping & Installation Project Manager;  Scott Curtin

Fund: Water & Sewer CP Fund Fund Number: 621

Department: Water Department Priority: 6

Estimated Cost: $150,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):
Source 1: W&S SR Amount: $150,000

Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

|:| Continuation of proposed project
|:| Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Mapping - 1st quarter FY20
Installation - 4th quarter FY20

Project Description:

Correctly identify all hydrants within city limits and map to GIS. Provide for installation of hydrants at dead
ends of main runs to allow for sufficient flushing.

This project will provide for the verification of all hydrants, their locations and ownership, placement onto GIS
by Gary, our GIS integrator, and some installation of new hydrants in areas identified. This will allow for a
greater control and understanding of our water system. Provide a more thorough flushing of the distribution
system.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:
Areas of the City which may continue to be underserved by hydrants at risk of fire. Risk of allowing some

areas of distribution system seeing low flows having lower quality water due to inability to thoroughly flush
mains.




City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: C|ty Street Sink Hole Repairs Project Manager: Scott Curtin
Fund: Municipal Roadway Imp. CP Fund Number: 755
Department: ~ N/A Department Priority:

Estimated Cost: $71,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: Gen. Fund  Amount: $71,000

Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

I:] Continuation of proposed project
I:I Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

FY20 Construction season.

Project Description:

Public Works has identified several City streets which have been negatively impacted by sinkholes and other
settling. Cause of the problems varies from failing storm drains to non-suitable materials being present in
road base. This project will excavate and repair broken storm drains, excavate and remove non-suitable
materials, and repave impacted areas. City streets identified for work include Aliak, Highbush, Water Gate &
Pirate, Water Gate & Schooner, Water Gate & Setnet, Fourth & Haller, Eagle Rock & Tern, and Silver
Salmon.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

Repair will mitigate future damage and expense associated with failures.




City of Kenai

Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: Streets Improvements/Repairs

Project Manager: ~ Scott Curtin

Fund: Municipal Roadway Imp. CP

Fund Number: 755

Department: ~ Streets

Department Priority: 2

Estimated Cost: $129,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1; General Amount: $129,000
Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

|:| Continuation of proposed project
EI Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

FY2020 Construction season after project
identification.

Project Description:

Funds to be available for road and curb repairs after project prioritization.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:
N/A

38



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name: Municipal Park Trail Const. Project Manager; ~ Bob Frates
Fund: Trail Construction CP Fund Fund Number: 751
Department: ~ N/A Department Priority: 1

Estimated Cost: $37,800

Proposed Funding Source(s):

Source 1: Gen.Fund  Amount: $37,800

Source 2: Amount:
Source 3: Amount:
Source 4: Amount:
Source 5: Amount:

Project Status:

New

|:| Continuation of proposed project
D Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Construction in summer 2019.

Project Description:

Project establishes trails in close proximity of existing use areas (ballpark, poetry trail, and playground area).
Project will include construction of 0.40 miles of new trail, surveying for future trail construction, and bridge
design work for future trail construction.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

Future operational costs for the trail work would be minimal and are estimated to be less than $1,000.

39



City of Kenai

Fiscal Year 2020 Capital Budget

Project Name:
Fund:

Department:

Senior Center Sound Phase |l

Project Manager: ~ Dan Castimore

Senior Citizen Fund

Fund Number: 019

Department Priority: 1

Estimated Cost: $14,000

Proposed Funding Source(s):
Amount; $14,000

Source 1: GF
Source 2:
Source 3:
Source 4:
Source 5:

Project Status:

New

Amount:
Amount:
Amount:
Amount:

|:| Continuation of proposed project
D Supplemental funding to existing project

Proposed Project Schedule:

Install equipment prior to July 2020

Project Description:

This project would provide additional microphones and microphone stands, provide a VOIP card to allow for
teleconferences using the sound system, and complete the control system. Currently there are no controls for
the sound system in the game room, which limits the usefulness of this system. In the initial project, cabling

Video Preview

Select Source

0O 66 0000

for wired microphones was installed, but no equipment was purchased.

Anticipated Impact on Operating Budget:

This will allow us to better accommodate our seniors who have hearing or visual impairments, thus improving
their quality of life. With this new addition, we will increase our add on options for Center rentals making us

more competitive with modern technology in a tight market.

40



{%Z%ya with a Fast &L‘? with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
\\7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Terry Eubank, Finance Director
DATE: May 8, 2019
SUBJECT: Recommended Amendment to Ordinance 3063-2019

The purpose of this memo is to recommend amendments to the FY2020 Draft Budget and
FY2020 Budget adoption ordinance, Ordinance 3063-2019, and the basis for each
recommendation. New summary pages for the all funds, after incorporating the changes, are
attached for your review.

Budget Document Amendments
General Fund

Revenues:
Other Animal Shelter Fees $42.000
Expenditures:
Police
Transportation $26,000
Animal Control
Operating Supplies 1,500
Professional Services 3,500

$31,000

Budget Ordinance Amendments
The following amendment is needed to Ordinance 3063-2019 to incorporate this
recommendation.

Amend the General Fund appropriation amount in Section 2 to be $16,551,301 and amend
the Total All Funds appropriation amount to be $30,446,176.

Proposed changes to the Police — Transportation account is recommended to fund police
academy training for two officers. In the past, the State of Alaska has paid the costs for new

41



Page 2 of 3
Ordinance 3063-2019

officers to attend the Alaska State Trooper academy in Sitka. Budget cuts in recent years has
forced the Alaska Police Standards Council to begin charging local agencies approximately
$13,000 per attendee. The department currently has three open position and anticipates at least
two will be new officers requiring attendance to the Sitka academy.

Proposed changes to Animal Control are the result of a proposal to contract with the City of
Soldotna to perform animal control shelter services. The City will accept and shelter animals from
Soldotna Animal Control in exchange for a minimum annual fee of $42,000 for up to one-hundred
fifty (150) animals and a fee of $384 per animal over one-hundred fifty (150).

Budget Document Amendments
Water & Sewer Fund

Expenditures:

Water
Professional Services ($ 87,500)
Transfer to Other Funds 87,500
Sewer
Professional Services ($ 87,500)
Transfer to Other Funds 87,500
Waste Water Treatment Plant
Professional Services ($180,000)
Transfer to Other Funds 180,000
Total Water & Sewer Fund $ -
Water & Sewer Improvements Capital Project Fund
Revenues:
Transfer from Other Funds $175,000
Expenditures:
Water & Sewer Utility masterplan and rate study $150,000
SCADA system integration 25,000
Total Expenditures $175,000
Wastewater Treatment Plan Improvements Capital Project Fund
Revenues:
Transfer from Other Funds $180,000
Expenditures:
Water & Sewer Utility masterplan and rate study $150,000
SCADA system integration 30,000
Total Expenditures $180,000

Budget Ordinance Amendments
The following amendment is needed to Ordinance 3063-2019 to incorporate this
recommendation.

Amend the Water & Sewer Improvements Capital Project Fund appropriation amount in
Section 2 to be $250,000, amend the Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Capital

42



Page 3 of 3
Ordinance 3063-2019

Project Fund appropriation amount to be $810,000 and amend the Total All Funds
appropriation amount to be $30,801,176.

The administration is recommending moving the expenditures for the Water & Sewer Utility
masterplan and rate study from the utility’s operating budget to the capital budget as the project
is likely to last beyond a single fiscal year and budgets for capital project funds are project length
rather than limited to a single fiscal year. Overall spending does not increase but total
expenditures do because the transfer from the utility’s operating fund is an expenditure of funds
and the spending of funds in the capital project is also an expenditure.

Budget Ordinance Amendments
The following clerical amendments are needed to Ordinance 3063-2019.

Amend the Class Title of the Human Resource Director* to delete the underline in Section
5.

The underline should not have been included in the ordinance and should be removed.

Amend the Range of the Janitor from a Range 2.4 to a Range 2.3 in Section 5.

This proposed amendment to the Janitor Position pay range was inadvertently omitted from the
Ordinance at introduction. With the recent vacancy in the position, the administration took an
opportunity to regrade the position and believe it is better classified at range 2.3. Personnel
amounts for the Senior Citizen Fund represent the position at a range 2.3 as well.

Your support for these amendment is respectfully requested.

attachments

43



TAXABLE VALUES (000'S)
MILL RATE

REVENUES
Property & Sales Taxes
Property Tax
Sales Tax

Total Property & Sales Taxes

Intergovernmental Revenue:
PERS Funding
Community Assistance
Fish Tax
Other
Total State/Federal Revenue

Other Revenue
Licenses and Permits
Ambulance Fees
Interest
Other
Total Other Revenue

Total Revenues

Transfer From Other Funds
Charges to other funds
Capital Projects / Special Revenue
Enterprise
Trust Fund
Total Transfers

Total Revenues and Transfers

EXPENDITURES/APPROPRIATIONS
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Parks, Recreation & Cultural

Total Operating Expenditures
Transfers or Non-Operating
Total Expenditures/Appropriations

Total Surplus (Deficit)
Projected Lapse - 5%

Adjusted Surplus (Deficit)
Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Unassigned Fund Balance

City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

General Fund
Budget Projection

Original

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed Projection Projection
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020 FY2021 FY2022
$ 868,724 $ 871,076 $ 872,108 $ 871,829 $ 892,023 $ 905,020 $ 918,839
4.35 4.35 4.35 4.35 4.35 4.35 4.35
3,919,797 3,868,445 3,855,798 3,881,792 3,940,692 4,008,100 4,067,011
6,715,501 6,854,253 7,124,915 7,207,189 7,387,175 7,572,053 7,761,354
10,635,298 10,722,698 10,980,713 11,088,981 11,327,867 11,580,153 11,828,365
288,137 218,726 386,406 386,406 470,553 484,670 499,210
278,232 250,852 223,258 210,345 171,001 171,001 171,001
165,087 118,543 165,000 130,000 130,000 133,900 137,917
83,990 101,120 58,000 96,740 113,300 118,965 124,913
815,446 689,241 832,664 823,491 884,854 908,536 933,041
48,557 93,863 63,500 63,000 105,500 108,665 111,925
419,940 443,544 425,000 450,000 500,000 515,000 530,450
35,762 45,801 100,000 150,000 180,000 180,000 180,000
613,358 585,268 736,541 683,256 606,346 624,536 643,272
1,117,617 1,168,476 1,325,041 1,346,256 1,391,846 1,428,201 1,465,647
12,568,361 12,580,415 _13,138,418 _ 13,258,728 13,604,567 _ 13,916,890 _ 14,227,053
1,494,200 1,542,390 1,574,200 1,574,200 1,596,000 1,643,880 1,693,196
124,303 - 283,221 283,221 50,000 50,000 50,000

34,000 400,000 - - - - -
149,802 161,561 162,999 - 124,252 126,737 129,272
1,802,305 _ 2,103,951 2,020,420 1,857,421 _ 1,770,252 1,820,617 1,872,468
14,370,666 14,684,366 15,158,838 15,116,149 15,374,819 15,737,507 16,099,521
2,682,321 2,347,926 3,237,629 3,250,379 3,392,394 3,464,948 3,534,247
6,679,790 7,075,417 7,559,066 7,559,066 7,733,840 7,888,517 8,046,287
2,148,432 2,270,210 2,492,669 2,496,246 2,399,834 2,447,831 2,496,788
1,984,887 _ 2,134,422 2,254,234 2,298,653 _ 2,244,028 2,288,909 2,334,687
13,495,430 13,827,975 15,543,598 15,604,344 15,770,096 16,090,205 16,412,009
745,130 833,913 622,429 622,429 781,205 640,684 652,405
14,240,560 14,661,888 16,166,027 16,226,773 16,551,301 16,730,889 17,064,414
130,106 22,478 (1,007,189)  (1,110,624) (1,176,482) (993,382) (964,893)
- - 777,180 780,217 788,505 804,510 820,600
130,106 22,478 (230,009) (330,407) (387,977) (188,872) (144,293)
10,418,100 10,548,206 10,463,198 10,570,684 10,240,277 9,852,300 9,663,428
10,548,206 10,570,684 10,233,189 10,240,277 9,852,300 9,663,428 9,519,135
(588,937)  (682,068) (700,599) (718,068)  (754,068) (790,068) (826,068)
(409,746) (6,976,762) (7,117,565) (7,164,452) (6,835,109) (6,614,037) (6,169,000)
(1,409,610) (2,416,658)  (2,415,025)  (2,357,757) (2,263,123)  (2,259,323)  (2,524,067)

$8,139,913 $ 495196 $ - - 3 - - -




Revenues
PERS Grant

Usage Fees
Beach Parking
Beach Camping
Dock Launch & Park
Dock Parking Only
Participant Drop-off Fee

Total Usage Fees
Miscellaneous Revenues

Investment earnings
Other

Total Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenue

Expenditures

Public Safety

Streets

Boating Facility

Parks, Recreation & Beautification
Total Expenditures

Transfers - General Fund

Total Expenditures & Transfers
Contribution To/(From) Fund Balance:
Projected Lapse

Adjusted (Deficit)/Surplus

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

City of Kenai

Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Budget Projection
Fund: 006 - Personal Use Fishery Fund

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
$ 2,688 $ 1546 $ 4,169 $ 4,169 $ 4,637
182,853 174,613 175,000 118,307 146,460
238,752 210,269 225,000 129,938 170,100
128,109 111,528 115,000 91,608 101,600
14,807 12,010 15,000 9,547 10,800
10,717 7,481 8,000 5,943 6,715
575,238 515,901 538,000 355,343 435,675
671 1,522 750 750 750
(3,680) 674 (1,500) (3,100) (3,500)
(3,009) 2,196 (750) (2,350) (2,750)
574,917 519,643 541,419 357,162 437,562
116,875 114,542 96,686 96,686 88,051
53,068 32,938 61,066 61,066 55,235
72,668 56,380 72,137 72,137 64,161
268,686 225,445 275,224 278,712 241,588
511,297 429,305 505,113 508,601 449,035
- - 50,000 50,000 50,000
511,297 429,305 555,113 558,601 499,035
63,620 90,338 (13,694) (201,439) (61,473)
- - 21,151 77,167 18,722
63,620 90,338 7,457 (124,272) (42,751)
139,936 203,556 209,896 293,894 169,622
$ 203,556 $ 293,894 $ 217,353 $ 169,622 $ 126,871

45



Revenues
PERS Grant

Usage Fees
Beach Parking
Beach Camping
Dock Launch & Park
Dock Parking Only
Participant Drop-off Fee

Total Usage Fees
Miscellaneous Revenues

Investment earnings
Other

Total Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenue

Expenditures

Public Safety

Streets

Boating Facility

Parks, Recreation & Beautification
Total Expenditures

Transfers - General Fund

Total Expenditures & Transfers
Contribution To/(From) Fund Balance:
Projected Lapse

Adjusted (Deficit)/Surplus

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

City of Kenai

Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Budget Projection
Fund: 006 - Personal Use Fishery Fund

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
$ 2,688 $ 1546 $ 4,169 $ 4,169 $ 4,637
182,853 174,613 175,000 118,307 146,460
238,752 210,269 225,000 129,938 170,100
128,109 111,528 115,000 91,608 101,600
14,807 12,010 15,000 9,547 10,800
10,717 7,481 8,000 5,943 6,715
575,238 515,901 538,000 355,343 435,675
671 1,522 750 750 750
(3,680) 674 (1,500) (3,100) (3,500)
(3,009) 2,196 (750) (2,350) (2,750)
574,917 519,643 541,419 357,162 437,562
116,875 114,542 96,686 96,686 88,051
53,068 32,938 61,066 61,066 55,235
72,668 56,380 72,137 72,137 64,161
268,686 225,445 275,224 278,712 241,588
511,297 429,305 505,113 508,601 449,035
- - 50,000 50,000 50,000
511,297 429,305 555,113 558,601 499,035
63,620 90,338 (13,694) (201,439) (61,473)
- - 21,151 77,167 18,722
63,620 90,338 7,457 (124,272) (42,751)
139,936 203,556 209,896 293,894 169,622
$ 203,556 $ 293,894 $ 217,353 $ 169,622 $ 126,871

46



Revenues
PERS Grant

Usage Fees
Service Hook-up
Residential Water
Commercial Water
Residential Sewer
Commercial Sewer

Total Usage Fees

Miscellaneous Revenues

Penalty and Interest
Interest Earnings
Other

Total Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Water Department
Sewer Department
Wastewater Treatment Plant Department

Total Expenditures

Contribution To/(From) Fund Balance:
Projected Lapse (6%)
Adjusted (Deficit)/Surplus

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Budget Projection
Fund: 010 - Water and Sewer Fund

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
$ 23,142 % 17,347 $ 33,668 $ 33,668 $ 42,205
2,205 2,608 3,927 2,945 3,063
791,580 830,102 832,279 839,251 872,821
315,494 327,519 350,141 335,700 349,128
1,170,897 1,182,083 1,182,299 1,197,528 1,245,429
445,805 453,930 494,807 466,251 484,901
2,725,981 2,796,242 2,863,453 2,841,675 2,955,342
35,839 36,959 43,250 40,000 41,600
5,117 11,775 16,000 12,000 12,480
4,361 24,775 3,000 3,000 3,000
45,317 73,509 62,250 55,000 57,080
2,794,440 2,887,098 2,959,371 2,930,343 3,054,627
719,328 841,231 949,971 967,771 1,037,087
723,136 456,195 499,384 499,384 594,826
987,096 1,116,312 1,208,057 1,208,057 2,055,544
2,429,560 2,413,738 2,657,412 2,675,212 3,687,457
364,880 473,360 301,959 255,131 (632,830)
- - 136,903 137,971 140,997
438,862 393,102 (491,833)
1,705,552 2,070,432 2,633,097 2,543,792 2,936,894
$ 2,070,432 $ 2,543,792 $ 3,071,959 $ 2,936,894 $ 2,445,061

a7



Revenues
State & Federal Grants

Usage Fees
Fuel Sales
Fuel Flowage
Float Plane
Tie Down
Landing
Plane Parking

Total Usage Fees

Rents and Leases
Land
Total Rents and Leases

Miscellaneous
Penalty and Interest

Interest on Investments

Other
Total Miscellaneous

Terminal Revenue
Parking Fees
Rents and Leases
Penalty and Interest

Car Rental Commissions
Advertising Commissions

Miscellaneous
Total Terminal Revenue

Transfers In

Airport Land Trust Fund

Total Transfers In
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Airport Terminal
Airport Airfield
Airport Administration

Airport Other Buildings and Areas

Airport Training Facility

Total Expenditures

Contribution To/(From) Fund Balance:

Projected Lapse (6%)

Adjusted (Deficit)/Surplus

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

City of Kenai

Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Fund: 008 - Airport Fund
Department: Airport Fund Summary

Original Manager
Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020

$ 29,726 $ 21,891 $ 36,385 $ 36,385 $ 42,663
7,621 10,685 10,000 17,500 17,500
29,207 12,093 35,000 15,000 15,000
620 722 1,500 750 750
7,403 6,832 7,500 7,500 7,500
529,132 401,556 432,500 432,500 505,500
5,725 9,018 5,000 10,000 10,000
579,708 440,906 491,500 483,250 556,250
674,781 691,152 547,610 547,610 563,293
674,781 691,152 547,610 547,610 563,293
8,321 7,513 5,000 5,000 5,000
15,598 20,563 25,000 25,000 35,000
12,666 9,769 10,000 10,000 10,000
36,585 37,845 40,000 40,000 50,000
233,284 223,360 250,000 250,000 250,000
308,275 317,431 378,160 378,160 395,344
1,728 3,989 4,500 4,500 4,500
156,497 171,096 175,000 175,000 180,000
7,421 10,648 9,000 9,000 9,000
1,145 3,983 1,500 1,500 1,500
708,350 730,507 818,160 818,160 840,344
1,175,414 1,210,348 1,230,025 1,230,025 908,811
1,175,414 1,210,348 1,230,025 1,230,025 908,811
3,204,564 3,132,649 3,163,680 3,155,430 2,961,361
578,256 578,328 630,109 2,200,875 616,753
1,640,517 1,631,810 1,731,779 1,757,779 1,750,795
411,745 621,759 596,199 591,699 348,507
139,947 261,943 164,943 169,443 248,777
40,295 36,125 38,474 38,474 38,474
2,810,760 3,129,965 3,161,504 4,758,270 3,003,306
393,804 2,684 2,176 (1,602,840) (41,945)
- - 116,255 116,254 116,016
118,431 (1,486,586) 74,071
4,682,502 5,076,306 5,380,197 5,078,990 3,592,404

$ 5,076,306 $ 5,078,990 $ 5,498,628 $ 3,592,404 $ 3,666,475

48



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Fund: 019 - Senior Citizens Fund
Department: Title [l Summary

Original Manager
Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
Revenues
State Grants $ 208,654 $ 198,577 $ 203,626 $ 203,626 $ 205,831
USDA Grant 22,415 18,958 15,000 15,000 20,000
Choice Waiver 220,419 195,012 200,000 135,000 125,000
KPB Grant 126,207 126,207 126,207 126,207 126,207
United Way 5,977 9,598 15,000 15,000 15,000
Rents and Leases 8,260 8,324 13,000 13,000 13,000
Donations 6,975 47,668 32,000 32,000 32,000
Donation - Senior Connection 7,677 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Meal Donations 75,321 82,837 82,500 82,500 82,500
Transfer from General Fund - Operations 183,291 176,739 170,857 214,252 239,208
Transfer from General Fund - Capital - - 45,670 45,670 14,100
Other 306 (42) 300 300 300
Total Revenue 865,502 913,878 954,160 932,555 923,146
Expenditures
Senior Citizen Access 153,905 157,065 157,364 157,364 191,256
Congregate Meals 218,035 220,661 285,370 287,995 261,266
Home Meals 176,509 205,562 209,875 210,750 223,664
Senior Transportation 67,803 80,087 81,234 81,234 104,527
Choice Waiver 249,525 250,503 244,671 244,671 165,893
Total Expenditures 865,777 913,878 978,514 982,014 946,606
Contribution To/(From) Fund Balance: (275) - (24,354) (49,459) (23,460)
Projected Lapse (3%) - - 24,354 49,459 23,460
Adjusted (Deficit)/Surplus (275) - - - -
Beginning Fund Balance 275 - - - -

Ending Fund Balance $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -




Revenues
Bond Interest Subsidy
Transfer from General Fund

Total Revenue

Expenditures
Parks, Recreation & Culture

Contributions To/From Fund Balance

Beginning Fund Balance

Ending Fund Balance

City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Fund 048 - Debt Service

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
34,959 34,996 34,996 34,996 32,607
140,439 142,002 143,402 143,402 140,097
175,398 176,998 178,398 178,398 172,704
175,398 176,998 178,398 178,398 172,704
- $ - $ - $ - $ -

50



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Budget Projection

Land Sales Permanent Funds

Original Manager
Actual Actual Budget FY2019 Proposed
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 Projection FY2020

FUND 082-52 Airport Land Sales Permanent Fund
Revenues

Acct. 36610 Investments Earnings $ 2,055039 $ 1513454 $ 1,520,536 $ 1,520,536 $ 1,333,556

Acct. 36645 Interest on Land Sale Contracts - - 10,000 10,000 10,000

Acct. 33640 Land Sales 362,731 9,234 - - -
Total Revenue 2,417,770 1,522,688 1,530,536 1,530,536 1,343,556
Expenses

Transfer to Airport Land System Fund 1,175,414 1,210,348 1,230,025 1,230,025 908,811
Contributions To/(From) Fund Balance 1,242,356 312,340 300,511 300,511 434,745
Beginning Fund Balance 23,037,659 24,280,015 24,600,203 24,592,355 24,892,866
Ending Fund Balance $ 24,280,015 $ 24,592,355 $ 24,900,714 $ 24,892,866 $ 25,327,611
FUND 081-52 General Land Sales Permanent Fund
Revenues

Acct. 36610 Investments Earnings $ 256,966 $ 187,598 $ 189,844 $ 189,844 $ 175,829

Acct. 36645 Interest on Land Sale Contracts - - - - -

Acct. 33640 Land Sales - 54,001 - - -
Total Revenue 256,966 241,599 189,844 189,844 175,829
Expenses

Transfer to General Fund 149,802 161,561 162,999 162,999 124,252
Contributions To/(From) Fund Balance 107,164 80,038 26,845 26,845 51,577
Beginning Fund Balance 2,942,775 3,049,939 2,965,790 3,129,977 3,156,822
Ending Fund Balance $ 3,049,939 $ 3,129977 $ 2,992,635 $ 3,156,822 $ 3,208,399

51



City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Fund: 011 - Employee Health Care Fund
Department: 18 - Health Care Fund Summary

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020

Revenues

Charge for Services $ - $ 1,903,581 $ 2,148,495 $ 2,148,495 $ 2,436,200
Participant premiums - 236,949 243,552 243,552 297,108
Transfer from Other Funds 117,637 - - - -
Interest Earnings - 836 1,000 1,000 1,000
Total Revenues 117,637 2,141,366 2,393,047 2,393,047 2,734,308
Expenses - 2,010,581 2,391,806 2,391,806 2,733,336
Net Income (loss) 117,637 130,785 1,241 1,241 972
Beginning Retained Earnings - 117,637 100,000 248,422 249,663

Available Retained Earnings $ 117,637 $ 248422 $ 101,241 $ 249,663 $ 250,635




City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Fund: 061 - Equipment Replacement Fund
Department: 59 - Equipment Replacement Fund Summary

Original Manager
Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed
FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
Revenues
Rents & Leases $ 339,205 $ 324,104 $ 379,876 $ 379,876 $ 321,754
Interest Earnings 4,770 7,006 20,000 20,000 14,000
Other income - - - 400,000 25,000
Total Revenues 343,975 331,110 399,876 799,876 360,754
Expenses - Depreciation - - 160,125 160,125 190,000
Net Income (loss) 343,975 331,110 239,751 639,751 170,754
Transfers out - (160,125) - - -
Total net income (loss) and transfers out 343,975 170,985 239,751 639,751 170,754
Beginning Net Position 2,981,827 3,325,802 3,496,787 3,496,787 4,136,538
Ending Net Position 3,325,802 3,496,787 3,736,538 4,136,538 4,307,292
Invested in Capital Assets (1,456,036)  (1,754,920) (2,739,818) (2,594,366) (2,404,366)

Unrestricted Net Position $ 1869,766 $ 1,741867 $ 996,720 $ 1,542,172 $ 1,902,926




Revenues
PERS Grant

Rents and Leases

Interest on Investments
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenses

Net Income (loss)

Beginning Retained Earnings
Capital Asset Acquistions
Allocated to Capital Projects

Credit for Depreciation

Available Retained Earnings

City of Kenai
Fiscal Year 2020 Operating Budget

Budget Projection
Fund: 009 - Congregate Housing Fund

Original Manager

Actual Actual Budget Projection Proposed

FY2017 FY2018 FY2019 FY2019 FY2020
$ 1,780 $ 1,153 $ 1,866 $ 1,866 $ 2,865
386,613 394,618 390,515 390,515 406,145
1,822 2,558 4,000 4,000 4,000
95 (300) - - -
390,310 398,029 396,381 396,381 413,010
498,181 475,300 503,144 503,144 496,568
(107,871) (77,271) (106,763) (106,763) (83,558)
474,257 506,832 539,893 570,007 482,690
- - (121,000) (121,000) -
140,446 140,446 140,446 140,446 140,446

$ 506,832 $ 570,007 $ 452576 $ 482,690 $ 539,578

54



Sponsored by: Administration

v
KENAI, vAU\SI(I:\

CITY OF KENAI
ORDINANCE NO. 3064-2019

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, INCREASING
ESTIMATED REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS BY $339.90 IN THE GENERAL FUND —
POLICE DEPARTMENT FOR STATE TRAFFIC GRANT OVERTIME EXPENDITURES.

WHEREAS, the Kenai Police Department joins with other law enforcement agencies statewide to
support Alaska Highway Safety Office (AHSO) traffic safety programs to reduce fatalities and
injuries on roadways; and,

WHEREAS, AHSO traffic-related overtime funds require no local match and allow the department
to provide specific traffic safety patrols; and,

WHEREAS, actual AHSO overtime expenditures for traffic safety patrols totaled $339.90 from
July 1, 2018 through April 15, 2019; and,

WHEREAS, overtime for these additional traffic safety patrols was not budgeted and the
department is requesting appropriation into overtime budget equal to the amount of AHSO grant
funding received.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA,
as follows:

Section 1. That the City Manager is authorized to accept these grant funds from the State of
Alaska in the amount of $339.90 and to expend grant funds to fulfill the purpose and intent of this
ordinance.

Section 2.  That the estimated revenues and appropriations be increased as follows:

General Fund:
Increase Estimated Revenues —

State Grants - Police— $339.90
Increase Appropriations —
Police - Overtime $339.90

Section 3. Severability: That if any part or provision of this ordinance or application thereof to
any person or circumstances is adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
judgment shall be confined in its operation to the part, provision, or application directly involved
in all controversy in which this judgment shall have been rendered, and shall not affect or impair
the validity of the remainder of this title or application thereof to other persons or circumstances.

55



Ordinance No. 3064-2019
Page 2 of 2

The City Council hereby declares that it would have enacted the remainder of this ordinance even
without such part, provision, or application.

Section 4. Effective Date: That pursuant to KMC 1.15.070(f), this ordinance shall take effect
immediately upon enactment.

ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 15" day of May, 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

Approved by Finance: 7 Zi

Introduced: May 1, 2019
Enacted: May 15, 2019
Effective: May 15, 2019

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]

56



v

’%Z%ow with a Fast &gg with a Future

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

y
KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: David Ross, Police Chief
DATE: April 16, 2019
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 3064-2019 - Ordinance accepting and appropriating

Alaska Highway Safety Office grant funds for Police Overtime

The Kenai Police Department continues to participate in traffic enforcement overtime patrols,
reimbursed to the City of Kenai through a grant by the Alaska Highway Safety Office (AHSO).
These overtime patrols are not budgeted in the FY19 budget.

Actual overtime costs for traffic enforcement during fiscal year FY19 to date, which qualified for
AHSO reimbursement, was $339.90. AHSO - overtime reimbursements are deposited into the
general fund.

| respectfully request consideration of the ordinance accepting and appropriating the grant
amount to the police overtime account.

57



Sponsored by: Administration

v
KENAI, vAU\SI(I:\

CITY OF KENAI
ORDINANCE NO. 3065-2019

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, ACCEPTING AND
APPROPRIATING A VOLUNTEER FIRE ASSISTANCE (VFA) GRANT FROM THE UNITED
STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FOREST SERVICE PASSED THROUGH THE
STATE OF ALASKA DIVISION OF FORESTRY FOR THE PURCHASE OF FORESTRY
FIREFIGHTING EQUIPMENT.

WHEREAS, Kenai Fire Department (KFD) personnel currently use structural firefighting ensemble
to respond to wildland fire incidents, which causes increased stress and fatigue while engaged in
firefighting activities; and

WHEREAS, grant funding will be used to purchase pants and shirts for KFD personnel, to be
used while responding to Forest Fire Incidents; and

WHEREAS, the State of Alaska Division of Forestry has provided a grant in the amount of
$7,467.97 to assist the City of Kenai Fire Department in purchasing forestry firefighting gear; and,

WHEREAS, appropriation of this grant for its intended purpose is in the best interest of the City
and its residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA,
as follows:

Section 1. That the City Manager is authorized to accept a grant from the United States
Department of Agriculture Forest Service passed through the State of Alaska Division of Forestry
in the amount of $7,467.97 for the purchase of forestry firefighting equipment and is authorized
to execute a grant agreement and to expend the grant funds to fulfill the purpose and intent of
this Ordinance.

Section 2.  That the estimated revenues and appropriations be increased as follows:
General Fund:

Increase Estimated Revenues —
Federal Grants — Fire $7.467.97

Increase Appropriations —
Fire — Small Tools/Minor Equipment $7,467.97

Section 3. Severability: That if any part or provision of this ordinance or application thereof to
any person or circumstances is adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
judgment shall be confined in its operation to the part, provision, or application directly involved
in all controversy in which this judgment shall have been rendered, and shall not affect or impair

58



Ordinance No. 3065-2019
Page 2 of 2

the validity of the remainder of this title or application thereof to other persons or circumstances.
The City Council hereby declares that it would have enacted the remainder of this ordinance even
without such part, provision, or application.

Section 4. Effective Date: That pursuant to KMC 1.15.070(f), this ordinance shall take effect
immediately upon enactment.

ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 15" day of May, 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

Approved by Finance: :/,z—t{j,{i_

Introduced: May 1st, 2019
Enacted: May 15th, 2019
Effective: June 14th, 2019

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]

59



%%%stﬁ%aJQMQ(ﬁ@&mﬁéa/i&me”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

y
KENAI, ALASKA
\\7
MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Tony Prior, Battalion Chief
DATE: April 18, 2019
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 3065-2019 — Accepting and Appropriating a Volunteer
Fire Assistance Grant for the Purchase of Forestry Firefighting
Equipment

The City of Kenai Fire Department has been awarded a Volunteer Fire Assistance (VFA) grant
in the amount of $7,467.97 for the purchase of forestry firefighting gear from the United States
Department of Agriculture Forest Service through State of Alaska Division of Forestry. The grant
will fund the purchase of forestry firefighting pants and shirts for our personnel, which will enable
them to respond to forestry fires in gear other than structural turn outs.

Your consideration is appreciated.

60



Sponsored by: Administration

L
KENAI, ALASKA
A\

CITY OF KENAI
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-28

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, AUTHORIZING A
BUDGET TRANSFER WITHIN THE WATER AND SEWER FUND FOR APPRAISAL COSTS
RELATED TO THE PURCHASE OF WELL RADIUS PROPERTY FOR THE CITY’S PUBLIC
WATER SYSTEM.

WHEREAS, the parcel adjacent to the Beaver Creek Subdivision located at the intersection of the
Kenai Spur Highway and Shotgun Drive, described as Alaska State Land Survey 2013-49 Tract
A and recorded as Plat 2017-8, Kenai Recording District and located in Section 36, Township 6
North, Range 11 West, Seward Meridian, will be used for well site and watershed protection; and,

WHEREAS, on August 31, 2010, the City of Kenai applied to purchase the property from the State
of Alaska Department of Natural Resources, Division of Mining, Land, and Water; and,

WHEREAS, on October 29, 2012, pursuant to Alaska Statute 38.05, the State of Alaska
Department of Natural Resources, Division of Mining, Land, and Water issued a Final Finding and
Decision allowing the property to be sold through a non-competitive sale to the City subject to a
reversionary interest by the State should the property cease to be used for public and charitable
purposes; and,

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2014, pursuant to Alaska Statute 38.05, the State of Alaska Department
of Natural Resources, Division of Mining, Land, and Water issued a First Amended Final Finding
and Decision to address Boundbrook Drive and the dedication of a 30-foot right-of-way; and,

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2019, the Department of Natural Resources, Division of Mining,
Land, and Water issued a Second Final Finding and Decision to address the School Trust Land,
an appraisal valuation date, and fee; and,

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2019, the Alaska Department of Natural Resources, Division of
Mining, Land, and Water gave notice to the City of Kenai to proceed to appraisal following the
State requirements; and,

WHEREAS, after requesting three quotes for an appraisal, the City selected MacSwain
Associates, LLC, based upon their cost estimate of the appraisal of $7,000; and,

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available for transfer within the Water and Sewer Fund for the
purchase of these services.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA:

Section 1: That the following budget transfer be made:

61



Resolution No. 2019-28
Page 2 of 2

Water & Sewer Fund

From:

010-465-4999 Water, Contingency $7,000
To:

010-465-8061 Land $7,000

Section 2. That this resolution takes effect immediately upon passage.

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 15th day of May 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

7

Approved by Finance: ?;" g

62



’%Z%OM with a Fast, &L}« with a Fatuwre”
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794

Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

O
KENAI, ALASKA
\\7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
Cc: Scott Curtin, Public Works Director
FROM: Elizabeth Appleby, City Planner
DATE: April 26, 2019
SUBJECT: Resolution 2019-28 — Authorizing a Budget Transfer within the Water

and Sewer Fund

In 2010, the City of Kenai applied to the State of Alaska to acquire a parcel as a preference right
applicant for a public and charitable use of municipal well site and for protection of the Beaver
Creek Watershed. In 2012, the State signed a Final Finding and Decision to approve the sale of
the property to the City. The Decision allows for a non-competitive sale to the City for the
appraised fair market value, subject to a reversionary interest by the State should the property
cease to be used for public and charitable purposes. In 2014, pursuant to Alaska Statute 38.05,
the State of Alaska Department of Natural Resources, Division of Mining, Land, and Water issued
a First Amended Final Finding and Decision to address Boundbrook Drive and the dedication of
a 30-foot right-of-way on the plat of the parcel.

The City paid for a survey of the property which created the subject parcel, described as Alaska
State Land Survey 2013-49 Tract A and recorded as Plat 2017-8, Kenai Recording District. The
parcel is approximately 28.77 acres within the Rural Residential Zone of the City.

In 2019, the City received a Second Final Finding and Decision to address the School Trust Land,
appraisal valuation date, and appraisal fee. The City also received notice to proceed to appraisal
in 2019. After requesting three quotes, the City selected MacSwain Associates, LLC, based upon
their cost estimate of the appraisal to be $7,000. Sufficient funds are available for transfer within
the Water and Sewer Fund for the purchase of these services. Resolution 2019-28 would transfer
$7,000 from Water, Contingency to Land within the Water and Sewer Fund.

Thank you for your consideration.

63



-

[} lu;ms\fwv WAS ACCOMLISHED ™ ACCORDANCE W 45 3A.05.510(a) AND FaC
40

7. THE CRROR OF CLOSURE COES NOT EXCEED 1:3000

e PARCELS OF LAND CRMED BY THE STATE OF ALASKA, LOCATED WITHIN 2000
FEiT OF. CP BEECTED BY A SURVEYED OF PROTRACTLD SECTON LAE. ART
SJ;[C‘YGASEMTBQ’)EMEHTONUM“BF SECTION UNE.
WHICH l.- nmvm STATL CF ALASKA FOR PUEUC HICHWATS UNDZR A5

19.10.0
T BN TN DHSTANCES o ARF AFOUCED T0 HOSTONTAL PELE BieraNCES g Nid # {!;" |
& ™ ABLS TE-118  ADL 7280t af s - [ 3!3&19;(

10, TR BAYS OF COORDMATLS FOn 113 MLAT ¥AS DLTURURED OY AECORD = . 2 N0.00.
THGWN ON PLAT 2007-1 KENAI RECORDNG DISTRICT, THE MAD PLAT M0, 76182 KRD s

!1‘ vuur:s ns SHOWN OH RECORD PLAT WERE CONVERTED TO NAD 83 VALUES
NG NORTH AMER.CAN DATUM CONVERSION PROGRAM VERSION 2.11

55 EASEMENT ON THE RED OF A'ﬂwﬁ.ﬂ UPLA\I)WTE
mn~mmmw¢rsm¢nmm 8L RCSERVED TC
STATE IN ACCORDANCE W™H AS 3802127,

12 PURSUANT 10 TI( KDG I\I!A PLAN: A 100 FOOT BULDING TETBAODC
CONCEMNT wTH AND OO ARY HiGH
?lL(.o‘ SOE OF

VLNIOPAL WELLS(S].

13, PLASUSNT TO T4E KEMAI AREA PLAN AND KENAI RIVEY COMPRDMENSVE
MANACEMINT nnz A 200 FoCT vn»mwu BUFFER, CONCDENT WTH AMD
mmuvw«: ORDINARY HIGH WATER LINE OF FACK oF

BEAVER CREEX 15 RESERVED FOR TWi OF RPARAN M!u'scnoa
oNLY nummu IMFROVEMEN TS WTHIN TMS BUFFER ARD THOSE LI
MUNCIPAL WELL(S)
SHIET 2 FOR WONUMENT INFORMATION AND EASEWENT DETAIL BRAMNGS

100" PLBLIC ACCESS EASEM"‘“ mcn\lm BY THS PLAT

CONCIDENT WTH ADL NG.

16, THE WENAI PININSULA BOROUCH PLAT SOMU TTEE CRANTED EXCEPTIONS TO
WPE20.30.030 - PROSDSES STREET LAYCLT AND KPB20.30.170 - BLOTK LENGTH ¥

AT THE MEETING OF ARY 18 2016, g

WATER UNE
u—aum r.m:x 15 IEMBY THE STATE ﬂ'E omLY
APE THOTE NECESSARY FOR A

THE
SARY FOR

LA EASEMENT IS

V7. AMY PERSOK DR DRCANIZATION D-I{ICFN: THE FROPLRTY IS SESPONSIELE i
wn WING ALL REQURRED LOCAL STATE AND FROFRA. S, INCLUONG & U
¥ CORFS OF INGINEIRS WETLAND {Jﬂ(ﬂv!"ﬂd ¥ APPLICABLE

18 ANY ROADWAY CONSTRUCTON
mt‘ 10 KuC. 12,10 AND l'.l. RECURE

T WTan N FERN S° Wil BE
TV AND SPPAGYAL BY T O

¥

LECEND
EO/BM WINLWENT RECOVERED AS NOTD
PRMARY MONUMENT SET TS SURVEY
21/2 ALV, VON. O ALK FIPE AS SHOWN
FRIVARY MONUMENT RECOVERED AS NOTED & "
SECONDARY MONUVENT RECOVERZZ
5/8° ACBAR WTH 2° ALUM. CAP
DN3 TRACT COAMER NUMBCR
SURVEY MONUMENTATION DIAGRAM KE'Y
PECORD PER BIRCH MELYS S.00MSON KENAI WELL ADOTION Mo.2
PLAT NO, 20127 KRD
RECORD PER BEAVER CREEX ALASKA SUBDMSION AMENDLD
PLAT NO. B1=101 KRC
RECORD PER ALASKA STATE LAND SURVEY Nc. 76-118
FLAT NO, 79-160 KRD

EBLAT APPROYAL PLAT 2303 2005
e Ve PENNSIA BORCUGH PLA - ok e e e Roar i i
THIS PLAT WAS APPAOVED am g NA INEULA NNNG =
CONMSTON AT PHEMEETNG OF B =2 TRASTD i EMT-T‘%
HENAI SENINSLLA BORCUGH i <AGSO'D0E 52586 (5894'30°F 576,95 @i 2 (132EE) e
A 3 . \ Q BAmS OF DOORDMATER
FITAORIEED OTTITAL o e g b Lo L
-._\ R IR I 1MG. muwmr -
% ! L czoun
g - e
Lﬁ‘i B ig \
/ 18
¢
\ =
'Lors /' i
1=
i i
1 THESE PARCELS ARE SUBUECT TO THE TFY OF KENA Z0MAG REGULATIONS. ].C"Uréf H -
2 NG PRIVATE ACCESS TO STATE MAMTANED ROW'S PERUITTED UMLESS APPIGVED iy
BY THE GTATL GF A ASKA DEPARTUENT DF TRANSPOATATION. T T ¥
3 FRONT 15 FEET ADJACENT 7O THE RIGHTS-OF=WAY AND 20 FEEI WITMM 5 FEET - | -
or THE SOL LOT ABES 5 ALSo & UTUITY CASUENT GEMC 0NTED BY e 1
40 PERMANENT STHUCIURE SHALL BE COSTRUCTED OR PLACED DAt A '
Uity CASEUENT WhcH WOULD INTEATERE W ABLTY OF A UTLITY 0 R
USE THE EASEWENT, 2 . -
4. PORTIONS OF T3, SUBONISION ARE T W KCNAL PURNSULA SoRouCH ] HDER
T AMABROMOLIS MASITAT PROTECTION DiS1 WPE CHAPTER 21,1 |B\ AS E Rmu ; w
e AVEABED PR AT TERE AT AFTECT CELOPUENT I TS eavT.LOT 3
SUBDISION.
- N - .
5 S PARCEL 13 AT LEAST 200,000 SOUAAE FIET OR A NOWNAL 8 ACKES W SZE
AND CONDITONS MAY »orustme.srmm't ASTEWATER TREATVENT
DISPOSAL  AhY WASTEWATER TREATMENT OSAL SVSTOM MUST MCIT n-t
FICAKTONY REQUREENTS CF THE Ak (O AN 58 DR nEr N, ] ;
CONSCRVANCH = K - -

CYHXFELD 80 PT. 1
| PLsT 0, 86-232 RO

BLET LoT2

REMABMDER 0F
QYT LOT 3
TEBE T

& HEE'S TERN SUBD PH.1

5 PLET #0. 2016-26 [AD

£asouEnTs
VED 10 T s“ur m:"n

N

¥

MCNTY
MAP
"oy wE
USGS FENA -3
& C-4 (1351)

CERTIFICATE OF QFNERSHIP AND DEDICATION
mmsm mn\‘r,ﬂrnm 1AM THE DRECTOR. nvsmm'

AND WATER AND THAYT THE STATE OF ALASKA IS T-E OWNER
AS!.S\W 201349, A i

R

S SHOWN HEREON. | HLREBY a ms
SURVEY AND PLAT FOR THE STATE OF ALASKA, AMD DEDICATE FOR PUBLC
OR PRIVATE USE AS WOTED, ALL
RICHTS=CF-WAY AS SHOWN AND OF

CASEMENTS, FUBUC UTIUTY AREAS, AND/CR
SORIBED MERLON

[¥G, LAWD AND WATER

7.

“ o
’-ummn“

HERLEY CERTFY THA ARE THE APPUCANTS
AS SHOWN HERECH. WE HERERY APPAOVE Mls TSURVEY AND PLAT,
ADL NG, 231035 TRACT A

T

“zfal'n

L] i % " 10
§MSEEY - 32608333 W8 SUMEY FEE.

173 ums
1US. MO = Da0L7 ETARL

KO8 FLE KD. 2016-073 PAGE 1 OF 2

STATE OF ALASKA
DEPARTMENT OF WATLRAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND % WATER
ANCHORAGE, ALASKA

ALASKA STATE _AND SURVEY NO. 2013-49

ANO THE DEDICATION OF A PORTION
OF N. FERN STREET

LOCATED WiTHN
CEBTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE SURVEYED SCCTION 36

TOWNSHIP & NORTH, RAMCE 11 WEST
SEWARD MERIDIAN, OITY OF KEHAL
KENA| PLMNSULA BORDUGH, ALASIA

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEYOR SUTVEVTD LINTS — GOUNDARY x mm” B CONTANNG 2023 ACRES
+ HORCBY CERTIY TMAT I Ak SUTEVED UVES BUILDING ¥ uinaatuent ¥DiAI RECOREING DISTRICT
FRACTCE e 0 9' g Tt T puaT UN-SURVEYED NES BTN FOR EPARAN PIIDEC‘“OI 45 SHOWN 0%
NEPRESINTS A S Manr L TS SUBDVISION DIAW BY
THA™ ME WOWUVENTS SHOWS HEREOW ACTUALLY £XST AS DESCRIBEO, —— — CENTERUNC L i
AND WAT ALL DMENSIONS AND OTHER DETARS ARE CORRECT — o = CRDNART MG WATER LNE
-— —— £ OVIBEAD UNUTY LnE =
%iléﬂ_ = < ynuTY POU o Kin .,oa ND: 213166 |PELD BOOK: T
AT HOFF WET_ANT . 210 NOALLD AvE.
REGSTERED LAND SURVEYCR e KA : KEnh, ax cagni | ScmE | owown g ey
1S hi7es 00T oF GRAVEL ROAD I ﬂm! AD1-B o ! P N 20130049

P 147

64



- ~
FOUND 2 1/2° BRASS oD 3 174" BRASS PLAT KO, 2092-7 KAD ~58% e
MONUMTNT N GO0 N GO0 o o S A 2¥
1 / CONDNICN BIRCH FIELTS 8D RESAl WELL ASOT. ¥3.2  ygeerp ’,,//z TS
@ oRs @ | f [ 2
o st 92 D= - ,##r i
|
SET 2 1727 ALUM. CAP MONUMENT ON | FOUMD 2 1/7° Alum. :
STARLESS SR, DR oD PasPais s} T G000 1
o 4 S o CONDTION ]
O] » map P archihdet | - !
ar REBAR W/ 1 %' ALUV. CAP SOT 908 -
K
SET 2 1/2° AN CAP MOMUMENT ON FOUND 2 1/7° ALUR. 12 -
| STAMESS STEEL DRVE ROD MONSMENT I GOOO 12 o
FROM Whic BEARS. g -
3K AL, UON NSSSS0S'E 30.0° 13 =
E ¥ F00AR W/ 1K AUM. €A SOT = | a
104 | e
% REBAR W/ 1 K" ALUM. CAP NOOW TRACT A |§ =
o BB AC 1!
SET 3 1/2° ALUM. WONUMENT ON 30 FOUMD 27 ALLM. CAP |
M. PP oM RIDAR N GOCO | b
CONDIDOY w | 2
FROW WHCH BEARS: I =
0] 8" SPRCE Eiy E IH =
167 SPAUCE NSST. 32.8° |
5% SPRUCE SME 18.0° |
I
SET 2 1/ A U MoNENT o 3 FOUNG 3 14" !
A MONUMENT N €000
CONDIMON
ROV WhaCH BEARS: o
EI 12" SPRUCE SAJW 156" E e
9" SPRUCE NITE 121 e !
7 ASPEN NASW 144" !
/
]
FOURD 3 1/4° AUM. FOUND 3 1/4° ALUM. P _1,..
UONUUENT ' G000 /\ | et s cooe - i
- DETAL B
) ) SCALE 17 = 100°
a5
"
FOUND 27 ALUM. PPE 0.6' BELOW FOUND 2 1/2° BRASS
GROUND. CAP MISSNG, RESET 2 1/27] MONUMENT N GOCO
ALUM. WONUMENT On 30" ALLM PRE non
m AT Sll‘ lwm ‘ FOUND PIPC 3
a‘ APD! srml w
9" SPRUCE 53T 40 ¥
3 K" ALUM. NON. N24434T'L 801
S pg. MM oUNENT O 0" sy east L unm -~
10 FEe oF w i ; -
B0 PUBLIC ACCTSS EASCMENT
FROU WHICH BEAR su -
= s.\’uuu ums:’ul-nnu g Boa ODEATED BY S PLAT
RUCE S30T
- ek e i
i o LOTE
I
s
i@
i@
14 SCALE
= 5
|£; hrad E 20 -
I2= s B = m W dwm
LECEND o .
GLO/BUM MONUMENT RECCVERED AS NOTID ES lLo‘ 2£ | METER = 3.2BOSMIN LS. SURVEY FEET, | US ACKT = 04247 RECTARD
PRUARY MORUMENT 517 THIS SLRVEY i z PACE 2 OF 2
2 1/27 UM MON. ON AL CIPE AS SHOWN 5 g NAME OF SLVEYOR:
® PRMARY WONUMEN™ RECOVERED AS NOTED % 8 DTEGRITY SURVEYS
o SUCONDARY MONUMENT RECOWEREID ﬁ e I% - t"‘m;
5/87 REBAR WITH 2° AW, GA8 Z
o STATE OF atAS<A
8 gw'?ﬁmi“mmrﬂmm Ky | DEPARTMENT OF NATURA. RESOURCES
: VA TE
1) RECORD FLR BIRCH FIELDS SUBDMVISION KENSI WRLL ADDITION Na.2 LOT 28 DIMISION OF M‘M‘NG' ‘IE:ND & WATER
PLAT NO. 2012-7 KRO Lo
ii RECORD PIR BEAVER CREEX ALASKA SUBDIVIS ON AWENDED ALASKA STATE LAND SURVEY NO. 2013-49
bhgrlay i el AND “WE_DEDICATON OF & PORTION
o REODAD (R ALASKA STATE LAND SURVET Na. T6-118 Ll
PLAT NO. 75-169 KAD i
SURVEIED LINES — BOUNDAR™
SURVETED UNES , Pl B L S
LN=SURVEYED LINES. I 'rmss_m :ﬁ NCRTH. RANGE &: WEST
CENTERUME TWARD MERICIAN, ALASKA
CRDINATY HIGH WATER LINT _] CONTAMANG 29231 ACSES
CVERMEAD UTLITY LME =
muTY Pc DETAL_A 2018 MO RECoRDNG LSTRCT
WETLAND STALE 17« 80 e | [oam e VAL RECOWM
----------- EODE OF GRAVEL ROAD 3wt |5 l/ A,
WLy A | 0RTE OETE
ST .m 0. 21368 [nm B00<: 2013-10 PG 21-27
SCALE: o] o
L 08 i | S | "Ass zon 30049

Onar A

65



Alaska State Land Survey
2013-49
Tract A

(Kenai Peninsula Borough
Parcel Number
04103060)

460 Shotgun Drive

N
w E

S

210"
—— 1

1 inch equals 250 feet

The information depicted here

on is for graphic representation
only of the best available sources.
The City of Kenai assumes no
responsibility for errors on this

map.
66
Date: 4/26/201y




STATE OF ALASKA
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
DIVISION OF MINING, LAND AND WATER

SECONDED AMENDED FINAL FINDING AND DECISION
Noncompetitive Sale — AS 38.05.810(a) Public and Charitable Use
ADL 231036 — City of Kenai

This seconded Amended Final Finding and Decision is based on a Final Finding and
Decision for ADL 231036 issued on October 29, 2012, to grant a non-competitive sale
to the applicant, the City of Kenai (City), pursuant to AS 38.05.810(a) Public and
charitable use. The first Amended Final Finding and Decision, issued March 27, 2014,
resolved survey issues. See the attached first Amended Final Finding and Decision
with the original Final Finding and Decision. This second Amended Final Finding and
Decision for ADL 231036 concerns School Trust lands and date of valuation for
appraisal purposes. Public notice is not required for this seconded Amended Final
Finding and Decision as the modifications to the original Final Finding and Decision are
considered by the Department to be minor.

Summary of the Decision:

The Final Finding and Decision approved the sale to the City a parcel of state land for a
future municipal well site and for protection of the Beaver Creek watershed. The parcel
is located within the municipal boundaries of the City and abuts the Kenai Spur
Highway. The survey has been completed per the first Amended Final Finding and
Decision. The updated legal description for the parcel is Tract A of ASLS 2013-49,
recorded as Plat 2017-8 in the Kenai Recording District. The parcel is located in
Section 36, Township 6 North, Range 11 West, Seward Meridian. The parcel is
approximately 28.778 acres in size.

Modifications to the Decision:
The decision of October 29, 2012 is modified as follows:

Modification One: This project is on school trust land and was subject to Department
Order (DO) 143. However, the school trust litigation for which DO 143 was written has
been resolved and is no longer a factor. DO 143 has been rescinded. Therefore, DO
143 no longer applies and its directive will not be followed. The purchase price is still
the fair market value per current procedures.

Modification Two: An appraisal is needed to determine fair market value. The applicant
bears the cost of appraisal. The valuation date of the appraisal is changed to the date
of inspection by the appraiser. An appraisal is valid for two years. The appraisal will
take into account the deed restrictions and reversionary interest when determining fair
market value.

Seconded Amended Final Finding and Decision ADL 231036 Page 1 of 2

67



Per the original final finding and decision, the applicant’s appraiser is required to contact
the Division’s Appraisal Unit for appraisal instruction in advance of the appraisal.

Modification Three: The original stipulations of the sale list a $100 document handling
fee to be charged as part of the final paperwork to complete the purchase. Fee
regulations were updated and approved July 1, 2018. Fee changes are described
below and are subject to change.
o If the applicant pays in full, total fees due are $265 for patent application and
recordation along with the purchase price.
e If the applicant finances the purchase through the state, a minimum deposit of 5%
of the purchase price is required, plus fees for $405 land sales contract
application and recordation.

All other terms and special conditions as set forth in the original decision and the first
amended decision remain unchanged.

Recommend Approval:

folbzg Yrng—  Felo 25,2009

Kathryn Young, @éctlon nager Date
Land Sales Section
Division of Mining, Land and Water

Appeal:

A person affected by this decision may appeal it, in accordance with 11 AAC 02. Any
appeal must be received within 20 calendar days after the date of issuance of this
decision, as defined in 11 AAC 02.040(c) and (d) and may be mailed or delivered to
Commissioner, Department of Natural Resources, 550 W. 7th Avenue, Suite 1400,
Anchorage, Alaska 99501; faxed to 1-907-269-8918; or sent by electronic mail to
dnr.appeals@alaska.gov. If no appeal is filed by that date, this decision goes into effect
as a final order and decision on the 315t day after issuance. An eligible person must first
appeal this decision in accordance with 11 AAC 02 before appealing this decision to
Superior Court. A copy of 11 AAC 02 may be obtained from any Public Information
Office of the Department of Natural Resources.

Attached: First Amended and Original Final Finding and Decisions

Seconded Amended Final Finding and Decision ADL 231036 Page 2 of 2

68



Sponsored by: Administration

CITY OF KENAI
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-29
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA FIXING THE RATE OF

LEVY OF PROPERTY TAX FOR THE FISCAL YEAR COMMENCING JULY 1, 2019 AND
ENDING JUNE 30, 2020.

WHEREAS, Kenai Municipal Code requires that the rate of levy of property tax be set annually
not later than the tenth day of June; and,

WHEREAS, the Council has adopted the "City of Kenai 2020 Annual Budget," which estimates
property tax revenue based upon a tax rate of 4.35 mills.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA:

Section 1. That the rate of levy of property tax for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2019
and ending June 30, 2020 be fixed at 4.35 mills.

Section 2.  That this resolution takes effect immediately upon passage.

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 15" day of May, 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

69



’%2%;@ with a Fast &{y with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
\\7
MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Terry Eubank, Finance Director
DATE: May 9, 2019
SUBJECT: Resolution 2019-29 Establishing the City of Kenai FY2020 Property
Tax Mill Rate

Resolution 2019-29 will establish the rate of levy of property tax for FY2020, tax year 2019. The
proposed rate of levy is 4.35 and will result in $435 in taxes being paid for each $100,000 of
assessed property value. The rate is unchanged and will generate the necessary property taxes
to support the adopted FY20 budget. The last mill rate change for the City was in FY2015.

Your support is respectfully requested.

70



Sponsored by: Administration

CITY OF KENAI
RESOLUTION NO. 2019 - 30

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, SUPPORTING KENAI
PENINSULA BOROUGH ORDINANCE 2019-09, AMENDING THE BOROUGH'’S SALES TAX
CODE TO LEVY A 12 PERCENT TAX ON TEMPORARY LODGING, EXEMPT TEMPORARY
LODGING RENTALS FROM THE GENERAL SALES TAX, AND ALLOW CITIES THAT LEVY A
SIMILAR SALES TAX ON TEMPORARY LODGING TO EXEMPT UP TO ONE-HALF OF THE
BOROUGH’'S TEMPORARY LODGING TAX, SUBJECT TO BOROUGH VOTER APPROVAL.

WHEREAS, due to the continuing decline in state assistance to municipalities and other losses
of revenue, the Kenai Peninsula Borough is pursuing a borough-wide tax on temporary lodging
rentals similar to bed taxes levied by other Cities and Boroughs in Alaska; and

WHEREAS, the City of Kenai attracts a significant number of visitors to the Kenai Peninsula each
year, and although visitors contribute to the economy, the City does not currently receive any
direct revenue from visitors to offset demands on public services other than the City’'s share of
general sales tax; and,

WHEREAS, the City at one time had a Hotel/Motel Room Tax of five percent (5%), which was
transmitted from the operator and/or owner renting rooms to the City; however, effective June 15,
1996, the Hotel/Motel Room Tax was suspended until such time as Council directs otherwise;
and,

WHEREAS, under the Borough Ordinance, a temporary lodging tax would be established and
apply to “temporary lodging,” defined as “a service to provide any structure or portion of a
structure, permanent or temporary, fixed or mobile, in which a person, for money or other
consideration, may obtain lodging, dwelling or sleeping accommodations for less than one
month,” and excludes any motor home or tent not provided by the seller; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Kenai does not currently have a bed tax and, if adopted and approved by
voters, Borough Ordinance 2019-09 would allow the City to participate in a Borough-wide bed tax
levied by cities within the Borough in which the borough-wide bed tax would be collected by the
Borough and fifty percent (50%) remitted to the City; and,

WHEREAS, the revenue generated from the Borough portion of the bed tax would be used for
educational purposes and make other Borough revenues available to offset visitor costs, the City
would be able to designate where to direct its portion of the bed tax; and,

WHEREAS, this Resolution of support does not obligate the City to enact a bed tax but if a majority
of Borough qualified voters approved Borough Ordinance 2019-09 on the October 1, 2019 Kenai
Peninsula Borough ballot then the City must enact its own bed tax in order to participate in the
City’'s share in the Borough-wide rate remitted to the City of Kenai.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA:

71



Resolution No. 2019-30
Page 2 of 2

Section 1: That it supports Kenai Peninsula Borough Ordinance 2019-09, Amending the
Borough's Sales Tax Code to Levy a Tax on Temporary Lodging, Exempt Temporary Lodging
Rentals from the General Sales Tax, and Allow Cities that Levy a Similar Sales Tax on Temporary
Lodging to Exempt up to One-Half of The Borough’s Temporary Lodging Tax, Subject to Borough
Voter Approval.

Section 2: That a copy of this resolution be transmitted to Mayor Charlie Pierce and Kenai
Peninsula Borough Assembly Members.

Section 3:  That this resolution take effect immediately upon passage.

ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 15" day of May, 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

72



Vittage with a Fast, City with a Future”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014

ty www.kenai.city
KENAI, ALASKA
\\7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
FROM: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
DATE: May 6, 2019
SUBJECT: Resolution 2019-30 — Supporting Kenai Peninsula Borough Ordinance

2019-09 to Establish a Temporary Lodging Tax

Kenai Peninsula Borough Ordinance 2019-09 would establish a Temporary Lodging Tax, exempt
temporary lodging rentals from the General Sales Tax, and allow cities to exempt up to one half
of the Borough’'s Temporary Lodging Tax, subject to Borough voter approval. Borough
Ordinances 2017-17 and 2017-29 as well as 2018-24, which would have asked voters to approve
a 6% and 12% bed tax, respectively, failed in 2017 and 2018. City of Kenai Resolution 2017-53
supported Borough Ordinance 2017-17.

In 1991, the City enacted a Hotel/Motel bed tax of 5%, which was administered by the City and
transmitted by the operator and/or owner renting rooms. The tax was put in place to promote
economic development and tourism within the City but was suspended in 1996 until such time as
the Council directed otherwise. At the time, an area-wide bed tax was not in place, putting City of
Kenai businesses at a competitive disadvantage when local lodging was in low demand. The
suspension of the bed tax was due to the possibility of adverse impacts on Kenai hotel/motel
operators that asserted the tax made them uncompetitive with similar businesses outside of the
City of Kenai that did not have a bed tax. City of Kenai businesses have expressed that RV and
tent sites should be subject to any Temporary Lodging Tax to provide equity and assure
competitiveness with motels, hotels and bed and breakfasts. Council may want to consider
recommending the Assembly amend Borough Ordinance 2019-09 to include the taxation of RV
and tent sites.

If adopted and approved by voters, Borough Ordinance 2019-09 would allow the City to participate
in a Borough-wide 6% bed tax levied by cities within the Borough in which the borough-wide rate
of 12% would be collected by the Borough and 6% remitted to the City. The City’s participation in
a bed tax would include approximately 28 businesses operating as motels, hotels, or bed and
breakfasts within the City of Kenai and would not include motor homes or tents.

73



Page 2 of 2
Resolution 2019-30

Bed taxes are a common source of local government revenues. Other Alaska cities and boroughs
have a bed tax with rates that range from 4% to 12%. Opposition to a bed tax by the hotel and
travel industry is often lessened if some of the bed tax revenue is directed towards tourism
promotion efforts. If a bed tax was enacted, the Council could appropriate a portion of the
revenues specifically towards tourism marketing.

The City of Kenai attracts a significant number of visitors to the Kenai Peninsula each year, and
although visitors contribute to the economy, the City does not currently receive any direct revenue
from visitors to offset demands on public services other than the City’s share of general sales tax.
The estimated annual distribution of tax revenue of a 6% bed tax for a full fiscal year is
approximately $150,000 to the City of Kenai.

Support of Resolution 2019-30 does not obligate the City to enact a bed tax or determine the
distribution of revenue but supports placing an area-wide bed tax on the October 1, 2019 Kenai
Peninsula ballot.

Your consideration is appreciated.

74



Introduced by: Bagley

Date: 05/07/19
Hearing: 06/05/19
Action:

Vote:

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH
ORDINANCE 2019-09

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BOROUGH’S SALES TAX CODE TO LEVY A 12
PERCENT TAX ON TEMPORARY LODGING, EXEMPT TEMPORARY LODGING
RENTALS FROM THE GENERAL SALES TAX, AND ALLOW CITIES THAT LEVY
A SIMILAR SALES TAX ON TEMPORARY LODGING TO EXEMPT UP TO ONE-
HALF OF THE BOROUGH’S TEMPORARY LODGING TAX, SUBJECT TO VOTER

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

APPROVAL

the Kenai Peninsula Borough (“borough”) needs to raise revenue to protect the
general fund, which has been declining due to substantial losses in tax revenues
due to past increases in tax exemptions, the continuing and projected large decline
in state assistance to municipalities, other proposed cuts in municipal funding, and
the increasing reliance on borough funding for education; and

the borough is currently facing a potentially severe budget deficit for FY 2020;
and

currently 49 Alaska municipalities including cities and boroughs have a bed tax,
with bed tax rates that are based on a percentage of price ranging from 4 percent
to 12 percent; and

the Kenai Peninsula Borough and the Aleutians East Borough are the only second-
class boroughs in the state without an additional sales tax on temporary lodging;
and

several hundred thousand visitors travel to the Kenai Peninsula each year and
contribute in a large way to the area’s economy but also create a large demand on
public services in the borough; and

impacted borough services include solid waste, roads, recreational and senior
citizen services, 911 and emergency services, hospital services and disaster
services; and

while the revenue to the borough generated from this additional sales tax on
temporary lodging would be used solely for educational purposes, it would also
make other borough revenues available to offset these visitor costs and help
maintain the fund balance; and

Kenai Peninsula Borough, Alaska ~ New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED] Ordinance 2019-09

Page 1 of 4

75



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

“temporary lodging” is currently defined in the borough sales tax code as “a
service to provide any lodging of less than one month”; and

to clarify that this tax does not apply to the rental of spaces for motor homes, tents,
and other similar temporary shelters not provided by the seller, and what is
considered temporary lodging, the definition of “temporary lodging” is amended,
and

a temporary lodging tax of 12 percent is estimated to generate approximately
$1,100,000 in additional revenues in FY2020 and $4,400,000 in FY2021 and
FY2022; and

to enable the cities to levy a similar tax and allow the tax to apply evenly
throughout the borough, the ordinance exempts from the borough’s 12 percent
temporary lodging tax an amount equal to a similar city tax of up to one-half of
the borough’s temporary lodging tax; and

as this includes an increase in the sales tax rate voter approval is required; and
this also specifically authorizes cities to levy a temporary lodging tax to ensure the

general law cities may legally do so under AS 29.45.700(a) after the borough
exempts temporary lodging from its general sales tax provisions in this ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE ASSEMBLY OF THE KENAI
PENINSULA BOROUGH:

SECTION 1.

KPB 5.18.100 is amended as follows:
5.18.100. General—Levied—Amount.

A. There is levied by the borough a consumer's sales tax of up to 3 percent
maximum rate on all retail sales, on all rents, and on all services made or
rendered within the borough, measured by the gross sales price of the
seller.

B. In addition to the tax levied in paragraph A of this section, there is levied
in the borough a sales tax on the rental of temporary lodging of up to 12
percent of the rental price of all such rentals within the borough, except as
specifically exempted herein.

C. In addition to the sales taxes levied by the borough, any municipality
within the borough may levy a consumer's sales tax and a temporary
lodging tax that may be included in their general sales tax, taxed separately,
or both, as provided by Alaska Statute which shall be reported, collected,
and enforced according to the terms of this chapter.

Ordinance 2019-09 New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED] Kenai Peninsula Borough, Alaska

Page 2 of 4

76



SECTION 2.

SECTION 3.

SECTION 4.

SECTION 5.

That KPB 5.18.200(A) is amended by amending paragraph 22, as follows:
5.18.200. Exemptions/waivers—Exemptions.
A. The following classes of retail sales, services and rentals are exempt:

22. The rental of temporary lodging shall be exempt from the
borough general sales tax levied pursuant to KPB 5.18.100(A).

That KPB 5.18.215 is hereby enacted, as follows:

5.18.215. Exemptions/waivers—Temporary lodging within cities in the
borough.

Rentals of temporary lodging within any city in the borough are exempt from the
borough’s temporary lodging room tax in an amount equal to a similar temporary
lodging tax that is either levied separately from or included in the city’s general
sales tax, or both, with a maximum total exemption of one-half of the borough’s
temporary lodging tax.

That KPB 5.18.900, Definitions, is hereby amended by amending the definition of
temporary lodging as follows:

5.18.900. Definitions.

When not clearly otherwise indicated by the context, the following words and
phrases, as used in this chapter, have the following meanings:

“Temporary lodging” [IS DEFINED AS] means a service to provide any structure
or portion of a structure, permanent or temporary, fixed or mobile, in which a
person, for money or other consideration, may obtain lodging, dwelling, or
sleeping accommodations for less than one month. This term includes hotels,
apartment hotels, motels, tourist homes, houses or courts, lodging houses, inns,
rooming houses, hostels, trailers, bed and breakfasts, dormitories except as
excluded below, and any other facility, structure, or room of whatever name where
space for lodging, dwelling, or sleeping may be secured for consideration. “Room”
excludes any self-contained and powered motor home or tent not provided by the
seller, tent or tent space, hospital, medical clinic, sanitarium, or nursing home; or
any student dormitory operated by a non-profit or public educational entity.

That a ballot proposition shall be placed before borough voters at the regular
election on October 1, 2019 to read as follows:

Kenai Peninsula Borough, Alaska ~ New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED] Ordinance 2019-09

Page 3 of 4

77



SECTION 6.

Shall Ordinance 2019-09 be approved? Ordinance 2019-09 establishes a borough
sales tax of up to 12 percent on temporary lodging, exempts temporary lodging
from the borough general sales tax, and exempts the amount of any city temporary
lodging tax up to one-half of the borough’s temporary lodging tax. “Temporary
lodging” includes a service to provide lodging as described in the ordinance of less
than one month for money or other consideration”.

Yes A “yes” vote means you approve of a borough temporary lodging
tax of up to 12 percent instead of the general sales tax on temporary lodging, with
an exemption for any similar tax on temporary lodging tax levied by a city on the
lodging. This exemption in cities cannot exceed one-half of the borough’s
temporary lodging tax.

No A “no” vote means you oppose a borough temporary lodging tax of
up to 12 percent instead of the existing general sales tax on temporary lodging,
with an exemption for any similar tax on temporary lodging tax levied by a city
on the lodging. This exemption in cities cannot exceed one-half of the borough’s
temporary lodging tax.

That Sections 5 and 6 of this ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
enactment of this ordinance. Sections 1, 2, 3 and 4 of this ordinance shall become
effective April 1, 2020, only if the proposition contained in Section 5 is approved
by a majority of voters voting on the question in the regular election of October 1,
2019.

ENACTED BY THE ASSEMBLY OF THE KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH ON THE *
DAY OF *, 20109.

ATTEST:

Wayne H. Ogle, Assembly President

Johni Blankenship, MMC, Borough Clerk

Yes:
No:

Absent:

Ordinance 2019-09 New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED] Kenai Peninsula Borough, Alaska

Page 4 of 4

78



Sponsored by: Administration

CITY OF KENAI
RESOLUTION NO. 2019 - 31

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, AWARDING A
CONTRACT FOR MANAGEMENT SERVICES TO PROVIDE SUMMER ICE ACTIVITIES AT
THE CITY OF KENAI MULTI-PURPOSE FACILITY.

WHEREAS, the City has been contracting with a contractor to provide summer ice at the Kenai
Multi-Purpose Facility during the months of May through September; and,

WHEREAS, in exchange for the payment of utilities the contractor maintains the facility and
independently runs certain services including youth camps, tournaments and public skates
benefiting the local community; and,

WHEREAS, the City’'s three year contract to maintain the facility and perform management and
administrative services for summer ice ended September 30, 2018; and,

WHEREAS, the City advertised in the Clarion Newspaper and solicited other potential interest for
managing the facility for summer ice activities; and,

WHEREAS, Red Line Sports was the only response to the solicitation for management services
and the recommendation of the Administration is to award the Contract for Contract Management
Services to Red Line Sports; and,

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City of Kenai to authorize the City Manager to enter
into such agreement with Red Line Sports on behalf of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA:
Section 1. That a Contract for Management Services at the City of Kenai Multi-Purpose
Facility for summer ice activities is awarded to Red Line Sports and the City Manager is authorized
to execute an Agreement with generally the same terms as the previous agreement for the period
beginning May 25, 2019 and ending September 30, 2021.

Section 2. That this resolution takes effect immediately upon adoption.

ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 15 day of May, 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk




’%Z%ow with a Fast, &gg with a Fatuwre”
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794

Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

y
KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Robert J. Frates, Parks & Recreation Director
DATE: May 7, 2019
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2019-31 — Management Services Contract for Summer

Ice Activity at the Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility

Purpose of this correspondence is to notify you that the seasonal three year term contract for
management services to provide summer ice activities at the City of Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility
has expired.

The City advertised in the Clarion Newspaper and solicited other potential interest for managing
the facility for summer ice activities. Red Line Sports was the only response to the solicitation for
management services.

If approved, Red Line Sports will provide summer ice activities at the Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility
during the months of May through September in exchange for payment of utilities, Zamboni rental
and public skates benefiting the local community.

Thank you for your consideration.

80



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES AT

CITY OF KENAI MULTI-PURPOSE FACILITY

THIS AGREEMENT is made this ___ day of 2019, by and between

the CITY OF KENAI (Owner), 210 Fidalgo Avenue, Kenai, AK 99611-7794, and DBA Red Line
Sports (Contractor), owned by Vince Redford, an individual, 168 Trumpeter Ave, Soldotna, AK
99669(address).
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Owner desires to contract for annual management and administrative
services of the facility in order to provide summer ice at the Multi-Purpose Facility, and;

WHEREAS, the Owner advertised and solicited interest for the right to perform
management and administration services for the purpose of providing summer ice skating
activities, and;

WHEREAS, Red Line Sports and the Owner have come to an agreement regarding the
terms and conditions of such a contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

I. Beginning each year on May 23 through September 30 Contractor shall provide and
perform management and administration of the City of Kenai Multipurpose Facility for Summer
Ice Activities -beginning May 23, 2019 and ending September 30, 2021.

2. All personnel furnished by Contractor shall be employees of Contractor, and
Contractor shall pay all salaries and expenses of, and all federal social security taxes, federal and
state unemployment taxes, and any similar payroll taxes relating to such employees. Contractor
is an independent contractor, and it will not at any time directly or indirectly act as an agent,
servant, or employee of the Owner, or make any commitments or incur any liabilities on behalf of

the Owner without its express written consent.

Contract for Services at City of Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility Page 10f9

81



3. Contractor shall provide all proper safeguards and assume all risks incurred in
performing its services hereunder.

4. Contractor shall provide the insurance coverage set forth herein and deliver to
Owner certificates of insurance in accordance therewith within ten days of the signing of this
Agreement and before any services are performed under this Agreement.

5. Contractor is responsible for the direct supervision of its personnel through his
designated representative, and such representative shall in tum be available at all reasonable
times to report and confer with the designated agents of the Owner with respect to services
rendered. The designated agent for Contractor is Vince Redford.

6. Contractor agrees that the services to be provided hereunder shall be performed
by qualified, careful and efficient employees in strict conformity with the best practices and highest
applicable standards.

7. In exchange for the right to manage and administer the facility, Contractor agrees
to make monthly payments to the Owner for actual utility costs (less the City's average summer
carrying costs) and use of the City's Zamboni ($25 per day). The estimated cost based on
historical utility usage is approximately $13,389.90. An ice installation credit, representing the
costs of ice installation, will be credited to contractor as long as usable installed ice in a condition
meeting general industry standards remains in the facility as of September 30, of each year of the
contract. Contractor will be invoiced for utility costs and Zamboni use on the first day of each
following month, and payment to the owner will be due on the 15th of each month.

8. Ice Scheduling, reservations, scheduling and collection of program fees shall be
the responsibility of the Contractor. Public Skate times shall be offered throughout the week at a
minimum of 1.5 hours per week and a minimum of 2-hours per week shall be dedicated to Open

Skate. All Public Skate and Open Skate times shall be publicly advertised.

1. An estimate and example is provided in Attachment A.

Contract for Services at City of Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility Page 2 of 9

82



9. The Contractor shall perform ice installation and provide necessary material and
supplies, such as ice paint, line kits and goal kits.

10. The Ice Resurfacing Machine (Zamboni) is owned by the City of Kenai. The
Contractor and his/her designee shall perform all Zamboni driving and perform ice resurfacing at
scheduled times.

11. Purchase of propane for the purposes of filing the Zamboni shall be the
responsibility of the Contractor.

12. Routine Maintenance and Operations of Ice Resurfacing Machine (Zamboni) shall
be the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor shall perform the following routine
maintenance operations:

1. Perform oil/fluids and perform changes at manufacturer's prescribed
maintenance schedule.

2. Purchase lubricant and lubricate fittings and moving parts per
manufacturer's prescribed maintenance schedule.

3. Remove, install, and adjust Zamboni blades prior to and after sharpening.

The Contractor shall be responsible for sharpening of the blades.

4, Remove, change and install board brushes on Zamboni as needed.
5. Wash and wax Zamboni.
6. Regular maintenance of tires on Zamboni .

All major repair work such as, but not limited to, internal or external engine work, drive
train, auger bearings, hydraulic or cooling system leaks shall be the responsibility of the
Contractor. All repair work and preventative maintenance shall be documented and submitted to
the City of Kenai at the end of the summer ice session.

A daily inspection of the Zamboni shall be documented and submitted to the City of Kenai
at the end of the summer session.

13. The Contractor shall perform ice edge maintenance as necessary.

Contract for Services at City of Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility Page 3 of 9

83



14. Lock-Up and Security. The Contractor shall be responsible for securing the
Zamboni and performing daily or nightly facility lock-up.

15. The Contractor shall assume responsibility for general cleanliness of Facility. This
shall include, but not limited to, cleaning of bleachers, sweeping of warming shacks, litter control,
sweeping/mopping of mats and perimeter area, and cleaning/disinfecting restroom facility, and
stocking of restroom products.

16. The Contractor shall be responsible for routine maintenance of the rink boards,
glass and goals. Routine maintenance of the rink boards and glass shall include, but not limited
to, light repair work and cleaning as needed.

17. Electrical. The City shall be responsible for maintenance of electrical components
related to the Facility, unless stated otherwise in the Agreement.

18. Refrigeration System. The Contractor shall be responsible for routine and
preventative maintenance of the refrigeration system as specified by the manufacturer.
Purchase of oil and refrigeration chemicals needed to operate the refrigeration system shall be
the responsibility of the Contractor.

The Contractor or his/her employees shall perform light repair work as needed to all
mechanical and machinery components related to the refrigeration system i.e., compressors,
pumps, belts, electrical circuits, plumbing, motors and controls with exception to warranty work.
The system shall be inspected daily and maintained in good functioning order required to operate
the facility and make artificial ice. All daily inspection and maintenance records shall be posted
for review and submitted to the City at the end of season.

The Contractor shall follow industry standards and be sensitive to energy costs by
operating the refrigeration system in the most efficient manner possible without sacrificing quality
of ice. This may include, but is not limited to, monitoring outside temperatures, shutting down

compressor and pumps at night, and maintaining proper ice thickness.

Contract for Services at City of Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility Page 4 of 9

84



19. Major repair work or replacement of machinery and equipment shall be the
responsibility of the Contractor. Major repair work may include, but is not limited to, internal or
external engine or equipment work.

The City will be responsible for administering subcontracts or agency agreements related
to the O&M of the Facility and the refrigeration system, if needed.

20. Permits, Regulations and Certificates. The Contractor or any of his/her designees
working with or handling Freon must possess a valid EPA Recovery Technician Type Il Certificate.
Proof of certification must be submitted to the City and a copy of such certification posted on the
premises.

The Contractor and his/her designee must comply with all applicable federal, state and
local government laws, regulations and permits.

21. The Contractor shall be responsible for all related utility costs.

22. Insurance Requirements & Indemnification:

a. General
The Contractor shall not commence work until he has obtained all
insurance required under this section and has satisfied the City in this
respect; nor shall he allow any subcontractor to commence work until he
also has obtained similar insurance which is applicable to his work. The
Contractor shall maintain insurance throughout the life of this Contract.
Such insurance shall be by a company/corporation currently rated "A-"or
better by A.M. Best.

b. Workmen's Compensation Insurance
The Contractor shall obtain and maintain during the life of this Contract,
workmen's compensation insurance for all employees who will work on this
project, and if any work is sublet, the Contractor shall require the
subcontractor similarly to provide such insurance for all of the latter's

Contract for Services at City of Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility Page 5 of 9

85



employees unless they are included under the protection afforded by the
Contractor. If employees engaged in hazardous work are not protected
under the AS23.30, by workmen's compensation insurance, the Contractor
and any subcontractor who is affected must provide compensation
insurance with a private company which in amount shall be equivalent to
that provided by the Alaska workmen's compensation insurance for the
protection of employees who are not so engaged.
The minimum limits of coverage shall be:

(A) Alaska Worker's Compensation and (A) Statutory
(B) Employer's Liability Insurance (B) $1,000,000 per occurrence

All workman's compensation policies or endorsements thereto shall in all cases where
possible contain a waiver of subrogation against the City.

C. Bodily Injury, Property Damage and Vehicle Liability Insurance

The Contractor shall obtain and maintain in force during the life of this
Contract such general liability and property-damage insurance as shall
protect the City and the Contractor against losses which may result from
claims for damages for personal injury, including accidental death, as well
as from claims for property damages, which may arise from any operations
under this Contract, whether such operations be those of the Contractor, a
subcontractor or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them
and the amount of such insurance shall be as follows unless modified by
the Special Provisions of these specifications.

The minimum limits of coverage shall be:

General Liability $1,000,000
Bodily Injury & Property Damage (Five Hundered Thousand Dollars)

Combined Single Limit per occurrence
Auto Liability with included Operations, $300,000
Contractual Liability, and Owned, Hired, (Three Hundred Thousand Dollars)
and Non-owned Vehicles Combined Single Limit per occurrence

Contract for Services at City of Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility Page 6 of 9



All general liability policies or endorsements thereto shall in all cases where possible name
the City as Additional Named Insured thereunder and shall contain a waiver of subrogation
against the City.
d. Subcontractor's Bodily Injury and Property Damage Insurance and Vehicle
Liability Insurance
The Contractor shall either (1) require each of his subcontractors to procure
and to maintain during the life of his subcontract, Subcontractor's Bodily
Injury and Property Damage Insurance and Vehicle Liability Insurance of
the type and in the amounts specified in subparagraph (c) hereof or, (2)
insure the activities in his policy, specified in subparagraph (c) hereof.
e. Scope of Insurance
The insurance required under subparagraphs (c¢) and (d) hereof shall
provide adequate protection for the Contractor and his subcontractors,
respectively, against damage claims which may arise from operations
under this Contract, whether such operations be by the insured or by
anyone directly or indirectly employed by him.
f. Proof of Carriage of Insurance
The Contractor shall furnish the City with certificates showing the type,
amount, class of operations covered, effective dates and date of expiration
of policies. Such certificates shall also contain substantially the following
statement: "The insurance covered by certificate will not be canceled or
materially altered, except after twenty (20) days written notice has been
received by letter by the City of Kenai."
23. Indemnification
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless

the City of Kenai and its agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages,

Contract for Services at City of Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility Page 7 of 9



losses and expenses including attorneys' fees arising out of or resulting from the performance of
the Work, provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense (1) is attributable to bodily
injury, sickness, disease, death or personal injury, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property
including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and (2) is caused in whole or in part by any negligent
act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by
any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, regardless of whether or not it
is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder .

In any and all claims against the City of Kenai or its agents, officers, or employees by any
employee of the Contractor, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of
them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under
this Article shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages,
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or any subcontractor under Worker's
Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

24, This Agreement may be terminated with cause by giving fifteen (15) days written
notice by certified mail to the other party. Cause is defined as the violation of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement. The City may terminate without cause with thirty (30) days written
notice. Termination of this Agreement by the Contractor without cause shall cause the Contractor
to be liable to the City for any increased costs of procuring the services provided in this Agreement
and any other damages provided by law. This Agreement, together with the attached
Specifications, contains all of the covenants and agreements between said parties with respect
to the subject matter of this Agreement.

25. The parties may by mutual written consent amend the terms of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the

date first above written.

CITY OF KENAI RED LINE SPORTS

Contract for Services at City of Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility Page 8 of 9



By: By:

Paul Ostrander Vince Redford
Its: City Manager Its: Owner
STATE OF ALASKA )
)ss

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )

THIS IS TO CERTIFY the foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this
day of , 2019, by Paul Ostrander, City Manager of the City of Kenai, a home
rule municipality, on behalf of the City.

Notary Public in and for Alaska
My Commission expires:

STATE OF ALASKA )
)ss
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )

THIS IS TO CERTIFY the foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this
day of , 2019, by Vince Redford, Owner of Red Line Sports., an Alaska
corporation, on behalf of the corporation.

Notary Public in and for Alaska
My Commission expires:

Approved as to form:

Scott M. Bloom
City Attorney

Contract for Services at City of Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility Page 9 of 9

89



ATTACHMENT A
Kenai Multi-Purpose Facility
Calculation of Facility Rental Rates for Summer of 2019

EXPLANATION/CALCULATION OF EXPENSES

Cost of Electricity per Month $12,500.00 (513,800 less average summer cost of $1,300/month)

Cost of Natural Gas per Month $ 140.00 (S300 less average summer cost of $160/month)

COST OF ICE INSTALLATION (IF ICE STAYS IN UNTIL HOCKEY SEASON)

Description of Cost Item Unit Quantity Unit Cost  Sub-Total

Ice Paint/Stripe Kit EA 1 S 500.00 S 500.00
Ice Maintenance Contractor HR 40 S 40.00 $ 1,600.00
Laborer HR 8 S 20.00 $ 160.00
Electricity Day 3 S 416.67 $1,250.01
Natural Gas Day 3 S 14.00 S 42.00
Total $3,552.01

DAILY COST OF ICE OPERATION

Description of Cost Item Unit Quantity Unit Cost  Sub-Total
Electricity Day 1 $ 416.67 $ 416.67
Natural Gas Day 1 S 467 S 4.67
Zamboni Day 1 S 25.00 $§ 25.00
Total S 446.34

90



Sponsored by: Administration

CITY OF KENAI
RESOLUTION NO. 2019 - 32
A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, AUTHORIZING AN

AMENDMENT TO THE AIRPORT ADVERTISING CONCESSION AGREEMENT FOR THE
KENAI MUNICIPAL AIRPORT.

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2017 the Kenai City Council adopted a resolution authorizing the City
Manager to enter into an Agreement with the Concessionaire based upon certain terms and
conditions covering operation of the terminal advertising concession at the Airport; and,

WHEREAS, the terminal rehabilitation project will temporarily disrupt the Concessionaire’s
business and require additional capital investment from the Concessionaire; and,

WHEREAS, the City and the Concessionaire mutually desire to amend the existing Terminal
Advertising Concession Agreement for the benefit of both parties, by addressing costs of new
display improvements, temporary reduced fees, and a 3-year extension.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA:

Section 1: That the City Manager is authorized to enter into an Airport Advertising Concession
Agreement with Alaska Channel for the period of March 1, 2017 through February 28, 2025.

Section 2: That this resolution take effect immediately upon passage.

ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 15" day of May, 20109.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

91



’%Z%ya with a Fast &gg with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Mary L. Bondurant, Airport Manager
DATE: May 6, 2019
SUBJECT: Resolution 2019-32 — Terminal Advertising Concession

The terminal rehabilitation project will make extensive changes to areas in the terminal that are
currently used by the advertising concessionaire.

In order to accommodate these changes, the Airport and Alaska Channel have agreed to
modernize the wall displays bringing a visual enhancement that eyes will be drawn to when
entering the terminal building. The current displays are old and tired. New tension displays will
add to the new aesthetics, function, ambiance, and can be put any place.

Current advertisers are excited for the upgrades and new advertisers are waiting for the
completion of the terminal rehabilitation project to enter the program.

Thank you for your consideration.

92



FIRST AMENDMENT TO CITY OF KENAI
KENAI MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
TERMINAL ADVERTISING CONCESSION AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made this ___ day of May, 2019, between the City of
Kenai (City), whose address is 210 Fidalgo, Kenai, AK 99611, and Alaska Channel
(Concessionaire), whose address is 507 E. Street, Suite 206, Anchorage, AK 99501.

RECITALS

A. The City owns and operates the Kenai Municipal Airport and Airport Terminal Building
(collectively “Airport”), located in Kenai, Alaska.

B. On March 1, 2017, the Kenai City Council adopted a resolution authorizing the City
Manager to enter into an Agreement with the Concessionaire based upon certain terms and
conditions covering operation of the terminal advertising concession at the Airport.

C. The City has undertaken an extensive terminal remodel project that will temporarily disrupt
Concessionaire’s business in the terminal and require additional capital investment from the
Concessionaire once the project is complete.

D. The City and Concessionaire mutually desire to amend the existing Terminal Advertising
Concession Agreement for the benefit of both parties.

The City and Concessionaire therefore agree as follows:

1. Amend Article 11- Term, of the Agreement to read as follows:

ARTICLE II-TERM

A. Term: The term of this Agreement is effective as of March 1, 2017 through midnight of
February 28, 2025, unless terminated earlier as provided herein.

B. Holding Over: If the Concessionaire holds over, provides services, and remains in
possession of the Premises without a written renewal or extension of this Agreement, the City’s
allowance of continued operations by Concessionaire does not operate as a renewal or extension
of the rights granted under this Agreement, and, instead the parties agree that this creates only a
month-to-month extension, regardless of any payment the City accepts. The Concessionaire’s
obligations to perform under this Agreement will continue until either it or the City terminates the
services under this Agreement by giving the other party at least 10 days’ written notice. The
payment due for any extended period during which services are provided without a written
extension of this Agreement is the monthly rent as it would have been due for the preceding year
and plus the applicable percentage rent due for that period of additional operation and such
payments shall be payable in the same manner.

First Amendment To Airport Concession Agreement with Alaska Channel Page 1 of 5

93



2. Amend Article V-Rent, Fees, Taxes and Payments, of the Agreement to read as
follows:

ARTICLE V- RENT, FEES, TAXES, AND PAYMENTS

A. For the rights and privileges granted under this Agreement, and Concessionaires agreement
to make a capital investment in the Kenai Airport Terminal as provided in the April 15, 2019
Revised Budget for Non Lit Tension Fabric Displays & 2 Digital Displays with Digital Signage,
Attached hereto as Exhibit 1, Concessionaire shall pay the City:

1. From the effective date of this First Amendment until August 1, 2020, or 6 months after
renovations are substantially completed, whichever comes later, a percentage payment of
30% of annual gross revenue plus applicable sales tax.

2. (a) After August 1, 2020, or 6 months after renovations are substantially completed,
whichever comes later, a minimum annual guaranteed amount of Nine-Thousand Dollars
(%$9,000), plus applicable sales tax. The percent payment, of 30% on annual gross revenue
beyond the minimum annual guaranteed amount will be retained by Concessionaire until
the total retainage equals $14,264.

(b) Thereafter, Concessionaire will make payments to the City as follows: $9,000
minimum annual guaranteed amount or the percent of gross revenue payments below
(including applicable sales tax) whichever is higher:

Year One 30 %
Year Two 30 %
Year Three 30%
Year Four 30 %
Year Five 30 %
Year Six 30 %
Year Seven 30 %
Year Eight 31%

Concessionaire shall furnish to the Airport each month a statement showing total Gross Revenue
by advertiser, as defined herein, for the preceding month. After subsection 2(a) above is
completed, with each monthly statement, the Concessionaire shall remit to the Airport 1/12™" of
the MAG and the above stated percentage of its Gross Revenue, in excess of $30,000, derived
through the end of the reporting month.

The monthly statements and payment will be paid by the 20th day of the month following the last
day of the reporting month of service. For purposes of this Agreement, annual revenue will include
all revenue earned from the first day of this Agreement and end one calendar year thereafter.
Concessionaire agrees to remit payments to the City at Kenai, City Hall, in United States currency,

First Amendment To Airport Concession Agreement with Alaska Channel Page 2 of 5

94



either by check, cash, bank draft, or money order. Concessionaire will submit payments free from
any claim, demand, setoff, or counterclaim of any kind against the City.

After subsection 2(a) above is completed the percentage payment payable to the City by the
Concessionaire under this Agreement shall be owned by the City when the Concessionaire’s
annual gross revenue exceeds $30,000 and at the time of each customer transaction and will be
held in trust by the Concessionaire while the funds are in Concessionaire’s custody and control.
The Concessionaire is responsible for these fees until delivered to the City. If any fees payable to
the City are lost, stolen, or otherwise unlawfully removed from the custody and control of the
Concessionaire, the Concessionaire remains responsible to the City for the revenue.

Concessionaire shall pay for all telephone service to the assigned areas. The Airport shall pay for
all heating, air conditioning and electrical service provided to the Assigned Areas.

B. Unpaid Fees: Any rent, charge, fee, liquidated damage/penalty, interest, or other
consideration due but unpaid at the expiration or cancellation of this Agreement is a charge against
the Concessionaire and its property, real or personal, at the Airport or where otherwise located.
The City has any lien rights allowed by law. Either the City or its authorized agent may provide
enforcement.

C. Taxes: Concessionaire shall pay any borough, city, or other sales and property taxes due
on base rent, percentage rent, and any other fee due under this Agreement.

D. Other Fees: The City reserves the right to impose and collect charges and fees from
Concessionaire for the following:

1. The use of specified equipment, facilities, or services when such use is
requested by Concessionaire; and/or,
2. The privilege of accessing the Airport to conduct any business other than

an on-Airport advertising concession business.

E. Audit: In addition to the audit rights specified elsewhere herein, the City (itself or through
and/or its designated representatives) reserves the right to audit Concessionaire’s books and
records at any time for the purpose of verifying the Gross Revenue. If, as a result of such an audit,
it is established by the City that Concessionaire has understated the Gross Receipts received by
3% or more (after the deductions and exclusions provided for herein), the entire expense of said
audit shall be borne by Concessionaire Any amount found to be underpaid will be assessed to
Concessionaire along with penalty, audit costs, if applicable, and interest.

E. Revenue Diversion: Concessionaire shall not cause or allow to be diverted from the Airport
any of its advertising business in any manner to avoid or reduce its Gross Revenues upon which
its financial obligations owed the City is computed. In the event Concessionaire establishes, owns,
operates, or manages during the term hereof any advertising business within five miles of the
Airport, it agrees to make all books, records, and other pertinent documents of such advertising
business available for audit by the City and/or its designated representative to ensure compliance

First Amendment To Airport Concession Agreement with Alaska Channel Page 3 of 5

95



with this provision. If, as a result of such an audit, it is established by the City that Concessionaire
has understated the Gross Revenues received by 3% or more (after the deductions and exclusions
provided for herein), the entire expense of said audit shall be borne by Concessionaire. Any
amount found to be underpaid will be assessed to Concessionaire along with penalty, audit costs,
if applicable and interest.

3. The concessionaire understands that FAA regulations mandate compliance with Grant
Assurances and if problems develop with the extension, terms and conditions will be adjusted
to the extent necessary to satisfy FAA.

4. This First Amendment and all conditions and obligations under this Amendment shall be
effective as of 2019, regardless of the dates of signature below.

5. Except as expressly modified or stated herein, all other terms and conditions of
the KENAI MUNICIPAL AIRPORT TERMINAL ADVERTISING CONCESSION
AGREEMENT remain in full force and effect.

CITY OF KENAI CONCESSIONAIRE
By: By:
Paul Ostrander Date Yael Kaufman Date
Its: City Manager Its: General Manager
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
STATE OF ALASKA )
) SS.

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of , 2019, by,
Paul Ostrander, City Manager of the City of Kenai, an Alaska municipal corporation, on behalf of
the City.

NOTARY PUBLIC for State of Alaska
My Commission Expires:

STATE OF ALASKA )
) SS.

First Amendment To Airport Concession Agreement with Alaska Channel Page 4 of 5

96



THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of , 2019,
by Yeal Kaufman, General Manager of Alaska Channel, an Alaska corporation, on behalf of the
corporation.

NOTARY PUBLIC for State of Alaska
My Commission Expires:

ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, City Clerk

SEAL:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Scott Bloom, City Attorney

First Amendment To Airport Concession Agreement with Alaska Channel Page 5 of 5 97



Sponsored by: Administration

CITY OF KENAI
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-33

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, AUTHORIZING
CONTRACTS FOR EMPLOYEE HEALTH CARE AND OTHER BENEFITS EFFECTIVE JULY 1,
2019.

WHEREAS, as part of a comprehensive employee benefit package and pursuant to KMC
23.40.120 the City provides group medical, dental, vision, life, and supplemental life insurance to
its employees; and,

WHEREAS, the City’s current provider for this group medical and dental insurance is PREMERA
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Alaska, VSP for vision insurance, and UNUM for both life and
supplemental life insurance; and,

WHEREAS, PREMERA Blue Cross Blue Shield of Alaska has provided a no-shop renewal quote
plus a one-month premium holiday for continuing group medical and dental coverage at a
premium increase of X.XX% and minor changes to plan provisions; and,

WHEREAS, VSP has provided a renewal quote with no increase; and,

WHEREAS, has provided a quote with in rate per $1,000 of
insurance but a requested increase in the maximum amount of basic life insurance provided by
the City from the lesser of one and one-half (1 1/2) an employee’s base pay or $65,000 to the
lessor of one and one-half (1 1/2) an employee’s base pay or $100,000; and,

WHEREAS, the estimated increase in the maximum City provided life insurance amount is
estimated to cost $X,XXX annually; and,

WHEREAS, providing quality major medical, dental, vision, life, and supplemental life insurance
is a component of a comprehensive compensation package which allows the City to recruit and
retain quality employees to provide the services of the City for its residents.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA:

Section 1. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute a contract with
PREMERA Blue Cross Blue Shield of Alaska to provide group medical and dental insurance to
the employees of the City of Kenai effective July 1, 2019 for an estimated annual premium of
BX, XXX, XXX.

Section 2. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute a contract with VSP
to provide vision insurance to the employees of the City of Kenai effective July 1, 2019 for an
estimated annual premium of $15,858.

98



Resolution No. 2019-33
Page 2 of 2

Section 3. That the City Council authorizes the City Manager to execute a contract with
to provide life and supplemental life insurance to the employees of the City of Kenai
effective July 1, 2019 for an estimated annual premium of $XX,XXX.

Section 4. That this resolution takes effect immediately upon passage.

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 15" day of May, 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

Approved by Finance:

99



KENAI CITY COUNCIL — REGULAR MEETING
MAY 1, 2019 - 6:00 P.M.
KENAI CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
210 FIDALGO AVE., KENAI, AK 99611
VICE MAYOR TIM NAVARRE, PRESIDING

MINUTES

A. CALL TO ORDER

A Regular Meeting of the Kenai City Council was held on May 1, 2019, in City Hall Council
Chambers, Kenai, AK. Vice Mayor Navarre called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00
p.m.

1. Pledge of Allegiance
Vice Mayor Navarre led those assembled in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Roll Call

There were present:

Brian Gabriel, Mayor (absent) Robert Molloy
Henry Knackstedt Tim Navarre
Jim Glendening Robert Peterkin

Glenese Pettey
A quorum was present.
Also in attendance were:
**Tristan Summers, Student Representative
Paul Ostrander, City Manager
Scott Bloom, City Attorney
Jamie Heinz, City Clerk
3. Agenda Approval

Mayor Gabriel noted the following revisions to the packet:

Add to item D.1. Ordinance No. 3061-2019
¢ Amendment Memo

Add to item D.2. Ordinance No. 3062-2019
e Amendment Memo

MOTION:

Council Member Molloy MOVED to approve the agenda with the requested revisions to the packet
and requested UNANIMOUS CONSENT. Council Member Glendening SECONDED the motion.

100



VOTE: There being no objections, SO ORDERED.
4. Consent Agenda
MOTION:

Council Member Knackstedt MOVED to approve the consent agenda and requested
UNANIMOUS CONSENT. Council Member Molloy SECONDED the motion.

Vice Mayor Navarre opened the floor for public comment; there being no one wishing to be heard,
the public comment period was closed.

VOTE: There being no objections, SO ORDERED.

*All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered to be routine and non-controversial
by the council and will be approved by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a council member so requests, in which case the item
will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in its normal sequence on
the agenda as part of the General Orders.

B. SCHEDULED PUBLIC COMMENTS — None.

C. UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC COMMENTS

None.

D. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Ordinance No. 3061-2019 — Amending Kenai Municipal Code 14.20.320 - Definitions,
14.20.330 - Standard for Commercial Marijuana Establishments and 14.22.010 - Land
Use Table, to Incorporate Onsite Consumption of Marijuana at Retail Marijuana
Establishments into the City Of Kenai's Code of Ordinances. (Legal)

MOTION:

Council Member Molloy MOVED to enact Ordinance No. 3061-2019 and Council Member
Peterkin SECONDED the motion.

Vice Mayor Navarre opened for public hearing.

Sherry Innes spoke against the ordinance noting the recent crime and her understanding it was
related to drugs. She added she was opposed to marijuana when it was initially legalized in the
state and expressed concern for those consuming, and then getting on the road to drive home.
There being no one else wishing to be heard, the public hearing was closed.

An overview of the Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation was provided.

Whether there was a need for the endorsement in the community, local operators intent to apply
for the endorsement, concerns about testing levels in a person’s system when driving, length of

101

City of Kenai Council Meeting Page 2 of 8
May 1, 2019



time marijuana stays in a person’s system, not wanting to put drivers on roads at risk, and minimal
public input regarding the matter were topics discussed.

MOTION TO AMEND:

Council Member Molloy MOVED to amend section 2 of the ordinance to read: “(a) Commercial
marijuana establishments and indoor only onsite consumption endorsements may be permitted
or allowed with a conditional use permit under KMC 14.20.150, as provided in the City of Kenai's
land use table, KMC 14.22.010, and the provisions of this section,” and Council Member
Knackstedt SECONDED the motion.

It was noted the effect was to limit consumption to indoor only. Clarification was provided that
there were regulations in place for odor control.

VOTE ON THE AMENDMENT:

YEA: Knackstedt, Glendening, Pettey, Navarre, Molloy, Peterkin

’l‘\’l*g:ﬁdent Representative Summers: YEA

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

MOTION TO AMEND:

Council Member Molloy MOVED to amend section 2 of the ordinance to read: “(k) An onsite
consumption endorsement may only be operated on a daily basis between the hours of 2:00 p.m.

and 10:00 p.m.” and Council Member Peterkin SECONDED the motion.

It was suggested there needed to be something in code to limit the hours as there was nothing in
state law.

VOTE ON THE AMENDMENT:

YEA: Knackstedt, Glendening, Pettey, Navarre, Molloy, Peterkin

NAY:

**Student Representative Summers: YEA

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

MOTION TO AMEND:

Council Member Molloy MOVED to amend by adding a fifth whereas clause to read, “whereas, to
protect public health and safety, hours of operation of onsite consumption endorsements are
limited to between 2:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m.; and.” Council Member Knackstedt SECONDED the
motion and requested UNANIMOUS CONSENT.

VOTE ON THE AMENDMENT: There being no objections, SO ORDERED.

MOTION TO AMEND:

102

City of Kenai Council Meeting Page 3 of 8
May 1, 2019



Council Member Knackstedt MOVED to amend by adding a sixth whereas to read, “whereas, to
protect public health and safety as well as minimize conflicts between onsite consumption and
adjacent businesses, residences and the public, outdoor onsite consumption is prohibited; and,”
and requested UNANIMOUS CONSENT. Council Member Molloy SECONDED the motion.

VOTE ON THE AMENDMENT: There being no objections, SO ORDERED.
There was no objection to opening for additional public comment.

Ryan Tunseth spoke in favor of the ordinance noting if the liberty of doing something was allowed
under the law, it should be allowed. He added that the Marijuana Control Board made an effort
to clarify the freestanding building clause in the law; also added that the recent movement of the
enforcement division of the marijuana licensing division caused difficulty in understanding how
enforcement worked and who reported to who. Ryan suggested there wasn't a huge need for
onsite consumption but there was some need such as renters that couldn’t consume where they
rented.

There being no one else wishing to speak; public comment was closed.

Clarification was provided that the ordinance failing was not the same as prohibiting the
endorsement and, if the desire was to prohibit the endorsement, an ordinance prohibiting would
be needed to brought forth.

VOTE ON THE MAIN MOTION AS AMENDED:

YEA: Molloy, Peterkin
NAY: Knackstedt, Glendening, Pettey, Navarre
**Student Representative Summers: NAY

MOTION FAILED.

2. Ordinance No. 3062-2019 — Increasing FY2019 General Fund Estimated Revenues
and Appropriations by $20,859 And FY2020 General Fund Estimated Revenues And
Appropriations by $35,418 in the General Fund Parks, Recreation, and Beautification
Department for the Receipt of a Grant from the United States Environmental Protection
Agency Passed Through the State of Alaska Department of Environmental
Conservation for Bacteria Level Monitoring on the City’s Beaches during the 2019-
2020 Personal Use Fishery. (Administration)

MOTION:

Council Member Knackstedt MOVED to enact Ordinance No. 3062-2019 and Council Member
Molloy SECONDED the motion.

Vice Mayor Navarre opened the public hearing.
Maggie Harings thanked Council for support in the past and asked for continued support. She

provided clarification on the Kenai Watershed Forum'’s testing process and their interactions with
the State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC).

103

City of Kenai Council Meeting Page 4 of 8
May 1, 2019



Branden Bornemann clarified what was said to the media in 2018 adding that if there was an
exceedance, DEC was obligated to publicly notice within 24 hours. He explained that he
negotiated in this year’s contract, City of Kenai involvement in the public noticing prior to releasing.
Finally, Branden clarified there was funding for one set of samples to have DNA testing.

There being no one else wishing to be heard, public hearing was closed.
MOTION TO AMEND:

Council Member Knackstedt MOVED to amend the last line in the title to read, “bacteria level
monitoring on the City’s beaches from May to September during 2019 and 2020, “amend the first
whereas clause to read, “whereas, the State of Alaska Department of Environmental
Conservation has issued a grant to the City for bacterial level monitoring from May to September
during 2019 and 2020; and,” amend the third whereas clause to read, “whereas, bacteria levels
during the testing period in the past have exceeded water recreation standards established by
the State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation in Register 226 that could pose a
health risk to the fishery participants and City residents utilizing the beach; and,” and amend the
final whereas clause to read, “whereas, it is in the best interest of the City to monitor the bacterial
level on its beaches.” and Council Member Molloy SECONDED the motion. UNANIMOUS
CONSENT was requested.

VOTE ON THE AMENDMENT: There being no objections, SO ORDERED.

VOTE ON THE MAIN MOTION:

YEA: Knackstedt, Glendening, Pettey, Molloy, Peterkin, Navarre

NAY:

**Student Representative Summers: YEA

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

3. Resolution No. 2019-27 — Pertaining to the Authorized Investments of, the Investment

Allocations of, and Establishing Appropriate Benchmarks to Measure Performance of
the City's Permanent Funds for Calendar Year 2019. (Administration)

MOTION:

Council Member Molloy MOVED to adopt Resolution No. 2019-27 and Council Member Peterkin
SECONDED the motion.

Vice Mayor Navarre opened the public hearing; there being no one wishing to be heard, public
hearing was closed.

VOTE:
YEA: Knackstedt, Glendening, Pettey, Molloy, Peterkin, Navarre
NAY:

**Student Representative Summers: YEA

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.

104

City of Kenai Council Meeting Page 5 of 8
May 1, 2019



E.

MINUTES

1.*Regular Meeting of April 17, 2019

Approved by the consent agenda.

2.*Work Session of April 18, 2019

Approved by the consent agenda.

3.*Special Meeting of April 23, 2019

Approved by the consent agenda.

F.

G.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS — None.

NEW BUSINESS

1.

*Action/Approval — Bills to be Ratified. (Administration)

Approved by the consent agenda.

2.

*Action/Approval — Purchase Orders Over $15,000. (Administration)

Approved by the consent agenda.

3.

*Ordinance No. 3063-2019 — Adopting the Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year
Commencing July 1, 2019 and Ending June 30, 2020 and Committing $500,000 of
General Fund, Fund Balance for Capital Improvements, Amending the Salary
Schedule in Kenai Municipal Code Chapter 23.55- Pay Plan, Amending Employee
Classifications in Kenai Municipal Code Chapter 23.50, and Amending
Communication Department Uniform Allowance in Kenai Municipal Code Chapter
23.55. (Administration)

Introduced by the consent agenda and public hearing set for May 15.

4.

*Ordinance No. 3064-2019 — Increasing Estimated Revenues and Appropriations by
$339.90 in the General Fund — Police Department for State Traffic Grant Overtime
Expenditures. (Administration)

Introduced by the consent agenda and public hearing set for May 15.

5.

*Ordinance No. 3065-2019 — Accepting and Appropriating a Volunteer Fire
Assistance (VFA) Grant From the United States Department of Agriculture Forest
Service Passed Through the State of Alaska Division of Forestry for the Purchase of
Forestry Firefighting Equipment. (Administration)

Introduced by the consent agenda and public hearing set for May 15.

H.

COMMISSION/COMMITTEE REPORTS

City of Kenai Council Meeting Page 6 of 8

May 1, 2019

105



1. Council on Aging — restated his report from the April 17 meeting; next meeting May 9.

2. Airport Commission — No report; next meeting May 9.

3. Harbor Commission — No report; next meeting rescheduled to May 13.

4. Parks and Recreation Commission — No report; next meeting May 2.

5. Planning and Zoning Commission — It was reported that at their April 24 meeting the
Commission approved a resolution supporting onsite marijuana consumption. Also
noted the Commission discussed alcohol establishments not being included in the land
use table and commissioners expressed gratitude for training for commissioners in the
budget; next meeting May 8.

6. Beautification Committee — No report; next meeting May 14.

7. Mini-Grant Steering Committee — No report.

REPORT OF THE MAYOR

Vice Mayor Navarre reiterated that the Mayor had presented proclamations for National
Youth Week and Sexual Assault Awareness Month on April 17.

ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

1. City Manager — P. Ostrander reported on the following:

Met with the State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation
regarding the Kenai River;

The draft budget had been distributed,;

Spoke about the City on a radio talk show;

Noted John Wichmann had retired from the fire department;

In discussions regarding consolidating Soldotna and Kenai animal shelters into
Kenai’'s shelter;

Noted an upcoming Alaska Municipal League meeting regarding online sales tax
collection, statewide;

Engaging the federal delegation regarding Wildwood Road ownership;

The next concession being impacted by the Terminal Rehabilitation Project, the
advertising concession, would be coming forth for amendments;

Working with the Boys and Girls Club on management of the Recreation Center.

2. City Attorney — No Report.

3. City Clerk — J. Heinz reported the deadline for adopting ballot proposition language
was August 7 and a bill to change state election procedures to by mail had been
introduced in the legislature.

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT

1. Citizens Comments (Public comment limited to five (5) minutes per speaker)

City of Kenai Council Meeting

May 1, 2019

Page 7 of 8

106



Sherry Innes noted she enjoyed watching the officials discuss the matters before them and
appreciated the time taken on the matters adding that government doesn’t have to say “yes” to
every request. She also encouraged preservation of the outdoor lifestyle that is prevalent in Kenai
and spoke in favor of the local schools.

2. Council Comments
Council Member Pettey thanked those that testified.

Council Member Glendening thanked Vice Mayor Navarre for running the meeting and thanked
the City Manager for updates to the important issues. He also noted he would be absent from the
next meeting.

Council Member Peterkin appreciated the discussion and thanked the City Manager for his work.

Student Representative Summers noted end-of-year testing was taking place and provided an
update on upcoming musical competitions.

Council Member Molloy thanked the student representative for his report, John Williams for the
Cook Inlet Regional Citizen’s Advisory Council report, and Andeavor for the information regarding
the project to convert the AK Liquid Natural Gas facility to a cool down facility; commended the
Vice Mayor for running a smooth meeting.

Council Member Knackstedt expressed gratitude to the Finance Director and staff for the draft
budget; attended the Kenaitze ground breaking ceremony for their education complex noting it
was a large development that would employ several in the city; attended the banquet for the 2019
Caring for the Kenai project development grant; noted the water line upgrade project at the Kenai
Spur Highway at Beaver Loop had not been awarded yet.

L. EXECUTIVE SESSION — None.

M. PENDING ITEMS — None.

N. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business before the Council, the meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m.

| certify the above represents accurate minutes of the Kenai City Council meeting of May 1, 2019.

Jamie Heinz, CMC
City Clerk

**The student representative may cast advisory votes on all matters except those subject to
executive session discussion. Advisory votes shall be cast in the rotation of the official council
vote and shall not affect the outcome of the official council vote. Advisory votes shall be recorded
in the minutes. A student representative may not move or second items during a council meeting.

107

City of Kenai Council Meeting Page 8 of 8
May 1, 2019



PAYMENTS OVER $15,000.00 WHICH NEED COUNCIL RATIFICATION
COUNCIL MEETING OF: MAY 15, 2019

VENDOR DESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT AMOUNT

PERS PERS VARIOUS LIABILITY 88,696.21
INTEGRITY JANITORIAL APRIL SERVICE AT CITY HALL NON-DEPARTMENTAL REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 1,389.00
PRECIOUS JANITORIAL APRIL SERVICE AT LIBRARY LIBRARY REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 2,795.00
PRECIOUS JANITORIAL APRIL SERVICE AT TERMINAL AIRPORT REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 4,495.00
PRECIOUS JANITORIAL APRIL SERVICE AT POLICE POLICE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 978.00
PRECIOUS JANITORIAL APRIL SERVICE AT VISITOR CENTER VISITOR CENTER REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 928.00
HOMER ELECTRIC ELECTRICITY USAGE VARIOUS UTILITIES 122,941.57
INVESTMENTS

VENDOR DESCRIPTION MATURITY DATE AMOUNT Effect. Int.
PIPER JAFFRAY U.S. GOV'T SECURITY 5/3/2021 245,000.00 2.45%
PIPER JAFFRAY U.S. GOV'T SECURITY 5/10/2022 245,000.00 2.45%
PIPER JAFFRAY U.S. GOV'T SECURITY 4/17/2024 247,361.80 2.8%
PIPER JAFFRAY U.S. GOV'T SECURITY 5/23/2022 245,000.00 2.45%

108



PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $15,000.00 WHICH NEED COUNCIL APPROVAL
COUNCIL MEETING OF: MAY 15, 2019

VENDOR DESCRIPTION DEPT. ACCOUNT AMOUNT

INCREASE OF EXISTING PURCHASE ORDER

VENDOR DESCRIPTION P.O. # - DEPT. REASON AMOUNT TOTAL PO AMT
ADDITIONAL
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES LIBRARY MATERIALS 117420 - LIBRARY MATERIALS 4,000.00 25,000.00

109



“/ . . . ”
Vittage with a Fast, City with a Future
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

O
KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Mary Jo Joiner, Library Director
DATE: May 7, 2019
SUBJECT: Increase to Purchase Order 117420

The City Council approved Resolution 2019-11 at their meeting on February 6, 2019.

The Resolution awarded a Three Year Agreement to Ingram Content Group for the Purchase of
Library Materials and authorized the issuance of a Purchase Order in the Amount of $21,000 for
the remainder of Fiscal Year 2019.

The Agreement is for a three year term with the option to execute two, one-year extensions.
Additional fiscal year Purchase Orders shall total $40,000 per year through the duration of the
agreement.

At this time the Library Director requests that Purchase Order 117420 be increased in the amount
of $4,000. This would bring the total amount of purchase orders to Ingram for Fiscal Year 2019 to
$39,000 more accurately representing the amount anticipated when we issued the Request for
Proposals and expenditures for future fiscal years as per the agreement.

Council consideration is respectfully requested.

110



’%2%;@ with a Fast &éy with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

Kﬂmkgﬁﬂm

MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
FROM: Jamie Heinz, City Clerk

DATE: May 3, 2019

SUBJECT: New Liquor License

The following establishment submitted an application to the Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office
for a new liquor license:
o Griffin Golf, LLC D/B/A Kenai Golf Course

Pursuant to KMC 2.40, a review of City accounts has been completed on the applicant and they
have satisfied all obligations to the City. With the approval of Council, a letter of non-objection to

the new liquor license will be forwarded to the ABC Board and the applicant.

Your consideration is appreciated.

111



210 Fidalgo Avenue, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794 xfixd
Telephone: 907-283-7535 / FAX: 907-283-3014 ‘| |'

1992 | 2011

I(EHAI!gI.ASI(A
k4l
MEMORANDUM
TO: David Ross, Chief of Police

Willie Anderson, Lands

Terry Eubank, Finance Department
Scott Bloom, Legal Department
Elizabeth Appleby, City Planner

FROM: Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk
DATE: April 23, 2019
RE: Liquor License Renewal

”l/t'//ﬂjf with a Past, City with a Future”

The Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office has sent notification that the following applicant has applied
for a new Liquor License #5788:

Applicant: Griffin Golf, LLC
D/B/A: Kenai Golf Course

Pursuant to KMC 2.40.010, it is determined to be in the public interest that holders of or applicants
for licenses issued by the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board of the State of Alaska shall have all
obligations to the City of Kenai on a satisfactory basis prior to the City Council approval of
any activity of said license holder or applicant.

Please review account(s) maintained by your department (i.e. water and sewer billings,
lease/property payment history, citations, etc.) by the above reference applicant. Initial whether
account(s) and/or payment plan(s) are current or delinquent. If accounts are delinquent, attach
information to this memorandum indicating amounts owed and for which accounts.

Please let me know if you have any questions. Once you have completed your section, please route
to the next department. Thanks!

b Poliﬁ Department é 50 initials
| have reviewed all records for my department and the applicant is current on obligations or obligations do not exist.

The appli has outstanding obligations and an additional page has been attached.
2. Finance __ initials

| have reviewed all records for my department and the applicant is current on obligations or obligations do not exist.
The applicant has outstanding obligations and an additional page has been attached.
3.Legal _ S 5 initials
Blﬂ:ave reviewed all records for my department and the applicant is current on obligations or obligations do not exist.
The applicant has outstagding obligations and an additional page has been attached.

4@uds Management initials
| have reviewed all records for my department and the applicant is current on obligations or obligations do not exist.

he applicant has outstanding obligations and an additional page has been attached.
5. Planning and Zoning initials

| have reviewed all records for my department and the applicant is current on obligations or obligations do not exist.

OThe applicant has outst dii%biigations and an additional page has been attached.
Returned to Clerk’s office: @,ﬁ J

V)

112



THE STATE

April 23,2019

City of Kenai

Attn: Jamie Heinz, City Clerk

VIA Email: jheinz@kenai.city

Cc: cityclerk@kenai.city
joanne@borough.kenai.ak.us
jblankenship@borough.kenai.ak.us
tshassetz@kpb.us

of Department of Commerce, Community,
’ and Economic Development
ALCOHOL & MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE

GOVERNOR MICHAEL J. DUNLEAVY 550 West 7t Avenue, Suite 1600
Anchorage, AK 99501

Main: 907.269.0350

License Type: Golf Course License Number: | 5788

Licensee: Griffin Golf, LLC

Doing Business As: Kenai Golf Course

Premises Address: 1500 Lawton Drive

New Application L] Transfer of Ownership Application
O Transfer of Location Application O Transfer of Controlling Interest Application

We have received a completed application for the above listed license (see attached application
documents) within your jurisdiction. This is the notice required under AS 04.11.480.

A local governing body may protest the approval of an application(s) pursuant to AS 04.11.480 by
furnishing the director and the applicant with a clear and concise written statement of reasons for the
protest within 60 days of receipt of this notice, and by allowing the applicant a reasonable opportunity to
defend the application before a meeting of the local governing body, as required by 3 AAC 304.145(d). If
a protest is filed, the board will deny the application unless the board finds that the protest is arbitrary,
capricious, and unreasonable. To protest the application referenced above, please submit your protest
within 60 days and show proof of service upon the applicant.

AS 04.11.491 — AS 04.11.509 provide that the board will deny a license application if the board finds that
the license is prohibited under as a result of an election conducted under AS 04.11.507.

AS 04.11.420 provides that the board will not issue a license when a local governing body protests an
application on the grounds that the applicant’s proposed licensed premises are located in a place within
the local government where a local zoning ordinance prohibits the alcohol establishment, unless the
local government has approved a variance from the local ordinance.

Sincerely,

Yuha M Grmeld

Erika McConnell, Director
amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov

113


mailto:jheinz@kenai.city
mailto:cityclerk@kenai.city
mailto:joanne@borough.kenai.ak.us
mailto:jblankenship@borough.kenai.ak.us
mailto:tshassetz@kpb.us
mailto:amco.localgovernmentonly@alaska.gov

Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office

S WARIA 550 W 7" Avenue, Suite 1600
fi"‘;f’-;eé = -.r?qv% Anchorage, AK 99501
\—/1_ v alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco

Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

rzor s Form AB-00: New License Application

Phone: 907.269.0350

What is this form?

This new license application form is required for all individuals or entities seeking to apply for a new liquor license. Applicants
should review Title 04 of Alaska Statutes and Chapter 304 of the Alaska Administrative Code. All fields of this form must be
completed, per AS 04.11.260 and 3 AAC 304.105.

This form must be completed and submitted to AMCO’s main office, along with all other required forms and
documents, before any license application will be considered complete.

Section 1 - Establishment and Contact Information

Enter information for the business seeking to be licensed.

Licensee: Griffin Golf, LLC

License Type: Golf Course Statutory Reference: 04.11.115
Doing Business As: Kenai Golf Course

Premises Address: 1500 Lawton Drive

City: Kenai State:  |AK 2P: 199611

Local Governing Body: C|ty of Kenai

Community Council: | Kenai City Council

Mailing Address: P.O. Box 289

City: Kenai State: AK ZIP: (99611

Designated Licensee: | Mark Griffin, Member

Contact Phone: 907-690-1398 Business Phone:
Contact Email: magriff30@hotmail.com
Yes No .
Seasonal License? |/ D If “Yes”, write your six-month operating period: Apr" 15-October 15
OFFICE USE ONLY
Complete Date: License Years: License #: 57 88’
Board Meeting Date: Transaction #: / ) U( l 2 %
Issue Date: BRE: Tl 2
[Form AB-00] (rev 10/10/2016) AMCC Page 1of5

MAR 1 8 2019

114



Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office

550 W 7" Avenue, Suite 1600

Anchorage, AK 99501
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco
Phone: 907.269.0350

Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

Form AB-00: New License Application

Section 2 - Premises Information

Premises to be licensed is:

an existing facility D a new building D a proposed building

The next two questions must be completed by beverage dispensary (including tourism) and package store applicants only:

What is the distance of the shortest pedestrian route from the public entrance of the building of your proposed premises to
the outer boundaries of the nearest school grounds? Include the unit of measurement in your answer.

What is the distance of the shortest pedestrian route from the public entrance of the building of your proposed premises to
the public entrance of the nearest church building? Include the unit of measurement in your answer.

Section 3 - Sole Proprietor Ownership Information

This section must be completed by any sole proprietor who is applying for a license. Entities should skip to Section 4.
If more space is needed, please attach a separate sheet with the required information.
The following information must be completed for each licensee and each affiliate (spouse).

This individual is an: |:| applicant D affiliate

Name:

Address:

City: State: ZIP:

This individual is an: l:’ applicant |:| affiliate

Name:

Address:

City: State: ZIP:

[Form AB-00] (rev 10/10/2016) A MC(Pree20f5 115

MAR 1 372013




Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

Form AB-00: New License Application

Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office

550 W 7" Avenue, Suite 1600
Anchorage, AK 99501
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco

Phone: 907.269.0350

Section 4 - Entity Ownership Information

This section must be completed by any entity, including a corporation, limited liability company (LLC), partnership, or limited
partnership, that is applying for a license. Sole proprietors should skip to Section 5.

If more space is needed, please attach a separate sheet with the required information.
o If the applicant is a corporation, the following information must be completed for each stockholder who owns 10% or more of

the stock in the corporation, and for each president, vice-president, secretary, and managing officer.

e |fthe applicant is a limited liability organization, the following information must be completed for each member with an

ownership interest of 10% or more, and for each manager.

e If the applicant is a partnership, including a limited partnership, the following information must be completed for each partner

with an interest of 10% or more, and for each general partner.

Entity Official: Mark Griffin
Title(s): Member Phone: ?a 7690/398 % Owned: |50
Address: 47083 Belmont Court
City: Kenai State: | AK ZIP: (99611
Entity Official: Lara Griffin
Title(s): Member Phone: | 997 392 57,4 | %Owned: |50
Address: 47083 Belmont Court
City: Kenai State: | AK ZIP: 199611
Entity Official:
Title(s): Phone: % Owned:
Address:
City: State: ZIP:
Entity Official:
Title(s): Phone: % Owned:
Address:
City: State: ZIP:

[Form AB-00] (rev 10/10/2016) . Page 3 of 5

AMCO

MAR 1 8 2019

116




Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office

550 W 7™ Avenue, Suite 1600

Anchorage, AK 99501
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco

Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

Form AB-00: New License Application

This subsection must be completed by any applicant that is a corporation or LLC. Corporations and LLCs are required to be in good
standing with the Alaska Division of Corporations (DOC) and have a registered agent who is an individual resident of the state of

Alaska.

DOC Entity #: 10095955 AK Formed Date: (12/11/2018 Home State: |AK

Registered Agent: Mark Griffin Agent’s Phone: 1907-690-1398

Agent’'s Mailing Address: |47083 Belmont Court

City: Kenai State: AK 2IP: 99611
Residency of Agent: Yes No

Is your corporation or LLC's registered agent an individual resident of the state of Alaska? D
Section 5 - Other Licenses

Ownership and financial interest in other alcoholic beverage businesses: Yes No

Does any representative or owner named in this application have any direct or indirect financial interest in |:|
any other alcoholic beverage business that does business in or is licensed in Alaska?

If “Yes”, disclose which individual(s) has the financial interest, what the type of business is, and if licensed in Alaska, which
license number(s) and license type(s):

Section 6 - Authorization

Communication with AMCO staff: Yes No

Does any person other than a licensee named in this application have authority to discuss this license with D
AMCO staff?

If “Yes”, disclose the name of the individual and the reason for this authorization:

Gregory D. Stein, Attorney

[Form AB-00] (rev 10/10/2016) AMCO Page 4 of 5

MAR 1 8 2019

Phone: 907.269.0350

117




Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office

550 W 7" Avenue, Suite 1600

Anchorage, AK 99501
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov
https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco
Phone: 907.269.0350

Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

Form AB-00: New License Application

e
Section 7 - Certifications
Read each line below, and then sign your initials in the box to the right of each statement: Initials
| certify that all proposed licensees (as defined in AS 04.11.260) and affiliates have been listed on this application. M C
| certify that all proposed licensees have been listed with the Division of Corporations. |I MQ)
| certify that | understand that providing a false statement on this form or any other form provided by AMCO is grounds M G

for rejection or denial of this application or revocation of any license issued.

| certify that all licensees, agents, and employees who sell or serve alcoholic beverages or check the identification of a
patron will complete an approved alcohol server education course, if required by AS 04.21.025, and, while selling or M &
serving alcoholic beverages, will carry or have available to show a current course card or a photocopy of the card
certifying completion of approved alcohol server education course, if required by 3 AAC 304.465.

| agree to provide all information required by the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board in support of this application. M 6

As an applicant for a liquor license, | declare under penalty of perjury that | have read and am familiar with AS 04 and 3 AAC 304, and
that this application, including all accompanying schedules and statements, is true, correct, and complete.

ey f—

Signatur€ of Notary Public

Signature of licensee

{ l
ﬂZl{K ' 7[1‘[1/) Notary Publicin and for the State of A‘l'- sk g

Printed name of licensee

My commission expires: 5 / 3/ 21

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _ $#" day of Fc (& v:f ,2019 .

GREGORY D. STEIN
Notary Public
State of Alaska
My Commission Expires
May 03, 2021

Em—
[Form AB-00] (rev 10/10/2016) AMCO Page 5 of 5

MAR 13 2019

118




Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office
550 W 7" Avenue, Suite 1600
Anchorage, AK 99501

https://www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/amco
Phone: 907.269.0350

Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

Form AB-02: Premises Diagram

What is this form?

A detailed diagram of the proposed licensed premises is required for all liquor license applications, per AS 04.11.260 and

3 AAC 304.185. Your diagram must include dimensions and must show all entrances and boundaries of the premises, walls, bars,
fixtures, and areas of storage, service, consumption, and manufacturing. If your proposed premises is located within a building or
building complex that contains multiple businesses and/or tenants, please provide an additional page that clearly shows the
location of your proposed premises within the building or building complex, along with the addresses and/or suite numbers of the
other businesses and/or tenants within the building or building complex.

The second page of this form is not required. Blueprints, CAD drawings, or other clearly drawn and marked diagrams may be
submitted in lieu of the second page of this form. The first page must still be completed, attached to, and submitted with any
supplemental diagrams. An AMCO employee may require you to complete the second page of this form if additional documentation
for your premises diagram is needed.

This form must be completed and submitted to AMCO’s main office before any license application will be considered complete.

Yes No

I have attached blueprints, CAD drawings, or other supporting documents in addition to, or in lieu of, the second D |Z-
page of this form.

Section 1 - Establishment Information

Enter information for the business seeking to be licensed, as identified on the license application.

Licensee: Griffin Golf, LLC License Number: (5788
License Type: Golf Course

Doing Business As:  [Kenai Golf Course
Premises Address: 1500 Lawton Dr.
City: Kenai State: (AK Z2IP: 199611

[Form AB-02] (rev 06/24/2016) Pagelof2

AMCO Received 4/23/2019

alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov

119



]/\éﬂf\r-\‘\ Go\F COU/S-Q
|§ Holes

Ne. 1§ PerH
1494 y‘(fv

N1 Par Y

610¢2/€C/v PaAIBdSY OOV

0ct



KENAI GOLF COURSE - 18 HOLES

HOLE |YARDAGE PAR
1 355 4
2 549 5
3 323 4
4 322 4
5 187 3
6 384 4
7 376 4
8 470 5
S 207 3

10 126 3
11 521 5
12 425 4
13 397 4
14 140 3
15 357 4
16 500 5
17 430 4
18 344 4

AMCO Received 4/23/2019

121



Alaska Alcoholic Beverage Control Board

Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office
550 W 7™ Avenue, Suite 1600
Anchorage, AK 99501
alcohol.licensing@alaska.gov
www.commerce.alaska.gov/web/ameo
Phone: 807.265,0350

tps:

Form AB-02: Premises Diagram

layout of any enclosed areas on the proposed premises. Clearly identify all entrances and exits, walls, bars, and fixtures, and outline in
red the perimeter of the areas designated for alcohol storage, service, consumption, and manufacturing. Include dimensions, cross-
streets, and points of reference In your drawing. You may attach blueprints or other detailed drawings that meet the requirements of

this form.

C [oblovse. Tatesio e

14!

g— 2130

il

X' -

Fo! S y ! ——P

A

Aleska) Storege E

i //“{H‘-"___a E W

_T_r_,,ﬁ.»r

2

e
{Fa?

S2 Pr

b
<

5

p

E——— A i

¥

gerv "
o (¢
i )
'r:x-\—‘
S 32t —3

[Form AB-02) (rev 06/24/2018)

Page2of2

AMCO Received 4/23/2019

122



Security and Storage Statement

All alcoholic beverages will be securely stored behind the counter inside the clubhouse
building within staff controlled areas with no public access allowed. The staff area is chained off
to prevent access by the public. Alcohol will be served to patrons at the clubhouse and consumed
within the clubhouse or on the grounds of the course itself per the terms of the seasonal golf course
license.

At least one employee will always be on hand at the clubhouse to ensure there is no
unauthorized access to the alcohol storage areas. Signs indicating video surveillance are placed
around the property to deter minors and others from unauthorized access to the premises during
closed hours. The clubhouse is routinely locked down upon closing. Golf course staff routinely
patrol the course during their regular maintenance activities.

The course itself is generally bounded by private property to the north along Lawton Drive
and uninhabited lowlands to the east and south. The west side backs up to city park lands. As a
lessee of a public entity, Griffin Golf, LLC is not able to erect physical barriers around the property
boundaries. Signs are, or will be, placed indicating the boundaries of the golf course property
along potential access points off Lawton Drive and the park areas to the west. These signs will
indicate that alcohol cannot be brought into or out of the designated property.

AMCO Received 4/23/2019

123



6102 € T YVN

QOWV

Mena

Hot Do 4

Clheesebvraer

Pla”!y Cheesesteals jmwxuf.-'d:
Breakfast Sandwich
Chips

Nots

ﬂm M:X

Can%ﬁaf b
Gum
Sode
Water
Prwerade
Tce Tea
Cotfee
Beer
wine
Cader
Mins
Bananas

124



Office of the Borough Clerk

144 North Binkley Street, Soldotna, Alaska 99669 ® (907) 714-2160 ® (907) 714-2388 Fax

Johni Blankenship, MMC
Borough Clerk
4/25/2019
Sent via email: jheinz@kenai.city

Kenai City Hall
City of Kenai

RE: Non-Objection of Application

Licensee/Applicant . Griffin Golf, LLC

Business Name . Kenai Golf Course

License Type . Golf Course

License Location ;1500 Lawton Drive , City of Kenai
License No. . 5788

Application Type . New Liguor License

Dear Ms. Heinz,

This serves to advise that the Kenai Peninsula Borough has reviewed the above
referenced application and has no objection.

Should you have any questions, or need additional information, please do not hesitate
to let us know.

Sincerely,

#Mglw%

Johni Blankenship, MMC
Borough Clerk

JB/TS

Encl.

cc:  magriff80@hotmail.com; jheinz@kenai.city; DHenry@kpb.us; JRodgers@kpb.us

125



Suggested by: Administration

\/

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, ACCEPTING AND
APPROPRIATING A GRANT FROM THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION FOR THE
2019 AIRFIELD MARKING, CRACK SEALING, AND MINOR PAVEMENT REPAIR PROJECT
AND AWARDING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO COMPLETE THE WORK.

WHEREAS, the runway and taxiway centerlines, hold lines, surface painted position signs, and
apron markings require remarking due to fading, rubber marks, and the lack of reflective beads;
and,

WHEREAS, Federal Aviation Grant Assurance No. 11 requires the City to assure or certify that it
has implemented an effective airport pavement maintenance-management program and it
assures that it will use such program for the useful life of any pavement constructed, reconstructed
or repaired with Federal financial assistance at the Kenai Municipal Airport; and,

WHEREAS, the Federal Aviation Administration agreed that the marking and crack sealing on the
runway, taxiways and apron and the minor pavement repair in the safety area of the runway is
grant eligible; and,

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 3046-2018 SUBSTITUTE enacted December 19, 2019 appropriated
$26,000 for the design of this project which was awarded to Wince-Corthell-Bryson; and,

WHEREAS, the Administration has received confirmation these services are eligible for 93.75%
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) reimbursement, $XXX, XXX with the remaining and 6.25%
of project costs, $XX, XXX to be provided by the City of Kenai; and,

WHEREAS, XXX bids were received and XXXXXXXX, Inc. was the lowest responsive bid; and,
WHEREAS, award of the bid to XXXXXXX, Inc. would be in the best interest of the City; and,

WHEREAS, the recommendation from City Administration is to award the contract to XXXXXXX,
Inc. for the total cost of $X,XXX, XXX.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA
Section 1. That the City Manager is authorized to accept grant funding for $X,XXX,XXX from the
Federal Aviation Administration and to execute a grant agreement and to expend grant funds to
fulfill the purpose and intent of this ordinance.

Section 2. That estimated revenues and appropriations be increased as follows:

Airport Improvement Capital Project Fund

Increase Estimated Revenues -
Federal Grant X, XXX, XXX

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]

126



Ordinance No. 3066-2019
Page 2 of 2

Increase Appropriations

Construction $X, XXX, XXX
Administration XX, XXX
SXXX, XXX

Section 3. That the City Manager is authorized to execute a construction contract to XXXXX,
Inc., for $X, XXX, XXX.

Section 4. That the City Manager is authorized to issue a purchase order to XXXXXX, Inc., in
the amount of $X, XXX, XXX.

Section 5. That the City Manager is authorized to execute an Amendment to the Professional
Services Agreement with Wince-Corthell-Bryson in the amount of $ 63,020 for construction
administration services.

Section 6. Severability: That if any part or provision of this ordinance or application thereof to
any person or circumstances is adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
judgment shall be confined in its operation to the part, provision, or application directly involved
in all controversy in which this judgment shall have been rendered, and shall not affect or impair
the validity of the remainder of this title or application thereof to other persons or circumstances.
The City Council hereby declares that it would have enacted the remainder of this ordinance even
without such part, provision, or application.

Section 7. Effective Date: That pursuant to KMC 1.15.070(f), this ordinance shall take effect
immediately upon enactment.

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 5™ day of June, 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR

ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

Approved by Finance:

Introduced: May 15, 2019
Enacted: June 5, 2019
Effective June 5, 2019

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]

127



’%Z%ya with a Fast &gg with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Mary L. Bondurant, Airport Manager
DATE: May 6, 2019
SUBJECT: Ordinance 3066-2019 — Airfield Marking, Crack sealing, & Minor

Pavement Repair

The Airport received notification from the FAA to move forward with the Invitation to Bid for the
above FY19 project.

This project consists of airfield painting, the crack sealing of the runway, taxiways and apron,
apron seal coating, and minor pavement repair along the shoulders of the runway.

The project will be advertised the week of May 6, 2019 for 21 days.

Bid review and recommendation will be presented to Council at the June 5, 2019 meeting. This
ordinance provides for acceptance of a grant from the Federal Aviation Administration and
execution of a construction contract to the successful bidder with a corresponding purchase order
and authorization to amend the professional services contract to Wince-Corthell-Bryson for
construction management.

Thank you for your consideration.

128



Sponsored by: Administration

v
KENAI, vAU\SI(I:\

CITY OF KENAI
ORDINANCE NO. 3067-2019

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, ACCEPTING
$26,605.40 IN ASSET FORFEITURE SHARING FUNDS AND APPROPRIATING THOSE
FUNDS INTO THE POLICE SMALL TOOLS ACCOUNT FOR THE PURPOSE OF PURCHASING
LAW ENFORCEMENT EQUIPMENT.

WHEREAS, in April of 2019 Kenai Police Department received an asset forfeiture sharing check
in the amount of $26,605.40 from the Alaska State Troopers, Alaska Bureau of Investigations —
Statewide Drug Enforcement Unit; and,

WHEREAS, the Police Department, pursuant to conditions of acceptance, will utilize the forfeiture
funds to purchase law enforcement equipment for use by the Police Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA,
as follows:

Section 1. That the City Manager is authorized to accept these Equitable Sharing Funds in
the amount of $26,605.40 and to expend those funds to fulfill the purpose and intent of this
ordinance.

Section 2. That the estimated revenues and appropriations be increased as follows:
General Fund:

Increase Estimated Revenues —
Forfeitures $26.605.40

Increase Appropriations —
Police — Small Tools $26,605.40

Section 3. Severability: That if any part or provision of this ordinance or application thereof to
any person or circumstances is adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
judgment shall be confined in its operation to the part, provision, or application directly involved
in all controversy in which this judgment shall have been rendered, and shall not affect or impair
the validity of the remainder of this title or application thereof to other persons or circumstances.
The City Council hereby declares that it would have enacted the remainder of this ordinance even
without such part, provision, or application.

Section 4. Effective Date: That pursuant to KMC 1.15.070(f), this ordinance shall take effect
immediately upon enactment.

129



Ordinance No. 3067-2018
Page 2 of 2

ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 5™ day of June, 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

Approved by Finance: h’{’,ﬁi_

Introduced: May 15, 2019
Enacted: June 5, 2019
Effective: June 5, 2019

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]

130



’%Z%ow with a Fast, &gg with a Fatuwre”
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794

Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

y
KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: David Ross, Police Chief
DATE: May 2, 2019
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 3067-2019 - Ordinance Accepting and Appropriating

Asset Forfeiture Sharing Funds from the State of Alaska Department of
Public Safety

The Kenai Police Department received $26,605.40 in asset forfeiture sharing funds from the State
of Alaska Department of Public Safety. Those funds were shared with the Kenai Police
Department after being forfeited to the State of Alaska through Federal court and are subject to
federal “Equitable Sharing” requirements to be use for Law Enforcement. The funds were
forfeited in connection with drug investigation cases, for which the regional drug task force
(including the Kenai Police Department) was involved.

I am respectfully requesting consideration of the ordinance appropriating $26,605.40 into the
General Fund, Police- Small Tools account to pay for law enforcement equipment.

Your consideration is appreciated.

131



Sponsored by: Council Members Pettey and Glendening

v
KENAI, vAU\SI(I:\

CITY OF KENAI
ORDINANCE NO. 3068-2019

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, AMENDING KENAI
MUNICIPAL CODE 14.20.320- DEFINITIONS AND 14.20.330- STANDARD FOR COMMERCIAL
MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS TO PROHIBIT ONSITE CONSUMPTION OF MARIJUANA AT
RETAIL MARIJUANA STORES REQUIRING AN ONSITE CONSUMPTION ENDORSEMENT.

WHEREAS, on November 4, 2014, the Alaskan voters passed Ballot Measure 2, an Act to Tax
and Regulate the Production, Sale and Use of Marijuana; and,

WHEREAS, on January 20, 2016 the City of Kenai enacted regulations governing commercial
marijuana establishments in the City; and,

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2019 Lieutenant Governor Kevin Meyer signed into law new regulations
from the Marijuana Control Board allowing retail marijuana stores to allow onsite consumption of
marijuana under certain conditions through a state issued onsite consumption endorsement to a
retail marijuana store; and,

WHEREAS, 3 AAC 306.200 provides that a City Council by ordinance may prohibit onsite
consumption endorsements to a retail marijuana store within its jurisdiction; and,

WHEREAS, after consideration by the Planning and Zoning Commission, the City Council failed
to enact Ordinance 3061-2019, which would have allowed onsite consumption through the City’'s
conditional use permit process; and,

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest for public safety and welfare for the City to prohibit onsite
consumption of marijuana requiring an onsite consumption endorsement at retail marijuana
stores; and,

WHEREAS, at it's regular meeting of May 22, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Commission
recommended the City Council this Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA,
as follows:

Section 1. Amendment of Section 14.20.320 of the Kenai Municipal Code: That Kenai
Municipal Code, Section 14.20.320 - Definitions, is hereby amended as follows:

14.20.320 Definitions.

(a) General Interpretation.

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]

132



Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 2 of 18

(1) Words used in the present tense include the future tense.

(2) The singular number includes the plural.

(3) The word “person” includes a corporation as well as an individual.
(4) The word “lot” includes the word “plot” or “parcel.”

(5 The term “shall” is always mandatory.

(6) The word “used” or “occupied” as applied to any land or building shall be construed
to include the words “intended,” “arranged” or “designed to be used or occupied.”

(b) Specific Definitions.

“Accessory Building” means a detached building or structure, the use of which is
appropriate, subordinate, and customarily incidental to that of the main building or to the main
use of the land and which is located on the same lot as the main building or use, except as
allowed by a conditional use permit. An accessory building shall be considered to be a part
of the main building when joined to the main building by a common wall or when any
accessory building and the main building are connected by a breezeway.

“Accessory Use” means a use customarily incidental and subordinate to the principal use
of the land, building, or structure and located on the same lot or parcel of land.

“Administrative Official” means the person charged with the administration and
enforcement of this chapter.

“Agricultural Building” means a building or structure used to shelter farm implements, hay,
grain, poultry, livestock, or other farm produce, in which there is no human habitation and
which is not used by the public.

“Agriculture” means the science, art, and business of cultivating soil, producing crops, and
raising livestock; farming.

“Airport” means a location where aircraft such as fixed-wing aircratft, helicopters, and blimps
take off and land. Aircraft may be stored or maintained at an airport. An airport consists of at
least one (1) surface such as a paved or gravel runway, a helicopter touchdown and lift off
(TLOF) area, helipad, or water runway for aircraft takeoffs and landings, and often includes
buildings such as control towers, hangars and terminal buildings.

“Airport Compatible Uses” means uses which include, but are not limited to: Hangars,
Fixed Base Operators, Aircraft Repair and Manufacturing, Aircraft Sales, and other uses
133

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 3 of 18

approved by the Ordinance of the City of Kenai, and the Federal Aviation Administration’s
regulations, and compatible with the current Airport Master Plan, the Airport Layout Plan and
the Comprehensive Plan.

“Alley” means a public way designed and intended to provide only a secondary means of
access to any property abutting thereon.

“Alteration” means any change, addition, or modification in construction, location, or use
classification.

“Animal Boarding” means any building or structure and associated premises in which
animals are fed, housed, and/or exercised for commercial gain.

“Apartment House,” see “Dwelling, multiple-family.”

“Area, Building” means the total of areas taken on a horizontal plane at the main grade
level of the principal building and all accessory buildings, exclusive of steps.

“Assemblage” means a large gathering of people for an event such as a concert, fair, or
circus.

“Assisted Living” means a living arrangement in which people with special needs,
especially seniors with disabilities, reside in a facility that provides help with everyday tasks
such as bathing, dressing, and taking medication.

“Automobile Sales” means the use of any building or structure and associated premises for
the display and sale of new or used automobiles, panel trucks or vans, trailers, or recreation
vehicles and including any warranty repair work and other repair service conducted as an
accessory use.

“Automobile Service Station” means the use of any building or structure and associated
premises or other space used primarily for the retail sale and dispensing of motor fuels, tires,
batteries, and other small accessories; the installation and servicing of such lubricants, tires,
batteries, and other small accessories; and such other services which do not customarily or
usually require the services of a qualified automotive mechanic.

“Automobile Wrecking” means the dismantling of used motor vehicles or trailers or the
storage or sale of parts from dismantled or partially dismantled, obsolete, or wrecked
vehicles.

134

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 4 of 18

“Automotive Repair” means the use of any building or structure and associated premises
on which a business, service, or industry involving the maintenance, servicing, repair, or
painting of vehicles is conducted or rendered.

“Bank” means any establishment or building or structure used for a financial institution that
provides financial services for its clients or members. The term “bank” includes savings and
loan.

“Bed and Breakfast” means a residential, owner-occupied dwelling in which rooms are
rented to paying guests on an overnight basis with no more than one (1) meal served dalily.

“Boarding House” means a dwelling where the principal use is a dwelling by the owner or
keeper and where the owner or keeper provides lodging for three (3) or more persons who
are not members of the owner’s or keeper’s family and the lodgers pay compensation to use
one (1) or more rooms. The common parts of the building or structure are maintained by the
owner or keeper who may also provide lodgers with some services, such as meals, laundry,
and cleaning. Boarding houses are not motels or hotels and are not open to transient guests.

“Building” means any structure built for the support, shelter, or enclosure of persons,
animals, or property of any kind.

“Building Code” means the building code and/or other building regulations applicable in the
City.

“Building, Existing” means a building erected prior to the adoption of the ordinance codified
in this chapter or one for which a legal building permit has been issued.

“Building Height” means the vertical distance from the “grade,” as defined herein, to the
highest point of the roof.

“Building, Principal or Main” means a building or structure in which is conducted the
principal or main use on the lot which said building is situated.

“Business/Consumer Services” means the provision of services to others on a fee or
contract basis, such as advertising and mailing; building maintenance; employment service;
management and consulting services; protective services; equipment rental and leasing;
commercial research; development and testing; photo finishing; and personal supply
services.

“Cabin Rentals” means the renting out of one (1) or more individual, detached dwelling units
or buildings to provide overnight sleeping accommodations for a period of less than thirty (30)

consecutive days.
135

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 5 of 18

“Cemetery” means any property used to inter the dead in buried graves or in columbarium,
stacked vaults, or similar structures.

“Centerline” means the line which is in the center of a public right-of-way.

“Church” means a building or structure in which persons regularly assemble for worship,
ceremonies, rituals, and education pertaining to a particular system of beliefs. The term
“church” includes a synagogue or temple.

“City” means the City of Kenai, Alaska.

“Clinic” (or outpatient clinic or ambulatory care clinic) means a health care facility that is
primarily devoted to the care of outpatients. Clinics can be privately operated or publicly
managed and funded, and typically cover the primary health care needs of populations in
local communities, in contrast to larger hospitals which offer specialized treatments and admit
inpatients for overnight stays.

“Collector Street” means a street located and designed for the primary purpose of carrying
through traffic and of connecting major areas of the City. Unless otherwise designated by the
Commission, collector street shall be defined on the plan for streets and community facilities
in the comprehensive development plan.

“College” means an educational institution providing postsecondary (after high school)
education.

“Commercial Kennel” has the same meaning given in KMC 3.05.010.

“Commercial Marijuana Establishment” means any Retail Marijuana Store excluding
onsite _consumption endorsements, Marijuana Cultivation Facility, Marijuana Product
Manufacturing Facility, and Marijuana Testing Facility.

“Commercial Recreation” means a recreation facility operated as a business and open to
the public for a fee.

“Commission” means the Kenai Planning and Zoning Commission.
“Communication Antenna” has the same meaning given in KMC 14.20.255.
“Communication Tower” has the same meaning given in KMC 14.20.255.

“Conditional Use” means a use which is permitted under the terms of this chapter provided
that under the specified procedures, the Commission finds that certain conditions, specified
in this chapter are fulfilled. Conditional uses are listed in the Land Use Table.

136

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]



https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/3.05.010
https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/14.20.255
https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/14.20.255

Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 6 of 18

“Condominium” means a common interest ownership dwelling in which:
(1) Portions of the real estate are designated for separate ownership;

(2) The remainder of the real estate is designated for common ownership solely by the
owners of those portions;

(3) The undivided interests in the common elements are vested in the unit owners. In
the Land Use Table (KMC 14.22.010), “condominiums” shall be treated as two (2) or
more family dwellings. For example, a four (4) unit condominium building would be
treated as a four (4) family dwelling.

“Coverage” means that percentage of the total lot area covered by the building area.

“Crematory/Funeral Home” means building or structure used for preparation of the
deceased for display and/or interment and may also be used for ceremonies connected with
interment. Preparation may include cremation, which is the process of reducing dead bodies
to basic chemical compounds in the form of gases and bone fragments. This is accomplished
through burning—high temperatures, vaporization, and oxidation.

“Day Care Center” means an establishment where child care is regularly provided for
children for periods of less than twenty-four (24) hours, including the building housing the
facility and adjoining areas, and where tuition, fees, or other compensation for the care of the
children is charged.

“Dormitory” means a building, whether public or private, associated with a school, college
or university and designed, used, and arranged for private sleeping, studying, and living
accommodation for students.

“Dwelling” means a building or any portion thereof designed or used exclusively for
residential occupancy including one-family, two-family and multiple-family dwellings, but not
including any other building wherein human beings may be housed.

“Dwelling, One-Family” means any detached building containing only one (1) dwelling unit.
“Dwelling, Two-Family” means any building containing only two (2) dwelling units.
“Dwelling, Multiple-Family” means any building containing three (3) or more dwelling units.

“Dwelling Unit” means one (1) or more rooms and a single kitchen in a dwelling designed
as a unit for occupancy by not more than one (1) family for living or sleeping purposes.

137

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]



https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/14.22.010

Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 7 of 18

“Elementary School” means any school usually consisting of grades pre-kindergarten
through grade 6 or any combination of grades within this range.

“Essential Service” means the erection, construction, alteration, or maintenance by public
utility companies or municipal departments or commissions, of underground or overhead gas,
electrical, steam, or water transmission or distribution systems, collection, communication,
supply, or disposal systems, including poles, wires, mains, drains, sewers, pipes, conduits,
cables, fire alarm boxes, traffic signals, hydrants, and other similar equipment and
accessories in connection therewith. This definition shall not be interpreted to include public
buildings.

“Family” means any number of individuals living together as a single housekeeping unit in a
dwelling unit.

“Farming” means a tract of land cultivated for the purpose of commercial agricultural
production.

“Fence, Height” means the vertical distance between the ground directly under the fence
and the highest point of the fence.

“Floor Area” means the total of each floor of a building within the surrounding outer walls
but excluding vent shafts and courts.

“Fraternal Organization” means a group of people formally organized for a common object,
purpose, or interest (usually cultural, religious or entertainment) that conducts regular
meetings and has written membership requirements.

“Frontage” means all the property fronting on one (1) side of a street between intersection
streets.

“Garage, Private” means an accessory building or any portion of a main building used in
connection with residential purposes for the storage of passenger motor vehicles.

“Garage, Public” means any garage other than a private garage, available to the public,
operated for gain, and which is used for storage, repair, rental, greasing, washing, servicing,
adjusting, or equipping of automobiles or other vehicles.

“Gas Manufacturer/Storage” means the surface use of lands used in the production, the
mechanical transformation, or the chemical transformation of hydrocarbon gas and includes
uses for gas conditioning/compressor stations. “Storage” means surface uses necessary for
storage of produced or non-native natural gas.

138

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 8 of 18

“Governmental Building” means a building or structure owned and operated by any
department, commission, or agency of the United States or of a state or municipality and
used to conduct official business of government.

“Grade (Ground Level)” means the average level of the finished ground at the center of all
walls to a building. In case walls are parallel to and within five (5) feet of a public sidewalk,
the ground level shall be measured at the sidewalk.

“Greenhouse” means a building or structure, usually a glassed or clear plastic enclosure,
used for the cultivation and protection of plants.

“Guest Room” means any room in a hotel, dormitory, boarding, or lodging house used and
maintained to provide sleeping accommodations for one (1) or more persons.

“Guide Service” means any activity on any premises used for collecting or returning persons
from recreational trips when remuneration is provided for the service.

“Gunsmith” means a person who repairs, modifies, designs, or builds firearms.

“High School” means a secondary school usually consisting of grades 9 through 12 or any
appropriate combination of grades within this range.

“Home Occupation” means an accessory use carried out for remuneration by a resident in
the resident’s dwelling unit.

“Hospital” means an institution that provides medical, surgical, or psychiatric care and
treatment for the sick or the injured.

“Hotel” means a building or group of buildings containing more than five (5) guest rooms
used for the purpose of offering public lodging on a day-to-day basis with or without meals.

“Junkyard” means any space one hundred (100) square feet or more of any lot or parcel of
land used for the storage, keeping, or abandonment of junk or waste material, including scrap
metals or other scrap materials, or for the dismantling, demolition, or abandonment of
automobiles, other vehicles, machinery, or any parts thereof.

“Library” means a collection of sources, resources, and services, and the structure in which
it is housed,; it is organized for use and maintained by a public body, an institution, or a private
individual.

“Licensed Premises For Commercial Marijuana Establishment” means any and all
designated portions of a building or structure, or rooms or enclosures in the building or

structure, at the specific address for which a Commercial Marijuana Establishment license is
139

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 9 of 18

issued, and used, controlled, or operated by the Commercial Marijuana Establishment to
carry out the business for which it licensed.

“Loading Space” means an off-street space or berth on the same lot with a building or
structure to be used for the temporary parking of commercial vehicles while loading or
unloading merchandise or materials.

“Lodge” means a building or group of buildings containing five (5) or fewer guest rooms used
for the purpose of offering public lodging on a day-to-day basis with or without meals.

“Lot” means a parcel of land occupied or to be occupied by a principal use and having
frontage on a public street.

“Lot, Corner” means a lot situated at the junction of, and bordering on, two (2) intersecting
streets, two (2) platted rights-of-way, two (2) government easements, or any combination
thereof.

“Lot Coverage” means that portion of the lot covered by buildings or structures that require
a building permit.

“Lot Depth” means the horizontal distance separating the front and rear lot lines of a lot and
at right angles to its width.

“Lot Line, Front-Corner Lot” means the shortest street line of a corner lot.
“Lot Line, Front-Interior Lot” means a line separating the lot from the street.

“Lot Line, Rear” means a line that is opposite and most distant from the front lot line, and in
the case of irregular, triangular, or gore shaped lot, a line not less than ten feet (10" in length,
within a lot, parallel to and at the maximum distance from the front lot line.

“Lot Line, Side” means any lot boundary line not a front lot line or a rear lot line.

“Lot Width” means the mean horizontal distance separating the side lot lines of a lot and at
right angles to its depth.

“Manufactured Housing” means a dwelling unit that meets Department of Housing and
Urban Development Standards for manufactured housing and is wider than sixteen feet (16"),
has a roof pitch of 4:12 or greater with roofing and siding common to standard residential
construction and is transported to the site and placed on a permanent foundation.

“Manufacturing/Fabricating/Assembly” means the mechanical or chemical transformation
of materials or substances into new products including assembling of components parts, the
140

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 10 of 18

manufacturing of products, and the blending of materials such as lubricating oils, plastics,
resins or liquors.

“Marijuana” means all parts of the plant of the genus Cannabis, whether growing or not; the
seeds thereof, the resin extracted from any part of the plant, and every compound,
manufacture, salt, derivative, mixture, or preparation of the plant, its seeds, or its resin,
including marijuana concentrate. The term does not include fiber produced from the stalks,
oil, or cake made from the seeds of the plant, sterilized seed of the plant which is incapable
of germination, or the weight of any other ingredient combined with marijuana to prepare
topical or oral administrations, food, drink, or other products.

“Marijuana Concentrate” means resin, oil, wax, or any other substance derived from the
marijuana plant by any method which isolates the Tetrahydrocannabinol (THC)-bearing
resins of the plant.

“Marijuana Cultivation Facility” means any entity with a state license registered to cultivate,
prepare, and package marijuana and to sell marijuana to Marijuana Retail Facilities,
Marijuana Products Manufacturing Facilities, Marijuana Testing Facilities, but not to
consumers.

“Marijuana Cultivation Facility, Standard” means an entity registered to cultivate in an
area greater than 500 square feet under cultivation, prepare, and package marijuana and to
sell marijuana to retail marijuana stores, to marijuana product manufacturing facilities, and to
other marijuana cultivation facilities, but not to consumers.

“Marijuana Cultivation Facility, Limited” means an entity registered to cultivate in an area
of 500 square feet or less of cultivation, prepare, and package marijuana and to sell marijuana
to retail marijuana stores, to marijuana product manufacturing facilities, and to other
marijuana cultivation facilities, but not to consumers.

“Marijuana Products” means concentrated marijuana and marijuana products that are
comprised of Marijuana and other ingredients and are intended for use or consumption, such
as, but not limited to edible products, ointments, and tinctures.

“Marijuana Product Manufacturing Facility” means a state licensed fully enclosed secure
indoor facility registered to purchase marijuana, manufacture, prepare and package
marijuana products, and sell marijuana and marijuana products to other marijuana product
manufacturing facilities and to retail marijuana stores, but not to consumers.

141

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 11 of 18

“Marijuana Testing Facility” means a state licensed commercial marijuana testing facility
that is registered to analyze and certify the safety and potency of Marijuana and Marijuana
Products.

“Mini-Storage Facility” means a completely enclosed structure containing three (3) or more
areas or rooms available for lease or rent for the purpose of the general storage of household
goods, vehicles or personal property; where the lessee of the unit is provided direct access
to deposit or store items and where vehicles do not fill the majority of the allowed storage
space.

“Mobile Home” means a structure, which is built on a permanent chassis in accordance with
Department of Housing and Urban Development Standards and designed to be used as a
dwelling unit, with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities.
A mobile home is subject to all regulations applying thereto, whether or not wheels, axles,
hitch or other appurtenances of mobility are removed and regardless of the nature of the
foundation provided.

“Mobile Home Park” means a site with required improvements and utilities for the long-term
parking of mobile homes which may include services and facilities for the residents.

“Modular Home” means a dwelling constructed in modules or sections at a place other than
the building site, built to conform to Title 4 of the Kenai Municipal Code, is transported to the
site and then assembled and placed on a permanent foundation.

“Motel” means a group of one (1) or more detached or semi-detached buildings containing
two (2) or more individual dwelling units and/or guest rooms designed for, or used temporarily
by, automobile tourists or transients, with a garage attached or parking space conveniently
located to each unit, including groups designhated as auto courts, motor lodges, or tourist
courts.

“Museum” means a building or structure that houses and cares for a collection of artifacts
and other objects of scientific, artistic, or historical importance and makes them available for
public viewing through exhibits that may be permanent or temporary.

“Necessary Aviation Facilities” means any air navigation facility, airport visual approach
aid, airfield lighting and signage, meteorological device or any type of device approved by the
Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), the location and height of which is fixed by its
functional purpose.

142

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]



https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/4

Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 12 of 18

“Nonconforming Lot” means a lot lawfully existing at the time this chapter became effective,
which by reason of area or dimensions, does not meet the development requirements for the
zone in which it is located.

“Nonconforming Structure” means a structure or portion thereof, lawfully existing at the
time this chapter became effective, which by reason of its yards, coverage, height, or other
aspects of design, does not meet the development requirements of this zone.

“Nonconforming Use” means a use of a structure of land, or of a structure and land in
combination, lawfully existing at the time this chapter became effective, or established on the
premises of a previous nonconforming use as specified in this chapter, which is not in
conformity with the uses permitted in the zone in which it exists.

“Nursing, Convalescent or Rest Home” means a building or structure used as a residence
for people who require constant nursing care and/or have significant deficiencies with
activities of daily living.

“Office” means a room or group of rooms used for conducting the affairs of a business,
profession, service, industry, or government.

“Onsite Consumption Endorsement” means the state regulated consumption of certain

marijuana products at or adjacent to a retail marijuana store by patrons of the commercial
marijuana establishment.

“Park” means a tract of land, designated by a public entity for the enjoyment of the public
and generally used for active and passive recreational activities.

“Parking, Public Lots” means a parking area available to the public, whether or not a fee
for use is charged.

“Parking Space, Private” means any automobile parking space, excluding garages, not less
than nine feet (9') wide and one hundred eighty (180) square feet in total area.

“Parking Space, Public” means an area of not less than one hundred eighty (180) square
feet exclusive of drives or aisles giving access thereto in area accessible from streets and
alleys for the storage of passenger motor vehicles operated by individual drivers.

“Person” means a natural person, his or her heirs, executors, administrators, or assigns,
and also including firm, partnership, or corporation, or their successors and/or assigns or the
agent of any of the aforesaid.

143

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 13 of 18

“Personal Services” mean establishments engaged in providing services involving the care
of a person or his or her apparel.

“Planned Unit Residential Development” means an alternative method of development of
a residential neighborhood under more flexible conditions than otherwise required in a
specific zoning district.

“Principal Use” means the major or predominant use of a lot or parcel of land.

“Profession” means an occupation or calling requiring the practice of a learned art through
specialized knowledge based on a degree issued by an institution of high learning, e.g.,
Doctor of Medicine.

“Property Owner” means the owner shown on the latest tax assessment roll.

“Public” means a place to which the public or a substantial group or persons has access
and includes highway, rivers, lakes, transportation facilities, schools, places of amusement
or business, parks, playgrounds, prisons, hallways, lobbies and other parts of apartments
houses and hotels not constituting rooms or apartments designed for actual residence.

“Recreation” means leisure activities sometimes requiring equipment and taking place at
prescribed places, sites, parks, or fields. It can include active recreation, such as structured
individual or team activities requiring the use of special facilities, courses, fields or equipment
or passive recreation, such as activities that do not require prepared facilities such as wildlife
and bird viewing, observing and photographing nature, picnicking, and walking.

“Recreational Vehicle” means a vehicular-type unit, primarily designed as temporary living
quarters for recreational camping, or travel use, which either has its own motor power or is
mounted on or drawn by another vehicle. Recreational vehicles include, but are not limited
to, travel trailers, camping trailers, truck campers, and motor homes.

“Recreational Vehicle Park” means an area established by a conditional use permit for the
parking of two (2) or more recreational vehicles on a temporary basis.

“Recreation or Youth Center” means a building, structure, athletic playing field, or
playground, run or created by a local government or the state to provide athletic, recreational,
or leisure activities for minors, or operated by a public or private organization, licensed to
provide shelter, training, or guidance for persons under 21 years of age.

“Restaurant” means an establishment where food and drink is prepared, served, and
consumed primarily within the principal building.

144

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 14 of 18

“Retail Business” means establishments engaged in selling goods or merchandise to the
general public for business or personal/household consumption and rendering services
incidental to the sale of such goods.

“Retail Marijuana Store” means a state licensed entity registered to purchase marijuana
from a marijuana cultivation facility, to purchase marijuana and marijuana products from a
marijuana manufacturing facility, and sell marijuana and marijuana products to consumers.

“Secondary Use” means a use allowed on a lot or parcel of land only if there is also an
allowed principal use on the property.

“Sign” means any words, letters, parts of letters, figures, numerals, phrases, sentences,
emblems, devices, trade names, or trademarks by which anything is made known, such as
are used to designate an individual, firm, association, corporation, profession, business, or a
commodity or product, which are visible from any public street or highway and used to attract
attention.

“Square Feet Under Cultivation” means an area of the licensed premises of a standard or
limited cultivation facility that is used for growing marijuana, measured on the perimeter of
the floor or growing space for marijuana “Square Feet Under Cultivation” does not include
hallways, equipment storage areas, or other areas within the licensed premises that are not
used for growing marijuana such as an office, or a processing or storage area.

“State Highway” means a right-of-way classified by the State of Alaska as a primary or
secondary highway.

“Storage Yard” means a lot used primarily for the storage of operational vehicles,
construction equipment, construction materials or other tangible materials and equipment.

“Street” means a public right-of-way used as a thoroughfare and which is designed and
intended to provide the primary means of access to property abutting thereon.

“Structure” means that which is built or constructed, an edifice or a building of any kind,
composed of parts joined together in some definite manner.

“Subsurface Extraction of Natural Resources” means removing valuable minerals or
other geological materials from the earth, from an ore body, vein or (coal) seam. Materials
recovered could include gas, oil, base metals, precious metals, iron, uranium, coal, diamonds,
limestone, oil shale, rock salt and potash.

“Surface Extraction of Natural Resources” means removal of material, usually soil, gravel,
or sand for use at another location.
145

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 15 of 18

“Taxidermy” means the act of mounting or reproducing dead animals, fish, and/or birds for
display.

“Theater” means a building or structure, or part thereof, devoted to the indoor exhibition of
motion pictures and/or of live dramatic, speaking, musical, or other presentations.

“Townhouse” means single-family dwelling units constructed in a series or group of two (2)
or more units separated from an adjoining unit by an approved party wall or walls, extending
from the basement of either floor to the roof along the linking lot line.

“Tree Nursery” means a place where trees/plants are propagated and grown to usable size.

“Use” means the purpose for which land or a building is arranged, designed, or intended, or
for which either land or a building is or may be occupied or maintained.

“Variance” means the relaxation of the development requirements of this chapter to provide
relief when the literal enforcement would deprive a property owner of the reasonable use of
his or her real property.

“Warehouse” means a building or structure used for the storage of goods, wares and
merchandise that will be processed, sold or otherwise disposed of off of the premises.

“Wholesale Business” means business conducted primarily for the purpose of selling wares
or merchandise in wholesale lots to retail merchants for resale.

“Yard” means an open, unoccupied space, other than a court, unobstructed from the ground
to the sky, except where specifically provided by this chapter, on the same lot on which a
building is situated.

“Yard, Front” means a yard extending across the full width of the lot between the front lot
line of the lot and the nearest exterior wall of the building which is the nearest to the front lot
line.

“Yard, Rear” means a yard extending across the full width of the lot between the most rear
main building and the rear lot line.

“Yard, Side” means a yard on each side of a main building and extending from the front lot
line to the rear lot line. The width of the required side yard shall be measured horizontally
from the nearest point of a side lot line to the nearest part of the main building.

“Zoning Change” means the alteration or moving of a zone boundary; the reclassification of
a lot, or parcel of land, from one zone to another; and the change of any of the regulations

contained in this chapter.
146

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 16 of 18

“Zoning Ordinance or Ordinances” mean the zoning ordinance of the City of Kenai and
Kenai Municipal Code Chapter 14.

Section 2. Amendment of Section 14.20.330 of the Kenai Municipal Code: That Kenai
Municipal Code, Section 14.20.330 — Standards for Commercial Marijuana Establishments, is
hereby amended as follows:

14.20.330  Standards for [C]Commercial [M]Marijuana [E]Establishments.

The purpose of this section is to establish general standards for commercial marijuana establishments.

(@) Commercial marijuana establishments may be permitted or allowed with a conditional use
permit under KMC 14.20.150, as provided in the City of Kenai's land use table, KMC 14.22.010,
and the provisions of this section. Onsite Consumption Endorsements may not be approved by
conditional use permit or otherwise and are not permitted within the City,

(b) Applicants applying for a conditional use permit must include an area map drawn to scale
indicating all land uses on other properties within a five hundred (500) foot proximity of the lot
upon which the applicant is seeking a conditional use permit. This shall be in addition to the
conditional use permit submission requirements in KMC 14.20.150.

(c) A public hearing shall be scheduled before the Planning and Zoning Commission to review
the conditional use permit application once it has been deemed complete. The public hearing
shall be scheduled in accordance with the requirements in KMC 14.20.280, except that notification
shall be mailed to all real property owners on record on the Borough Assessor’s records within a
five hundred (500) foot periphery of the parcel affected by the proposed action.

(d) The preparation, packaging, manufacturing, processing, and storing of all marijuana,
marijuana concentrate or marijuana products must be conducted within a fully enclosed, secure
indoor facility. The growing and cultivating of marijuana must be conducted within a fully enclosed,
secure indoor facility or greenhouse with view-obscuring rigid walls, a roof and doors, unless a
nonrigid greenhouse, or other structure, is specifically approved, in which case the cultivation
must be enclosed by a sight-obscuring wall or fence at least six (6) feet high.

(e) All commercial marijuana establishments shall not emit an odor that is detectable by the
public from outside the commercial marijuana establishment.

() No portion of a parcel upon which any commercial marijuana establishment is located shall
be permitted within the following buffer distances:

(1) One thousand (1,000) feet of any primary and secondary schools (K-12) and five
hundred (500) feet of any vocational programs, post-secondary schools, including but not
limited to trade, technical, or vocational schools, colleges and universities, recreation or youth

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]

147


https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/14
https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/14.20.150
https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/14.22.010
https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/14.20.150
https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/14.20.280

Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 17 of 18

centers, correctional facilities, churches, and state licensed substance abuse treatment
facilities providing substance abuse treatment; and

(2) Buffer distances shall be measured as the closest distance from the perimeter of a stand-
alone commercial marijuana establishment structure to the outer boundaries of the school,
recreation or youth center, or the main public entrance of a church, correctional facility, or a
substance abuse treatment facility providing substance abuse treatment. If the commercial
marijuana establishment occupies only a portion of a structure, buffer distances are
measured as the closest distance from the perimeter of the closest interior wall segregating
the commercial marijuana establishment from other uses, or available uses in the structure,
or an exterior wall if closer, to the outer boundaries of the school, recreation or youth center,
or the main public entrance of a church or correctional facility, or a substance abuse treatment
facility providing substance abuse treatment.

(g) As provided in the Land Use Table, a person or licensee may apply for a conditional use
permit to allow for a marijuana cultivation facility, standard, on lots of forty thousand (40,000)
square feet or greater in size, and a marijuana cultivation facility, limited, on any size lot.

(h) A marijuana cultivation facility, standard, or a marijuana cultivation facility, limited, shall only
be allowed on a lot which has an existing structure consistent with a principal permitted use.

() A marijuana cultivation facility located in an accessory building shall be subject to the setback
provisions in KMC 14.24.020, Development Requirements Table. A person or licensee seeking
relief from the provisions in the Development Requirements Table may apply for a variance
subject to the provisions of KMC 14.20.180.

Section 3. Severability: That if any part or provision of this ordinance or application thereof to
any person or circumstances is adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
judgment shall be confined in its operation to the part, provision, or application directly involved
in all controversy in which this judgment shall have been rendered, and shall not affect or impair
the validity of the remainder of this title or application thereof to other persons or circumstances.
The City Council hereby declares that it would have enacted the remainder of this ordinance even
without such part, provision, or application.

Section 4. Effective Date: That pursuant to KMC 1.15.070(f), this ordinance shall take effect
30 days after enactment.

ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this * day of *, 2019.

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR
ATTEST:

Jamie Heinz, CMC, City Clerk
148

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]



https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/14.24.020
https://kenai.municipal.codes/KMC/14.20.180

Ordinance No. 3068-2019
Page 18 of 18

Introduced: *, 2019
Enacted: *, 2019
Effective: *, 2019

149

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




’%Z%ow with a Fast, &gg with a Fatuwre”
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794

Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

O
KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
FROM: Council Members Glenese Pettey and Jim Glendening
DATE: March 12, 2019
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 3068 — 2019

This Ordinance would prohibit onsite consumption of marijuana and marijuana products at retalil
stores requiring an onsite consumption endorsement. We feel this ordinance is necessary to
protect public safety and welfare. Because this Ordinance requires a change to the City’s zoning
code, requires a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission. We request it be
pulled from the consent agenda and be referred to the Planning and Zoning Commission for
consideration at their May 22, 2019 meeting, and be brought back to Council for a public hearing
at the first meeting in June.

Your consideration is appreciated.

150



Sponsored by: Administration

o Hhecity of /’f
KENAL, ALASKA
b

CITY OF KENAI
ORDINANCE NO. 3062-2019

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, INCREASING FY2019
GENERAL FUND ESTIMATED REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS BY $20,859 AND FY2020
GENERAL FUND ESTIMATED REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS BY $35,418 IN THE
GENERAL FUND PARKS, RECREATION AND BEAUTIFICATION DEPARTMENT FOR THE
RECEIPT OF A GRANT FROM THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
AGENCY PASSED THROUGH THE STATE OF ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION FOR BACTERIA LEVEL MONITORING ON THE CITY’S
BEACHES FROM MAY TO SEPTEMBER DURING 2019 AND 2020.

WHEREAS, the State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation has issued a grant
to the City for bacteria level monitoring from May to September during 2019 and 2020; and,

WHEREAS, monitoring will be provided through a cooperative agreement with the Kenai
Watershed Forum; and,

WHEREAS, bacteria levels during the testing period in the past have exceeded water recreation
standards as established by the State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation in
Register 226 that could pose a health risk to the fishery participants and City residents utilizing
the beach; and,

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to monitor the bacteria level on its beaches.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA,
as follows:

Section 1.  That FY2019 estimated revenues and appropriations be increased as follows:

General Fund:
Increase Estimated Revenues:

Federal Grants - Other $20,859
Increase Appropriations:
Parks, Recreation & Beautification —
Professional Services $20,859

Section 2. That FY2020 estimated revenues and appropriations be increased as follows:

General Fund:
Increase Estimated Revenues:
Federal Grants - Other $35.418

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED]

151



Ordinance No. 3062-2019

Page 2 of 2
Increase Appropriations:
Parks, Recreation & Beautification —

Professional Services $35.418

Section 3. That the City Manager is authorized to accept a grant and expend the funds to
fulfill the purpose of this Ordinance.

Section 4. Severability: That if any part or provision of this ordinance or application thereof to
any person or circumstances is adjudged invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such
judgment shall be confined in its operation to the part, provision, or application directly involved
in all controversy in which this judgment shall have been rendered, and shall not affect or impair
the validity of the remainder of this title or application thereof to other persons or circumstances.
The City Council hereby declares that it would have enacted the remainder of this ordinance even
without such part, provision, or application.

Section 5. Effective Date: That pursuant to KMC 1.15.070(f), Section 1 of this ordinance shall
take effect upon adoption. Section 2 of this ordinance shall take effect July 1, 2019.

ENACTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 1st day of May, 2019.

ey
___ BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR O‘“

ATTEST: N AT KEN SN
{ ' |

Tnj Heinz, CMC, City Clerk

7

Approved by Finance: VAL

Introduced: April 17, 2019
Enacted: May 1, 2019
Effective: May 1, 2019

& July 1, 2019

152

New Text Underlined; [DELETED TEXT BRACKETED)]




'T\\ 'V%@waﬂ%af%ﬂzCﬁ?aﬂ%a/ﬁ&w&”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014

tyof www.kenai.city
KENAI, ALASKA
N
MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Robert J. Frates, Parks & Recreation Director
DATE: April 9, 2019
SUBJECT: Ordinance 3062-2019 — DEC Grant for Bacteria Level Monitoring in the
Kenai River

The purpose of this correspondence is to recommend Council approval of Ordinance 3062-2019.
This action provides for the appropriation of funds to support testing for coliform and enterococci
bacteria in the Kenai River during the Personal Use Fishery by the Kenai Watershed Forum
(KWF).

This work will be accomplished by the Kenai Watershed Forum through a cooperative agreement
with funding being passed through to the KWF. This mirrors a previous process utilized in 2018.

Thank you for your consideration.

153



4

Vithage with a Fast, ity with a Future

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

24
KENAI, ALASKA
v

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
FROM: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
DATE: May 1, 2019
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 3062-2019 - Amendments

To accurately reflect that bacteria level monitoring on and around the Kenai City beaches is
conducted from May to September, not just during the personal use fishery, to specifically explain
what bacteria levels are being exceeded, and to clarify that the elevated bacteria levels are not a
result of the personal use fishery, the administration respectfully requests the following
amendments be considered by the Kenai City Council.

In the title:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, INCREASING FY2019
GENERAL FUND ESTIMATED REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS BY $20,859 AND FY2020
GENERAL FUND ESTIMATED REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS BY $35,418 IN THE
GENERAL FUND PARKS, RECREATION AND BEAUTIFICATION DEPARTMENT FOR THE
RECEIPT OF A GRANT FROM THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
AGENCY PASSED THROUGH THE STATE OF ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION FOR BACTERIA LEVEL MONITORING ON THE CITY’S
BEACHES FROM MAY TO SEPTEMBER DURING [THE] 2019 AND [-] 2020 [PERSONAL USE
FISHERY].

In the first whereas:

WHEREAS, the State of Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation has issued a grant
to the City for bacteria level monitoring from May to September during [THE] 2019 [-] and 2020
[PERSONAL USE FISHERY]; and,

In the third whereas:

WHEREAS, bacteria levels during the testing period [PERSONAL USE FISHERY] in the past
have exceeded water recreation standards as established by the State of Alaska Department of

154



Page 2 of 2
Ordinance 3062-2019 - Amendments

Environmental Conservation in Register 226 [TESTED AT ELEVATED LEVELS] that could pose
a health risk to the fishery participants and City residents utilizing the beach; and,

In the final whereas:

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to monitor the bacteria level on its beaches [TO
PROTECT ITS VISITORS AND RESIDENTS FROM POTENTIAL DANGERS CAUSED BY THE
WASTE GENERATED BY THE PERSONAL USE FISHERY].

155



’%Z%ya with a Fast &L} with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
W
MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
FROM: Jamie Heinz, City Clerk
DATE: May 8, 2019
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 3062-2019 — Robert’s Rules Procedures

After enactment of Ordinance No. 3062-2019, administration was notified by the granting agency that
they wanted to change amounts in the grant being passed through. In order to accomplish this, |
recommend a motion to amend something previously adopted.

Robert's Rules provides the following information on amending something previously adopted:

That this action be noticed (accomplished in the publication of the agenda);

Must be moved when no other motion is pending;

Can be applied to anything;

Must be seconded;

Is debatable;

Is amendable;

Requires a majority vote when notice is provided;

An affirmative vote cannot be reconsidered:;

Would not be in order if something had been done, as a result of the vote on the main motion,
that is impossible to undo (the associated grant has not yet been executed).

Suggested Script:

In accordance with the notice given in the call of this meeting, | move to amend Ordinance No. 3062-
2019 by [read amendments provided in the memo provided by administration].

Thank you for your consideration.

156



’%Z%OM with a Fast, &L}« with a Fatuwre”
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794

Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

ty
KENAI, ALASKA
\\7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Robert J. Frates, Parks & Recreation Director
DATE: May 8, 2019
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 3062-2019 — Amendment #2

The Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (AKDEC) desires to include microbial
source tracking (MST) testing in May and June before the start of the Personal Use Fishery. In
the previous version of the grant, there was no MST testing scheduled for FY19, only in FY20.
MST testing helps determine fecal bacteria sources and will include human, gull and dog markers
to further assess the bacteria sources at the Kenai beaches. The Administration respectfully
requests the following additional amendments be considered by the Kenai City Council:

In the title:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, INCREASING FY2019
GENERAL FUND ESTIMATED REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS BY $25,359 [$20,859]
AND FY2020 GENERAL FUND ESTIMATED REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS BY $35,418
IN THE GENERAL FUND PARKS, RECREATION AND BEAUTIFICATION DEPARTMENT FOR
THE RECEIPT OF A GRANT FROM THE UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
AGENCY PASSED THROUGH THE STATE OF ALASKA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION FOR BACTERIA LEVEL MONITORING ON THE CITY'S
BEACHES FROM MAY TO SEPTEMBER DURING 2019 AND 2020.

In Section 1: That FY2019 estimated revenues and appropriations be increased as follows:

General fund:
Increase Estimated Revenues: $25,359 [$20,859]
Federal Grants — Other

Increase Appropriations:
Parks, Recreation & Beautification - $25,359 [$20,859]

157



Vittage with a Fast, City with a Future”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014

ty www.kenai.city
KENAI, ALASKA
N

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
Cc: Mary Bondurant, Airport Manager
FROM: Elizabeth Appleby, City Planner
DATE: May 8, 2019
SUBJECT: Action/Approval — Request Submitted by SOAR for Extension of Lease

Application Expiration Date

On May 6, 2019, SOAR International Ministries, Inc. (SOAR) submitted a letter requesting a six-
month extension to the expiration date of the their lease application for an undeveloped portion
of Tract A, General Aviation Apron No. 2 within the Airport Reserve. SOAR’s lease application
expires on May 18, 2019. Kenai Municipal Code 21.10.050 states that lease applications, “shall
expire twelve (12) months after the date the application has been made if the City and the
applicant have not, by that time, entered into a lease, unless the City Council for good cause
grants an extension for a period not the exceed six (6) months”.

The property requires subdivision prior to entering into a lease with the City. Pursuant to Kenai
Municipal Code 21.10.040(c), lease applications which propose a subdivision require the
applicant to pay for the subdivision unless City Council determines the subdivision serves other
airport purposes and it is reasonable for the City to share in the cost. SOAR'’s lease application
was passed by City Council on August 1, 2018 after it was approved by the Planning and Zoning
Commission on June 13, 2018 and the Airport Commission on July 14, 2018. SOAR was provided
three costs estimates by the City to complete the subdivision on October 9, 2018 with reminders
sent December 13, 2018, March 13, 2019, April 18, 2019. SOAR has not responded to these
requests, indicated which surveyor they would use to complete the subdivision, or provided other
update on their plan to complete the improvements outlined in their lease application. The survey
guotes at this point in time may be no longer be accurate and new cost estimates would need to
be requested.

If an extension were approved, no other potential lessee may file an application to lease the
parcel. Based on the minimum work completed toward subdivision in the first year of the

158



Page 2 of 2
Application for Extension of Lease

application and the potential for other applications on this lot, Administration recommends denial
of the extension as SOAR has not presented good cause to grant an extension. This would allow
for competing lease applications to be submitted for the parcel to the City for the parcel.

Thank you for your consideration.

159



International Ministries

April 1, 2019

City of Kenai
210 Fidalgo Avenue
Kenai, Alaska 99611

Due to the delay in the sale of SOAR’s current buildings and the transfer of
SOAR’s current leases SOAR would like to request a six month extension of the
expiration date of our current lease application for the undeveloped portion of
Tract A, General Aviation Apron No. 2.

Thank you for your consideration.

Coohond . 7)

Richard Page
Director, SOAR lnternatlonal Ministries

RECEIVED

CITY OF KENAI
DATE $-{~/9
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

135 Granite Point Court / Kenai, Alaska 99611 www.soarinternational.org 1.888.388.7627

160



”V[//aﬂe with a Past City with a Future”

210 Fidalgo Avenue, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 / FAX: (907) 283-3014

www.ci.kenai.ak.us

HHWSM

April 18, 2019

SOAR International Ministries Inc.

135 Granite Point Court

Kenai, AK 99611 \
\

Attn: Dick Page \I‘

Re: 30-Day Notice of Expiration ofLease Application for the Undéyeloped Portion of
Tract A, General Aviation Apron No. 2

Dear Mr. Page:

On May 18, 2018, SOAR International Ministries, Inc. (SOAR) submitted an application to
the City of Kenai to lease the undeveloped portion of Tract A, General Aviation Apron No. 2
within the Airport Reserve. On August 1, 2018, the Kenai City Council approved a lease
with lot improvements as outlined on the lease application, including a hangar, aircraft ramp
and tie-down area, and parking. City Council approved of a45-year lease term.

Kenai Municipal Code 21.10.050 states that lease applications, "shall expire twelve (12)
months after the date the application has been made if the City and the applicant have not,
by that time, entered into a lease, unless the City Council for good cause grants an
extension for a period not to exceed six (6) months.” Your lease application will expire on
May 18, 2019 without further action by you.

SOAR was to subdivide the property prior to lease execution such that only the portion of
the lot SOAR wished to lease would be included in the lease and in lease payments. The
City of Kenai obtained three estimates fr the cost of the subdivision:

e Edge Survey, $4,850
e Segesser Surveys, $3,500
¢ MclLane Consultants, $5,990

The City of Kenai has requested SOAR choose a surveyor to conduct the subdivision.
Kenai Municipal Code 21.10.040 (c) requires the lease applicant to pay subdivision costs,
“‘Applications which propose a subdivision shall require the applicant to be responsible for
all costs associated with the subdivision, including but not limited to any new appraisal,
engineering services, surveying and consulting costs, unless in the sole discretion of the
City Council, the City Council determines that the subdivision serves other airport

purposes.”

Until a subdivision is completed, the City may not enter into a lease with SOAR.

161



Prior to the expiration of your lease application on May 18,2019, either:
1) Select a surveyor, complete the subdivision, and enter into a lease, or,

2) Submit a written request for an extension of the expiration date of your lease
application (not to exceed six months).

Attached to this letter is Resolution 2018-46 approving of your lease application
Please contact Elizabeth Appleby about this matter at 283-8235 or eappleby@kenai.city.

CITY OF KENAI

Wilpra SO s

Wilma E. Anderson
Planning Assistant

Attachments

cc.  Paul Ostrander, City Manager
Christine Cunningham, Assistant to City Manager
Willie Anderson, Planning Assistant
Mary Bondurant, Airport Manager

162



”l/i//aﬂe with a Past City with a Future”

210 Fidalgo Avenue, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 / FAX: (907) 283-3014

www.ci.kenai.ak.us

KEHAI,\EI.ASKA
N

March 15, 2019

SOAR International Ministries Inc.
135 Granite Point Court
Kenai, AK 99611

Attn: Dick Page

Re: 60-Day Notice of Expiration of Lease Application for the Undeveloped Portion of
Tract A, General Aviation Apron No. 2

Dear Mr. Page:

On May 18, 2018, SOAR International Ministries, Inc. (SOAR) submitted an application to
the City of Kenai to lease the undeveloped portion of Tract A, General Aviation Apron No. 2
within the Airport Reserve. On August 1, 2018, the Kenai City Council approved a lease
with lot improvements as outlined on the lease application, including a hangar, aircraft ramp
and tie-down area, and parking. City Council approved of a 45-year lease term.

Kenai Municipal Code 21.10.050 states that lease applications, “shall expire twelve (12)
months after the date the application has been made if the City and the applicant have not,
by that time, entered into a lease, unless the City Council for good cause grants an
extension for a period not to exceed six (6) months.” Your lease application will expire on
May 18, 2019 without further action by you.

SOAR was to subdivide the property prior to lease execution such that only the portion of
the lot SOAR wished to lease would be included in the lease and in lease payments. The
City of Kenai obtained three estimates for the cost of the subdivision:

e Edge Survey, $4,850
¢ Segesser Surveys, $3,500
¢ MclLane Consultants, $5,990

The City of Kenai has requested SOAR choose a surveyor to conduct the subdivision.
Kenai Municipal Code 21.10.040 (c) requires the lease applicant to pay subdivision costs,
“Applications which propose a subdivision shall require the applicant to be responsible for
all costs associated with the subdivision, including but not limited to any new appraisal,
engineering services, surveying and consulting costs, unless in the sole discretion of the
City Council, the City Council determines that the subdivision serves other airport
purposes.”

Until a subdivision is completed, the City may not enter into a lease with SOAR.

163



Prior to the expiration of your lease application on May 18, 2019, either:
1) Select a surveyor, complete the subdivision, and enter into a lease, or,

2) Submit a written request for an extension of the expiration date of your lease
application (not to exceed six months).

Attached to this letter is Resolution 2018-46 approving of your lease application.

Please contact me about this matter at 283-8235 or eappleby@kenai.city.

CITY OF KENAI

Elizabeth Appleby
City Planner

Attachments

cc:  Paul Ostrander, City Manager
Christine Cunningham, Assistant to City Manager
Willie Anderson, Planning Assistant
Mary Bondurant, Airport Manager

164



Sponsored by: Administration

CITY OF KENAI
RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - 46

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA APPROVING THE
EXECUTION OF A LEASE OF AIRPORT RESERVE LANDS USING THE STANDARD LEASE
FORM BETWEEN THE CITY OF KENAI AND SOAR INTERNATIONAL MINISTRIES,
INCORPORATED, FOR THE UNDEVELOPED PORTION OF TRACT A, GENERAL AVIATION
APRON NUMBER TWO.

WHEREAS, on May 18, 2018, SOAR International Ministries, Inc., (SOAR) submitted an
application to lease City owned properties within the Airport Reserve, described as the
undeveloped portion of Tract A, General Aviation Apron Number 2; and,

WHEREAS, SOAR'’s lease application states plans to construct a hangar facility for aircraft
storage and maintenance; a connecting office facility, an aircraft ramp and tie-down area, and
parking, an investment that aligns with a lease term of 45 years;

WHEREAS, the proposed development would be mutually beneficial and would conform with the
Kenai Municipal Code for zoning, Kenai’'s Comprehensive Plan, the Airport Land Use Plan, Airport
Layout Plan, Federal Aviation Administration regulations, Airport Master Plan, Airport
Improvement Program grant assurances, and Airport operations; and,

WHEREAS, the City of Kenai did not receive a competing lease application within thirty (30) days
of publishing a public notice of the lease application from SOAR; and,

WHEREAS, at their regular meeting on June 13, 2018, the Planning and Zoning Commission
reviewed the lease application and recommended approval by the City Council; and,

WHEREAS, at their regular meeting on July 12, 2018, the Airport Commission reviewed the lease
application and recommended approval by the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA:

Section 1:  That a Lease of Airport Reserve Lands is approved and the City Manager is
authorized to execute a lease between the City of Kenai, Lessor, and SOAR International
Ministries, Incorporated, Lessee, as follows:

Lot improvements as outlined in lease application from SOAR International
Ministries, Incorporated, including an approximately 120 foot x 180 foot hangar
facility for aircraft storage and maintenance, an approximately 100 foot x 110 foot
connecting office facility, an aircraft ramp and tie-down area, and parking to be
completed within two (2) years of signing the lease;

The evidence must be submitted to the City within 60 days of the completion of the
development and improvements;

165



Resolution No. 2018-46
Page 2 of 2

The lease term will be 45 years;
Lot developments will prevent unauthorized access to the airfield;
Structures will be built behind the 100 foot building restriction line;

The relocation of the airport perimeter fence will allow aircraft full access to the
proposed aircraft ramp and tie down area;

Paving will be completed up to the existing transient aircraft apron pavement;

SOAR is responsible for all snow removal, and snow may not touch the perimeter
security fence or be piled to a height that would allow access to the airport; and

SOAR wili subdivide the property to designate the portion of Tract A, General
Aviation Apron Number Two (2) that it wishes to lease from the City of Kenai as
set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, and the subdivision will include a 40-foot
easement for utilities.
Section 2:  That this resolution takes effect immediately upon passage.
ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KENAI, ALASKA, this 1st day of August, 2018.
L' LY &

BRIAN GABRIEL SR., MAYOR

166



Vittage with a Fast, City with a Future”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
\\7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Elizabeth Appleby, City Planner
DATE: July 24, 2018
SUBJECT: Resolution 2018-46 — Kenai Municipal Airport Reserve Lease

Application from SOAR International Ministries, Inc. — 209 N. Willow St,
the undeveloped portion of Tract A, General Aviation Apron No. 2

SOAR International Ministries, Inc. (SOAR) submitted an application on May 18, 2018, to lease
an undeveloped portion of Tract A, General Aviation Apron No. 2 within the Airport Reserve.
SOAR is current on rent payments for the three lots currently leased within the Airport Reserve
from the City.

SOAR proposes to lease Tract A, General Aviation Apron No. 2 for an aeronautical use. SOAR
proposes to construct an approximately 120 foot x 180 foot hangar for aircraft storage and
maintenance. There would also be a connecting office facility of approximately 100-foot x 110-
foot, an aircraft ramp and tie-down area, and parking. Possible activities noted on SOAR’s lease
application include flight training, aircraft parts sales, aviation safety meetings, community
meetings, and storage of aircraft floats. SOAR requested a lease term of 55 years to start on
September 1, 2018, however, the maximum term of a lease allowed under KMC 21.10.080 is 45
years.

SOAR proposes to build on the portion of the lot that is currently treed, and would need to
subdivide the lot prior to construction. This section of the lot is surrounded by existing
development and other disturbed surfaces. SOAR would need to ensure the fence encompassing
its development met Airport safety and security standards.

Pursuant to KMC 14.20.065, the parcel is within the Airport Light Industrial (ALI) Zone. The
purpose of the ALl Zone is to protect the viability of the Kenai Municipal Airport as a significant
resource to the community by encouraging compatible land uses and reducing hazards that may
endanger the lives and property of the public and aviation users. The proposed aeronautical use
by SOAR is a permitted and compatible use in the ALI Zone.

167



Page 2 of 2
Resolution 2018-46

The Imagine Kenai 2030 Comprehensive Plan outlines goals, objectives, and action items for the
City, including this one pertaining to the Kenai Municipal Airport:

e Objective T-1: Support future development near or adjacent to the airport when such
development is in alignment with the Kenai Municipal Airport’s primary mission, “To be the
commercial air transportation gateway to the Kenai Peninsula Borough and Cook Inlet.”

The proposed use by SOAR complies with the Imagine Kenai 2030 Comprehensive Plan in that
it supports development on lease lots and the development is in alignment with the Kenai
Municipal Airport’s marketing strategy.

The Airport Land Use Plan was developed to identify the highest and best uses of Kenai Municipal
Airport land. The Airport Land Use Plan discusses leasing land and enhancing opportunities for
local economic development. The proposed use by SOAR complies with the Airport Land Use
Plan. It would enhance local economic development.

The lease application complies with the Airport Layout Plan, Airport Master Plan, Airport
Improvement Program Grant Assurances, Federal Aviation Administration requirements, and
Airport Operations. The development will create new land lease revenue, employment
opportunities, and offer services to airport users that are not currently available.

Pursuant to KMC 21.10.060(c), the City must publish public notice of a lease application and allow
thirty (30) days for competing lease applications for the same property to be submitted to the City
for consideration. The City published a public notice of the SOAR lease application in the
Peninsula Clarion on May 29, 2018. The City did not receive a competing application to lease this
parcel within 30 days of the notice (through June 28th).

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of the lease application at their
meeting held on June 13, 2018, contingent upon SOAR submitting a plat to the Planning and
Zoning Commission for the subdivision of the lot that SOAR is interested in leasing from the City
of Kenai. The Airport Commission and Airport Manager recommended approval of the lease
application at their July 14" meeting, contingent upon SOAR subdividing the property and
reserving a 40-foot utilities easement, paving up to the existing transient aircraft apron pavement,
relocating one flood light to the north, and meeting Federal Aviation Administration and
Transportation Security Administration requirements for security and access.

Thank you for your consideration.

168



RECEIVED
CITY OF KENAI

MAY 81 0B

Name of Applicant:

Richard Page

Applicant Information

City of Kenai
Kenai Municipal Airport
Land Lease Application

FLANNIING AR fEMT

Application for:

New Lease
[JAmendment
[[1Extension/Renewal

Application Date:

05/18/2018

Mailing Address:

Mailing Address: 34225 Page Street City: Soldotna étate: Alaska |zip Code: 99669
Phone Number(s): | Home Phone: (907)252-1841 Cell  |work/ Message Phone: (907) 283-1961
E-mail: (Optional) |RichardPage@soarinternational.org '
Name to Appear on Lease: SOAR International Ministries
135 Granite Point Court City: |Kenai State: |Alaska 99611

Zip Code:

Phone Number(s):

Home Phone: (907) 252-1841 Cell

Work/ Message Phone; (907) 283-1961

E-mail: (Optional)

| Legal Description of Property: =0

Description of Property and Term Requested

Type of Applicant: Dlndividual (at least 18 years of age) DPadnership
[ ]Limited Liability Company (LLC)

|:| Government

Corporation

D Other

Does the Property Require Subdivision? (if Yes, answer next two questions)

Are you prepared to be responsible for all costs associated with subdivision?

Do you believe the proposed subdivision would serve other Airport purposes?

|Do you have or have you ever had a Lease with the City of Kenai?

73-68

If Yes, please prbvide description of property leased (e.g. legal or physical description):
Lot 1A, Block 2, General Aviation Apron No. 3
Lot 3, Block 1 General Aviat@on Apron, according to Plat No. 73-68

Is this application for renewal or term extension of an existing lease?

If Yes, please provide a description of the property leased:

Lease Term Requested:

55 Years

Proposed Use (check one): Aeronautical

Starting Date:

Proposed Use and Activities

D Non-Aeronautical

September 01, 2018

Do you plan to construct new or additional improvements?

[v]ves [ |no

169



If yes, will the improvement change or alter the use under an existing lease? DYES NO

If yes, what is the new proposed use?

; . " . .
Nevlvfaq‘ﬁgé ‘gﬁg L :'Jlsnégel? }Xgﬁ.gﬁ I{g}p é%\ﬁef—rinlﬁpetr'ngﬁb%aPquilgtﬂégn nd “%Wgear}tfalg Ht?e'sn?g 5%‘6%%%%%&@ transient corporate
aircraft.

| Pntontial ERO nneration and or flicoht training facility

i improvements? (e.g. maintenance, landscaping, new con i
el SMAELIS 15, fetuns gfthe Improvements? (.. men I A R

List of proposed use and business activities: . ) . ) ) ,
Base of operations for SOAR International Ministries including aircraft storage and maintenance, hangaring of transient aircraft,

possible FBO operation, possible flight training facility, possible aircraft parts sales, facilities for installation, removal, and inside
storage of aircraft floats, facilities for community activities such as aviation safety meetings, community fundraisers, etc.

Lease Extension or Renewal

Method to determine value of improvements/term for a lease renewal or expiring lease:
DProfessional estimate of the remaining useful life of the principle improvement on the property
Market value appraisal of the principle improvement on the property

DPurchase price of improvements

Submitting an application for a lease does not give the applicant a right to lease or use the land requested in the application. The application
shall expire twelve (12) months after the date the application has been made if the City and the applicant have not, by that time, entered into a
lease, unless the City Council for good cause grants an extension for a period not to exceed six (6) months. The City has no obligation to
amend, renew or extend a lease and may decline to do so upon making specific findings as to why a lease renewal, extension, or amendment
is not in the best interest of the City

Signature: ;?AJC/MLQC/& /c{qﬂ__ Date: @5//82/20)8

Print Name: E}C,HHQD - Pﬁgg Title: PIQE;‘SEDQMT'

170



APPEOY. BSO'

AReRAT™T RFAWNP

.

AcilD “TIE - DOWN ARE A

STORAGE HANGAR
AVPRGOY V20 X \BO

OFFICES AND HANSAR
Aoy, VO x LO

PA R ING,

APPR oY ASo'!

171



—

BRD AVENUE
e |
el

ATH_AVENUE
13 Hd
o TH AVENUE™

~,_;_——/§!\\~-‘\
RUNWAY PROTECTION ZonT .
APVEOACH SLOPE 341

RUNWAY PROTTCTION ZOWT
APPROACH SLOPL 3C:1

5 smr&cernw"
1 n / CLEN/ /“';’

e
/ Aze

I-H IINN

SFYAY NOLMYT

172




VICINITY MAP

i"=800"
POR 532 TGNAIIW,SM

ol round neod ol
L=y

>z
\N;C:'
s
“
P Je 1d p.nall *sy: c
- 528%4Fw. 14 100,00 ; o P "719
5 i
X TAXIWAY A-3 L g
0>
L & 0o \
IR~ = - e
2
L2 ﬁM
Qs 2
\» 3 =
\ ™
=
B
o =) I o
2o g TRACT A" G
L e 5 I O RERAL
0“ ;80 @ PN ND AT
>E ! g5 LNSYRDIAOED
g 1 7
e || o
My o
e & 0 3 20" utifity etrsermit
Sellr s | . -
toc, H4 2 2 orprox. B, §
P  TRANSFORMER Lk g underground pawer A 528%42'M 0 e
e Ml & o e
b - g e A i
3t b o :{ g
e E oppeoe loc , buried FAA
fa. v' r Y .6 ot control  cable
—_— P 7 r
<h. 500-
bolt g Q
=%
| ly
~ N )
-~ -~ o) =
' 229,581 st o
approx. Tecation, | T o 3 ®
underground teleptone Bpover || Qg " 5243 ac -
oy | S 3 =
' I )
4
\l
1
Sy @
\',_' I opprox ioc.,
! g0 = City Watertina
: -ﬁfi i AR i L o1 re00"
e 350:00
T o & WILLOW ——STREET — %
& 4 N28%42'E ey ‘}
i ; apprax.
Q 38 g \C“ Cify Sewer
s

Beedhosv e,

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP 8 DEDICATION
IHEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE CITY OF KENA[ |S THE QWNER OF THE
PROPERTY SHOWN AND DESCRIBED HEREON, THAT THE CITY ADOPTS THIS

PLAN OF SUBDIVISION, AND DOES HEREBY GRANT ALL EASEMENTS TO
THE USE SHOWN,

CTY MANAGES-‘MLUAM Ea%
Zi‘ﬂ 1? Z 25 P
c; Y CLERK- JANET WHELAN

NOTARY'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR WILLIAM BRIGHTON AND JANET WHELAN

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN To BEFORE ne Tris Z0%bar oF
R .

NOTARY PUBLIC FOR{4LASKA

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES —071!-7-#35——--

PLAT APPROVAL

THIS PLAT WAS APFROVED BY THE KENAI P SULA BOROUGH
PLANNING COMMISSION AT THE MEETING OF
i

KENAT PENINSULA BOROUGH

ov M@u -
AUTHORIZED OFFICIAL

:STREET ACDRESS

/=110

remmasem FUEY

/fma,\_ PET ST

|
|
TG --:ifi
%

o

L 3.5 £ v

SCALE 1"=100"
GENERAL AVIATION APRON NO. 2

5.243 ACRES WITHIN THE NEI& SW1* ==

NW /4 SE1/4 OF SEC 32, TEN. RITW, S M,
KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH, 173
ALASKA

CITY OF KEWAI MALONE SURVEYING
BOX 580 BOX 566
KENAI, AK 99811 KENAL AK. 99611

5-5-81




Qfd .raund head Bbolt

Sz

fd. rh. boft

s
boit

T fd.p:2.nait
s LpR.AGQ1
- 5.28242w. _'d__ 100:00 7 */”/4
\ TAXIHAY A3 7\\"’ P
& 109 \
L 5.28%-42w.___ &, 3

s e e (- vy e s
: 4,
Sefm,na;:Zgﬁs &2
tn mge vy le@
; ”
pl‘\ "\,: 8
3 :
| : o %
) =z KO o
E
2 o
=2 GRANITE PT._ _wJ - ol
S COURT 8 3 TRACT "4 @
¢ R P CITY OF KERA!
2 ' g0 & )
=t v g MNSLBONGEED
e ‘\"L 1 :7’: E .
% N = 20" unitity etreemint
<> owox. ' : 2
- R
£y toc,HEA. 4 o T .., sl
<= TRANSFORMER h ! underground pOWET 4l S28%42'W. 4 o
i~ el 9 9 e (09" — —100.00-
= ﬁ. _—f - = = == = = =
-_: k T
~, w0 ‘
2 gogazw /W > approx -loc , Buried FAA.
- ) —— control cable
T hg. |\ 15000 Q) —| st revar
50000 fh A-2 Q
iy
he o TTTTTC 1Y
:,'_\, T wg g =z
: % 228,381 st &
approx. location, e X ofw
underground telephone B pover | @& : 5-243 ac. ;:
- ® &
XY ) | m o W
1 | z
L0 1
|
|
3 (209)
-._'_: | approx. loc.,
I & 0 City Waterline
10"util. ecsmt,
05 e e SR 09
Y T EBFP R R P ke Fabhad ot o ok 7

CERTIFICAT
b=

1 HEREBY
PROPERTY S
PLAN OF Sut
THE USE SH

W=

CITY MANA{

-

ATTEST:
{ .

CITY CLERK
/

NOTARY'S /

SUBSCRIBEI

EQE_L_.

NOTARY PUE
MY COMMIS!

PLAT APPF

THIS Pl
PLANNING

KENAI PEN

BY:
AUTHOR

"
(1]

174



/
o | [ e e | [fr [ e 1
o | [ °
R
WATER/SEWER,

4 SITE DEVELOPMENT,
AND LEASE LOTS

FUTURE TERMINAL

EXPANSION RESERVE
AREA

NEW
GATE

SITE DEV

- ——— 4]

-

1S INIOd ILINVHD

I

COVERED PARKINC

EXPANSION

2
Z
m
B
o
<
b
w
=

T |

_______ — 2= | PARKING LOT ‘
Ul REHABILITATION

— i ACCESS AND

OVERFL
PARKINC




10 x 20 UTHLITY -
EABEMENT

QUZEE T .EL 85 L5 5

. — — — Il.].llJ

176

s T g - -

_|Il|lmtItl.r.il,[llilllllll.ill.llili

—HfF

o . s S

o o D R e D e o

100

SECURITY GATE —=|

i
L]

S

N [ S S
90 x B UTILITY EASEVENT

L



111'-0°

175-0"

B9-0"

LT D

T

}

F——————
R S S |

/AT FIRST FLOOR PLAN

100'Q"

______________

\@/ 3/32" = 10" (22X34); 3/64" = 10" (11X17)

KLAUDER & COMPANY ARCHITECTS, INC.

SOAR HANGAR MARCH 21, 2017
JOB #1623 |

177



175-0"
’I‘\ ~ =
% | I- N o ol \/ ]
f ¥ 1T T T 3is 1 = 13— I =
'8' &= l 140" x 1807

4’ OVERHEAD DOOR ‘#

MECHANICAL LESTROCL | |

9-2"x 710" || 8-5" x 74" | 1

il | :

| |

| |

| |

| |

| |

| ——— N
o e 7 TR ST s SRS TR A v ) s et o ) S, e e D By R 5 I e o T R R = e

HANGAR
PEDESTRIAN 175-0" x 100'-0"
PASSAGEWAY
T E :::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::E
[ A2 EVAPORATIVE TRENCH
=
Ad.1
0 e
B S R e R SR g

KLAUDER & COMPANY ARCHITECTS, INC. 178
/AT MAIN HANGAR FLOOR PLAN 7 @ SOAR HANGAR _ MARCH 21, 2017

JOB # 1623
\&J} 1/8 = 10" (22X34); 116" = 10" (11X17)




4810" 110" Y
150" 146" 146" —

L
384"
: 384"

A

89'-0"

| e
| b
= ——— am i il
_— ; ; ‘ l @ HHHH STAIR z @
Y I =
=) [+
DINING BELOW o === L o =i 3 LoBBY E O
5 . BREAK ROOM - OFFICE || BOOKKEEPER- = ADMIN OFFICE -~ (3 27'-6" x 28" @
Z 3 27-8" x 208" 146" x 11-0 V140" x 11" 1420"x 110" 7 x
N I & k I SUSPENDED .
., -y g \ BEa— = g
BALCONY —~__ | e éPEN 10| & 8 [‘/ LINE OF BALGONY " HINE O BALCONY TWO STORY R
L BELOW |) & ! ARINE ATRIUM =
= " e BALCONY ——=—| & [ %, | L
B g ) | GAS FIREPLACE (1
® 5 = — )
[ F . f : /€ oH
OFFICE EQUIPMENT 5 o “MEN e 5
. 116" x 11411 PLATFORM » ] 2 —— 1410" x 70" N P Lol 120" x 70" ] &
5l /R 5 ' ' v = ol
= = s 12 x 1267 : ; e B
\A3.1/ p /AN [:Fk TH
12 .
PRINT ALCOVE : Y R Ban : %ﬁ’?— 2
e ° , z R . Y frinte EEEEEE
PALLET ST E 110 VOLT REEL
. " — OFFICE 110 VOLT REEL il s
11-6" x 120 — g M11'-2'x12'~o\‘ : & AIR HOSE REEL ) ke
. = T —— ™ ,
& i TABLE / CHAIR MECHANI L4 5
o~ TAIR = ; " ELECTRICAL ) g
- ) o i STORAGE -< 160" x 11-0° Lo -
® R g 0-6"x 96" I‘
OPEN TO - SHOP
e BELOW P, 600" x 59'-0"
y : OFFICE — 2 OCCUPANCY LOAD 49 GARAGE BAY
7 - /AT 116" x 12'-0" = & 160" x 400
@© Q W T T— o b =
~ ® by G
o o ‘IQ 220 VOLT REEL 110 VOLT REEL
ﬁ-} P -.f/_— 220 VOLT REEL ———==mw{ & AIR HOSE REEY
P O
pr | ' ] ]
= J §
% (. | L]
48" QOFFICE =
5 16'-2" x 2071 & ‘
7 ; 110 VOLT REEL L] H
s 8 . 2 L s | womren |
S F = ¥ | REEL
=
. I EVAPORATIVE TRENGH EVAPORATHVE |
E L TRENCH ..
~ ~
" \ \
- 128" x 160" :_n “——' 128" x 160" —r
Q OVERHEAD DOOR Q ’ _ (o] OVERHEAD DOOR
I I b | i i ¥ L 1L I
o o[ o ' o of o X J o | o o
174" 166" \p3.9/ 16-10" 16'-6" \A3Q/ 606"

/A1 SECOND FLOOR PLAN @ /A2 OFFICE / SHOP FIRST FLOOR PLAN @
\@;} 118" = 1-0" (22X34); 1/16" = 1-0" (11X17) REF \&3/ 1/8" = 1-0" (22X34); 116" = 10" (11X17) REF

" 120" 12'-0" 12'-0"

2'-0"
|
— =

z

' PARKING T
LWay HALLWAY _[

x7-a

- -DESTRIAN PASSAGEWAY h | /A3 ENLARGED PEDESTRIAN PASSAGEWAY

= i i : _ \A2.2/ 1= 10" (22Xa4); 18" = 10" (11X17) REF
EXF O R
' o KLAUDER & COMPANY ARCHITECTS, INC.| 179

/
N
SN SOAR HANGAR MARCH 21, 2017
JOB # 1623

-0"
D
T—I"\II\"'TT‘
&
]
&
b
5
\
\

.

20"




/AT SOUTH ELEVATION
@ 3/32" = 1-0" (22x34); 3/64" = 1-0" (11x17)

(A2 EAST ELEVATION

3.0/ 332" = 10" (22x34); 3/64" = 1-0" (11x17)

KLAUDER & COMPANY ARCHITECTS, INC.

SOAR HANGAR MARCH 21, 2017
JOB # 1623

180




/A1 NORTH ELEVATION
\Q;_;y 3/32" = 10" (22x34); 3/64" = 10" (11x17)

/A2 WEST ELEVATION
\qu 3/32" = 1-0° (22x34); 3/64" = 1-0" (11x17)

KLAUDER & COMPANY ARCHITECTS, INC.| 181

SOAR HANGAR MARCH 21, 2017
JOB # 1623




e

T T ITY

/AT BUILDING SECTION

TYPICAL ROOF ASSEMBLY 'A'

@/ 3/32" = 1-0" (22x34); 3/64" = 10" (11x17)

12

ELEV.38-7 1/2°

T.0. RIDGE

/A2 BUILDING SECTION - ENLARGED

5" INSULATED METAL PANEL
STEEL PURLINS
STEEL BEAM

S DR

A3\ WALL SECTION

ELEV.31'4"$ £ I
1 T.0. EAVE E |
i |
TYPICAL WALL ASSEMBLY 'A' =
o 4" INSULATED METAL PANEL | E
« STEEL GIRT H !
o  STEEL COLUMN E |
4" CONCRETE SLAB W/ r j
THICKENED EDGE, TYP i |
i .
— - = X l B e v
A Bl
ANV NN
RN

W 1/8" = 1-0" (22x34); 116" = 10" (11x17)

w 112" = 10" (22x34); 1/4" = 1-0" (11x17)

KLAUDER & COMPANY ARCHITECTS, INC.

MARCH 21, 2017

SOAR HANGAR

JOB # 1623

182




ELEV-SS‘-1: l;ézs $, TYPICAL ROOF ASSEMBLY 'B'
TO. R «  METAL PANEL
_ § «  UNDERLAYMENT
e ELE\#?-%;{% « (1) LAYER 5/8" PLYWOOD
0. SHEATHING

i ELEV.29-0" +  ROOF TRUSSES
TO. WALL « 18" FIBERGLASS BATT

INSULATION IN TRUSS CAVITY

N ELEV. 240" $ +  VAPOR BARRIER
T.O. WALL * (1) LAYER %" GYPSUM BOARD
- ELEV.11-6"
2ND FLOOR

ELEV. 179 1/4" _ |
T.0. RIDGE

¢ ELEV.15'0" A
TO. WALL ‘

|

ELEV.0-0"
18T FLOOR iE:
=
-
ﬂ&\ BUILDING SECTION - ENLARGED N
w 1/8" = 1-0 (22x34); 116" = 1-0" (11x17) ] -
TYPICAL WALL ASSEMBLY '8' =
o METAL PANEL -
= MOISTURE BARRIER L=
s (1) LAYER 1/2 PLYWOOD ]
SHEATHING
o 2x8 WOOD STUDS AT 16" 0.C.
«  FIBERGLASS BATT
INSULATION
[ Aa «  VAPOR BARRIER
Ad.1 e (1) LAYER 5/8" GYPSUM —
BOARD T
12 ELEV.35-11 1/2"
—— = = s - - < -
ettt 1 TO. RIDGE
' s ELEV.31'4"
— T.O. EAVE

VINYL WINDOW, —————_
TYP §

ey | et

| _ ELEV. 240"
] T.O. WALL

4* CONCRETE SLAB W/
THICKENED EDGE, TYP
_ ELEV.11-6" |=
2ND FLOOR

AN
g o, / /\
, meeod KKK

v

R &
PR W
A m%*\\yk %

/A2 BUILDING SECTION - ENLARGED /A3 WALL SECTION
\Ad.1/ 118" = 10" @2x4); 1167 = 10 (11x17) \ad.1/ 172 =10 @2y 1= 1o (117)

o )
ARG

-

KLAUDER & COMPANY ARCHITECTS, INC.| 183

SOAR HANGAR MARCH 21, 2017
JOB # 1623




PRS- : 4 FUTURE
L 0 PROPOSED : _ SRR LAND ACQUISITIONS
LAND ACQUISTTIONS X e ' BOUNDARY

- g

3

OWNER: KENAI NATIVE|
ASSOCIATIO

KENAI INDUSTRIAL PARK i
SUBD .:

P T
. S

I Yo s

. ;

§ ALASKA REGIONAL




Vithage with a Fast, City with a Future”
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794

Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

y
KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Elizabeth Appleby, City Planner
DATE: May 8, 2019
SUBJECT: Action Approval for Lease Assignment to Don Moffis and Joann Doyle

Mary Jane Doyle has submitted a request to the City to assign her Lease of Airport Lands to Don
Moffis and Joann Doyle. Mary Jane Doyle leases the property described as Lot 5, Block 1, Gusty
Subdivision Addition No. 1. The lot will continue to be leased for the Big Dipper Car Wash and
the assignment will not constitute a change of use. A map of the parcel is attached to this
memorandum.

Mary Jane Doyle is in compliance with the terms of the existing lease. The original lease was
executed on November 16, 1983, and recorded on December 12, 1983, in Book 225 at Pages
376 — 394. The most recent amendment is the Eighth Amendment to Lease executed on January
22, 2013, which adjusted the lease rate to $7,236.97 per year.

The original lease was executed by Patrick J. Doyle and Mary J. Doyle, husband and wife. Patrick
Doyle passed away on August 20, 2016. Mary Jane Doyle entered into an Agreement for
Purchase and Sale of Real Property to Don Moffis and Joann Doyle on May 7, 2019, for the
business and leasehold interest in the property.

If City Council approves, City Administration would execute the assignment of the leases from
Mary Jane Doyle to Don Moffis and Joann Doyle. City Administration has no objection to the lease
assignment. Thank you for your consideration.

185



Lot 5,
Block 1,
Gusty Subdivision,
Addition No. 1

(Kenai Peninsula Borough
Parcel Number
04327015)

1 inch equals 83 feet

The information depicted here

on is for graphic representation
only of the best available sources.
The City of Kenai assumes no
responsibility for errors on this

186
Date: 5/9/2u1y




CITY OF KENAI

CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT

The Assignment of that certain Lease of Airport Lands entered into on November 16, 1983, and
recorded in Book 225 at Page 376 - 394, on December 12, 1983, in the Kenai Recording
District, from MARY JANE DOYLE whose address is 2243 Beaver Loop Road, Kenai, AK 99611,
to DON MOFFIS and JOANN DOYLE, husband and wife, whose address is 2241 Beaver Loop
Road, Kenai, AK 99611, covering the following-described property:

Lot 5, Block 1, GUSTY SUBDIVISION ADDITION NO. 1, AMENDED, according
to the official plat thereof, filed under Plat No, 84-183, in the records of the Kenai
Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska,

is hereby ACKNOWLEDGED AND CONSENTED TO, subject to the same terms and conditions
as contained in the above-described original Lease of Airport Lands, and any and all
amendments thereto.

This Consent is given by the City of Kenai without waiving any right or action, or releasing the
Assignor from any liability or responsibility under the aforementioned Lease, and does not
relieve the Assignee from the condition requiring the City's approval for any subsequent
sublease or assignment.

Dated this day of , 2019.
Paul Ostrander
City Manager
Consent to Assignment of Lease — Lot 5, Block 1, Gusty Subd. Addition No. 1, Amended Page 1 of 2

187



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF ALASKA )
) ss
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT )
THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this day of , 2019, Paul Ostrander, City

Manager of the City of Kenai, Alaska, being personally known to me or having produced
satisfactory evidence of identification, appeared before me and acknowledged the voluntary and
authorized execution of the foregoing instrument on behalf of said City.

Notary Public for Alaska
My Commission Expires:

Approved as to form:

Scott Bloom, City Attorney

After Recording, Return to:

City of Kenai
210 Fidalgo Avenue
Kenai, AK 99611

Consent to Assignment of Lease — Lot 5, Block 1, Gusty Subd. Addition No. 1, Amended Page 2 of 2

188



v

’%Z%ow with a Fast &gg with a Future

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

y
KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
FROM: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
DATE: May 6, 2019
SUBJECT: Discussion Item — Scheduling a Council Work Session for Land Sale

and Leasing Policies and Practices

The purpose of this memo is to provide additional information to assist in scheduling a work
session to discuss administrative recommendations on changes to the City’s Land Sale and
Leasing Policies and Practices.

Administration will provide an approximately ten-minute presentation on recommendations from
a working group of City staff involved in land management as it relates to the lease and sale of
General Fund Lands and Airport Land Outside of the Airport Reserve as well as an update on the
City’s Land Management Plan. The working group is available to present June 10 — June 30,
20109.

Your consideration is appreciated.

189



Sunday
2
9
16
Father's Day
23
30

Monday Wednesday Thursday
3 4 5 6
10 11 12 13
Clerk and Deputy Clerk Planning & Zoning Work | Council on Aging Mtg
in WA at Training Session 5:30 p.m. 4:30 pm e
Planning & Zoning Mtg. | Airport Commission Mtg
Harbor Commission Mtg 7:00 p.m. 6:00 pm
6:00 p.m.
17 18 19 20
City Council Mtg. 6:00
p-m.
24 25 26 27

Planning & Zoning Mtg.
7:00 p.m.

Friday

14

Saturday

8

Kenai Peninsula Air Fair

15

Kenai Kite Festival

190



Vithage with a Fast, City with a Future”
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794

Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
\\7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Terry Eubank, Finance Director
DATE: May 9, 2019
SUBJECT: Finance Department, May 2019 Mid-month Report

For the past month much of the department’s focus has been on the preparation of the City's
FY2020 Budget. Budget Ordinance adoption is scheduled for the May 15" Council meeting. City
code requires adoption by June 10™. The Resolution establishing the 2019 mill rate is also
scheduled for adoption on May 15" to coincide with adoption of the FY2020 Budget Ordinance.

The department is working on a renewal plan for employee benefits. A resolution authorizing
renewal is also in the May 15" Council Packet. The City is negotiating through our broker, USI
Insurance Services, to get the best renewal rate and coverage for the City and its employees.

The department submitted its property, liability and workers’ compensaton insurance premium
credit application for the upcoming renewal year. This is a large document that takes cooperation
from all departments. Special thanks is owed to Ms. Feltman of Public Works for her assistance
in putting the document together. This document is a bit time consuming but has reduced the
City’s insurance costs by an average of $40,000 per year. The document shows the commitment
to safety, training and education by the City and its employees. We are currently waiting on
renewal quotes for these coverages from both public entity risk pools operating in the State.
Quotes are expected any day and a resolution authorizing the binding of coverage for FY2020
will likely be before Council for passage at the June 5" Council meeting.

The department is preparing for the upcoming Personal Use Fishery. Preparation includes
updates to the Dip Net App, updates to our point of sale software, and road work on South Spruce
Ave.

191



’%Z%OM with a Fast, &L}« with a Fatuwre”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014

ty www.kenai.city
KENAI, ALASKA
\\7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Jeff Tucker, Fire Chief
DATE: May 6, 2019
SUBJECT: Fire Department Mid-Month Report - April

In April the department responded to 125 call for service as compared to 121 calls in April 2018.
April statistically is the department’s slowest month of the year. For the first quarter of the year
the department has responded to 531 calls compared to 478 in 2018. This is an 11.09% increase
compared to 2018. Compared to the previous 5 years average of 449 calls for service during the
first quarter of the year the department is up 18.26%.

With the retirement of Engineer John Wichman the department conducted a testing process for
the vacant Engineer position. Firefighter Pete Coots was the successful candidate and was
promoted effective April 22, 2019.

The Department sent three individuals to the pre-build conference for our new fire engine.
Engineer Sam Satathite, Shop Foreman Randy Parrish and Fire Chief Jeff Tucker met with factory
representatives at the Pierce factory in Bradenton, Florida, to review the design of the new engine.
Delivery at this time is planned for mid-November.

Fire Chief Jeff Tucker attended the Congressional Fire Services Institute’s 31st Annual National
Fire & Emergency Services Symposium and Dinner in Washington DC.

Administrative Assistant Rebecca Matthews attended the Kenai Chamber of Commerce & Visitor
Centers Women in Business Summit.

The department completed our annual training program at CINGSA. The crews review operating
plans and receive updates on any changes at the facility.

192



“/ . . . ”
Vittage with a Fast, City with a Future
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

7
KHQ%?}NN

MEMORANDUM

TO: Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Mary Jo Joiner

DATE: May 1, 2019

SUBJECT: Library Mid-Month Report

April Circulation Figures

Adult Fiction 1,148 Internet Access 766
Adult Non-Fiction 1,005 iPad use 155
Young Adult Fiction 159 Games 4
Periodicals 101 Room Booking 148
Juvenile Fiction 339 Music 51
Juvenile Non-Fiction 333 DVDs 1,922
Easy Fiction 831 Audio books 70
Easy Non-Fiction 160 Miscellaneous 65
Interlibrary Loan 3 Computer Programs

Books — Consortium 329 Media — Consortium 135
Total Print 4,408 Total Non-Print 3,316

Total Circulation 4/19 7,724 Downloadable Audio 662
Total Circulation 4/18 8,455 Downloadable EBooks 535
% change -8.6% % change in downloadable +20%
In-House circulation 325

193



Page 2 of 2

Library Mid-Month Report

Library Door Count....... 8,046
KENAI COMMUNITY LIBRARY
Income
Fines S 415'84 163 Main Street Locg  Kenal, AK 99811 907.2083-4378
Xerox 159,25 Library Cards Issued April
Kasilof 3
Lost/Damaged 19.20 Kenai 58
Test Proctoring Fee 20.00 Nikiski 5
Ninilchik 1
Printing 273.00 Non-Resident 3
Other Peninsula 6
Other 2.00 Soldotna 4
Total income S 889.29
Total 50

Programs.—

In April 10 volunteers worked about 58 hours. There were 18 children’s programs with 462 total in
attendance, and 220 adult and family programs with 192 attendees. In April, we ordered 1 interlibrary
loan item not available through the consortium and received 1 item, we returned 1 item and loaned 2

items to other libraries who are out of state or not in the consortium.

194



v

I%Zﬂ/af/e with a Fast &%{» with a Future

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014

ty www.kenai.city
KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Scott Curtin, Public Works Director
DATE: May 2019
SUBJECT: Mid-Month Report; Public Works / Capital Projects

¢ Terminal Building Rehabilitation Project — Blazy Construction was issued a Notice to Proceed
on October 1, 2018. The project is approximately 37% complete to date. Inside the facility
the new Car Rental areas and Airline Tenant space 2 are nearing their final completion.
Anticipating Grant and Budget moving into their new spaces within the next month. On the
exterior the roof abatement continues, new roofing installation is now complete on about 1/3
of the building and is expected to continue through the end of May. Project Completion date
remains scheduled for February 2, 2020. The A/E Team and Contractor have processed
roughly 95% of the required submittals, as well as responding to 179 RFls to date. The project
is proceeding well.

New Roofing Lounge & New Steel

195



Page 2 of 4
Mid-Month Report

Automated Flight Service Station Renovations Phase 3 (Interior remodel) — Invitations to Bid
were released on November 16, 2018 with Bids due on December 14, 2018. Ordinance 3049-
2019 was enacted on February 20, 2019 accepting additional Funding from the FAA for the
Project to be completed as requested. Polar North Construction was issued a formal Notice
of Award on February 27, 2019; Agreement has been executed with a Notice to Proceed
issued on March 14, 2019. Submittals are being processed, however work has yet to begin
due to additional unanticipated requirements from the FAA. Update: Contractor was able to
mobilize and begin work on facility starting 4/29/19, demolition of training rooms is underway.
Coordination with the FAA is now proceeding well.

WWTP_Improvements — The combined Aeration Blower Replacement / DO Probes project
Invitation to Bid was released on February 13, 2019 with Bids due on March 27, 2019. Two
Bids were received with Peninsula Construction being the lowest responsive and responsible
bidder. The City elected to execute a deductive alternate #1 which removed the digester
blowers and associated DO probe from the project for budget purposes. Executed Contract
is for $1,035,000.00 and shall provide for complete replacement of the three Aeration Basin
Blowers and associated DO Probes and analyzer. Project is anticipated to take place
throughout the summer with completion in the fall. Council approved the project through
Resolution 2019-21 at the April 3, 2019 meeting. Notice to Award was issued to Peninsula
Construction on April 10, 2019. Update: Contractor has mobilized to the site, submittals are
ongoing. Notice to Proceed was issued on April 11, 2019. Project is expected to run through
October 31, 2019.

Blower Dissolved Oxygen Probe

Dock repair — The City Dock received some new damages as a result of the November 30,
2018 Earthquake. Public Works and Finance are coordinating with the insurance company
to complete an Engineer's assessment of the damages. Anticipating the current project

196



Page 3 of 4
Mid-Month Report

documents being modified to account for the new damages. Invitations to Bid for this project
will likely be May 2019.

o Purchase Street Sweeper — Bid was awarded to Yukon Equipment and Street Sweeper was
delivered 5/10/19 and placed into service!

e Recreation Center Improvements — Repairs to correct the exterior grading / drainage will take
place May/June 2019. Remaining grant funds are expected to be used by end of fiscal year
June 30™.

o Kenai Cemetery Expansion 2018 — Design Documents are 100% complete. Project will bid
late winter for a May/June 2019 construction start.

e Peninsula Avenue Bluff Erosion 2018 — Design Documents are now 100% complete. Project
Area continues to be monitored throughout the winter months for additional erosion.
Invitations to Bid will be released late winter for a May/June 2019 construction start. Early
March 2019 Public Works Staff removed trees near the roadway erosion to allow trucks to
quickly access in the event breakup occurs too quickly.

o Alaska Regional Fire Training Facility — RFP for Engineering, Design, and Construction
Administration Services Released March 14, 2019 with Proposals due on April 4, 2019. A
Professional Services Agreement was executed with Morrison Maierle on May 8, 2019. Site
Visits are schedule for 5/13-5/14 with Design Documents anticipated completion of July 31,
2019, and a formal invitation to bid for construction first week of August 2019.

197



Page 4 of 4
Mid-Month Report

o USACE BIluff Erosion — See City Manager's report. Director’'s Report from the Army Corp of
Engineers was signed April 10, 2019.

o DOT KSH Rehabilitation (Widening to 5 lanes) Phase 1 Swires Rd. to Eagle Rock Dr. was bid
on March 30, 2018. City of Kenai water main replacement crossing KSH at Shotgun/Beaver
Loop designed, funded, and will be bid with DOT project. Update: The 16” new water main
associated with this project has now been installed under the Highway.

e DOT KSH Rehabilitation (Widening to 5 lanes) Phase 2 Eagle Rock Dr. to Sports Lake —
ADOT advises this project will take place 2019.

o DOT Beaver Loop Road and Pedestrian Pathway Project — ADOT advises construction may
begin as early as June 2019.

198



’%Z%OM with a Fast, &L}« with a Fatuwre”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

O
KENAI, ALASKA
\\7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Mary Bondurant, Airport Manager
DATE: May 1, 2019
SUBJECT: May Mid-month Report

2018 Terminal Rehabilitation Project — Construction: This project is well under way. The Upper
Deck is closed from April 1 through May 31, 2019. All Departure and Arrival traffic is at the
north end of the terminal, south entrance is closed off.

2019 Airfield Marking, Crack Sealing, & Pavement Repair — Design is complete and the project
will be advertised the week of May 7, 2019.

2019 Alaska Fire Training Facility Rehabilitation — A contract was awarded for design services
and should be complete middle of July. Invitations to bid for construction will be advertised late
July and early August 2019.

In-house Activities — Airport Operations continues snow and sand clean-up on the airfield and
terminal grounds. The float plane basin is open and the crew will be working on the slips and
repairing the roof to the registration shack.

19" Annual Kenai Peninsula Air Fair - Mark your calendar for Saturday, June 8" Posters and t-
shirts are printed! We are very excited to have the 9" Army Band for live music and many military
units have committed to the event.

TSA Inspection — The annual TSA inspector will be at the Kenai Airport on May 13-14",

FAA Certification Inspection — The annual FAA 139 certification inspection will be held June 25-
27, 2019.

199



Page 2 of 2
Airport Mid-Month Report

Tri-annul Mass Casualty — A requirement of CFR 139.325 for a holder of a Class 1 Airport
Operating Certificate is a full-scale airport emergency plan exercise at least once every 36
consecutive calendar months. This drill is scheduled for October 2, 2019.

19th Annual

Kenai Peninsula Air F
June 8th;2019

Hilcorp Alaska

WINCE - CORTHELL - BRYSON CONSULTING ENGINEERS * ANQP
PENINSULA AERO TECHNOLOGY, INC. % PENINSULA EAR NOSE AND THROAT

mm . PUBLIC 1
e WELCOME ...

Soldotna Airport BAR-B-QUE

EAA BREAKFAST LIVE MUSIC
PILOT REGISTRATION 9T§Aﬁ6‘“
8:00 a.m.to 11:00 a.m. 12:00 pm to 3:00 pm

FOR INFORMATION CALL (907) 283-7951 or (907) 262-4672
www.KenaiAirport.com www.ci.soldotna.ak.us

200



2
KENAI, ALASKA
&/

I%%z;/e with a Fast &6{»& with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014

www.kenai.city

Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council

Jessica “JJ” Hendrickson, Animal Control Chief

MEMORANDUM

TO:

THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
THROUGH: Dave Ross, Police Chief
FROM:

DATE: May 6, 2019

SUBJECT: April 2019 Monthly Report

This month the Kenai Animal Shelter took in 68 animals. Animal intake and disposition:

DOGS:
INTAKE 41 | DISPOSITION 21
Waiver 16 | Adopted 7
Stray 8 | Euthanized 1
Impound 3 | Claimed 5
Protective Custody 0 | Field Release 0
Quarantine 3 | Transferred to Rescue 8
Other Intakes 11 | Other Dispositions 0
CATS:
INTAKE 25 | DISPOSITION 30
Waiver 12 | Adopted 18
Stray 13 | Euthanized 5
Impound 0 | Claimed 1
Protective Custody 0 | Field Release 0
Quarantine 0 | Transferred to Rescue 6
Other Intakes 0 | Other Dispositions 0
OTHER ANIMALS:
INTAKE 2 | DISPOSITION 2
Guinea Pig 2 | Guinea Pig 2
DOA: 5 | OTHER STATISTICS:
Dog 4 | Licenses (City of Kenai Dog Licenses) 11
Cat 1 | Microchips (Dog and Cat) 2
Rabies Clinic 331

201



Page 2 of 2
Animal Control Mid-Month Report

2 Citations

© Animal dropped with After Hours (days we are closed but cleaning and with KPD)
61.5 Volunteer Hours Logged

? Animals are known borough animals

31 Field Investigations & patrols

Statistical Data:

223 2017 YTD Intakes
228 2018 YTD Intakes
246) 2019 YTD Intakes

202



“/ . . . ”
Vittage with a Fast, City with a Future
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

y
KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Elizabeth Appleby, City Planner
DATE: May 7, 2019
SUBJECT: Planning and Zoning April 2019 Report

Below are a summary of activity in April 2019 for the Planning and Zoning Department.

Planning and Zoning Commission Agenda ltems and Resolutions

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of one plat, recommended
approval of one lease renewal of land within the Airport Reserve, and recommended approval
one change to Kenai Municipal Code with amendments:

Resolution PZ2019-10 — Original Preliminary Plat of Inlet Woods 2019 Replat, submitted
by McLane Consulting, Inc., P.O. Box 468, Soldotna, Alaska 99611, on behalf of the Hall
Building LLC, P.O. Box 2829, Kenai, AK 99611

Application for Renewal of Lease Land within the Airport Reserve submitted by
Schilling Rentals LLC, for the property described as Lot  9A, FBO Subdivision No. 9,
located at 433 N. Willow Street, Kenai, Alaska 99611

Resolution PZ2019-13 — Amending Kenai Municipal Code 14.20.320 — Definitions -
14.20.330 - Standard for Commercial Marijuana Establishments and 14.22.010 — Land
Use Table, to Incorporate Onsite Consumption of Marijuana at Retail Marijuana
Establishments into the City of Kenai's Code of Ordinances

Planning and Zoning staff approved of two site plans administratively:

203



Page 2 of 2
Planning and Zoning Mid-Month Report

e Resolution PZ2019-08 — Application for a landscaping/site plan approval for Kenai
Peninsula Housing Initiative located at 2390 Redoubt Avenue, Kenai, Alaska 99611, and
further described as Lot 2, Kenai Meadows

e Resolution PZ2019-05 — Application for a landscaping/site plan approval for John C.
Schweiger Loving Trust located at 255 South Willow Street, Kenai, Alaska 99611, and
further described as Lot 8, Aleyeska Subdivision Part 2

Lands, Economic Development, and Outreach
The City Planner attended a board meeting for the Kenai Peninsula Economic Development
District.

The City Planner attended a meeting of the 2020 U.S. Census Complete Count Committee.

The City Planner attended a meeting of the City of Kenai Council on Aging to discuss planning
resources from AARP.

The City Planner attend a board meeting for the Alaska Chapter of the American Planning
Association.

The temporary lands staff-person is making progress research City-owned lands, which will be
used to create a Land Management Plan.

The City Planner and Administration met to clarify lands processes and tracking and following up
with City lands contacts.

City staff met to discuss Kenai Municipal Code for City-owned properties.
Plans and Reports

The City Planner met to discuss the Kenai Peninsula Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services
Transportation Plan, with a draft plan expected to be released in May 2019.

Code Enforcement

5 cases were opened in April 2019:
e 2 —Junked or Abandoned Vehicles
e 1-—Garbage
o 2 —lllegal Structures

204



’%Z%OM with a Fast, &L}« with a Fatuwre”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014

ty www.kenai.city
KENAI, ALASKA
\\7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Robert J. Frates, Parks & Recreation Director
DATE: May 7, 2019
SUBJECT: Mid-month Report - May

The department has been performing various maintenance tasks and making preparations in
anticipation of the summer season. The following is a list of recent accomplishments:

Coordinating use of baseball and softball fields with KCHS. Late snow in Homer and in
the Mat-Su Valley caused some scheduling issues and allowed Kenai to host some extra
games. KCHS will be hosting the 2019 Region Il Conference Softball Tournament, May
24 and 25.

Completed all interviews for our temporary maintenance openings.

Held our first annual Easter Egg Hunt on April 19, 2019.

Staff spent some time scouting various City properties for illegal camps.

Coordinated removal of dead spruce trees with a church organization. There are some
pending trees in Municipal Park and a few behind the Main St. Tap & Grill along Ryan’s
Creek Trail.

The Director and Mark Griffin inventoried beetle Kill trees at the Kenai Golf Course on May
4, 2019. There are 65 to 70 trees that are recommended for removal.

Restrooms with running water were serviced and opened for use. Trash receptacles
delivered to several spots.

Staff obtained permit and burned slash in the City yard.

Parking lot and sidewalk areas swept, including Municipal Park, Daubenspeck Family
Park, Blue Star Memorial and Leif Hansen Memorial Park.

Maintenance is being performed to remaining ball diamonds at the Kenai Little League
and Adult Softball complex. All fields should be opened and available for use by May 10.
Ordered & received fertilizer.

Solicited last year's community gardeners for early sign-ups.

The department has recovered 18 sharps from the field since March 25.

205



{%//afe with a Fast &%{» with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

04
KENAI, ALASKA
\\.7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: David Ross, Police Chief
DATE: May 6, 2019
SUBJECT: Police & Communications Department Activity — April 2019

Police handled 719 calls for service in March. Dispatch received 256 9-1-1 calls. Officers made
41 arrests. Traffic enforcement resulted in 117 traffic contacts and 45 traffic citations.

There were 4 DUI arrests (1 felony). Officers investigated 9 motor vehicle crashes. There were
no collisions involving moose. There were no collisions involving drugs or alcohol.

April training included: The KPD officer on the SERT team attended two days of training. One
officer attended a three day Street Crimes training in Anchorage. One officer attended a week
of Child First interview training in Anchorage. One officer started a two week Drug Enforcement
class in Anchorage. One dispatcher attended a week long emergency medical dispatching
training conference in Washington, DC.

In addition to handling police calls in various schools, the School Resource Officer assisted with
ALICE drills at four of the Kenai schools. He also participated in a pre-prom safety presentation
at KCHS and was present for prom.

Total Police Service Calls 911 Calls Received

* 2019(Jan 1 - Apr 30) ~ 2018(Jan 1- Apr30) = 2017(Janl - Apr 30)

206



’%Z%ya with a Fast &gg with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
W
MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Kathy Romain, Senior Center Director
DATE: May 6, 2019
SUBJECT: April 2019 Monthly Report
Congregate Meals Served (Dining Room) 1312
Home Delivered Meals 1426
Volunteer Hours (43 individuals)
553
Unassisted Transportation Rides 389
Assisted Transportation Rides 151
Social Security Video Service 53 individuals
Senior Center Rentals 2
Total Events Sign Ins (through MySeniorCenter) 2,657
Total Unduplicated Participants (through MySeniorCenter) 274

Spring is here!

April activities included a No-Host Dinner to Roscoe’s in Ninilchik, Easter egg decorating and
a delicious Easter Brunch on Good Friday.

The Senior Center is the new home for the local Pioneers of Alaska, which is a statewide
organization whose mission is to collect and preserve the history of Alaska and maintain
genealogy rolls of those who founded Alaska and made it their home. Monthly meetings are
held on the 2" Monday of each month at 6 p.m. The Pioneers used to meet at the Senior
Center when it was housed in the Fort Kenai building.

Spotlighting volunteer Don Erwin this month. Don is retired Marathon management and is
guite essential to the weekly operations of the Senior Center. He volunteers regularly as a
driver and trains staff on the use of the wheelchair van. He also serves as Vice-Chair of the
Mayor’s Council on Aging. Don is a great asset to the Senior Center staff for his knowledge
and abilities that he brings to the table.

207



’%Z%ya with a Fast &L} with a Fature”

210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794
Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
W

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Terry Eubank, Finance Director
DATE: May 6, 2019
SUBJECT: Quarterly Financial Report

Attached is a relatively easily produced quarterly financial report for the General Fund, Personal
Use Fishery Fund, Airport Fund, Water/Sewer Fund, and Senior Fund as of March 31, 2019.

This report is essentially on a cash basis, so there are accounts that may not look reasonable. In
the General Fund for example, sales and property tax revenue only includes payments made to
the City by the Borough through February. The first calendar quarter 2019 sales tax filings and
tax payments are not in at this point and we will not be received for this quarter until the end of
April or early May.

State and Federal is below budget in all funds because of PERS aid. The State doesn't actually
give us any money. Instead they make an ‘on-behalf’ payment to the pension system. Similarly
we have not booked expenditures for the PERS the State is covering, so the Non-Departmental
department is way under budget. At year-end we will record revenue and expenditures for these
items.

208



Quarterly General Fund
Expenditure Report
For Quarter Ended March 31, 2019

Original *
FY2018 FY2019 Amended YTD
Actual Budget Budget Actual Variance %
REVENUES
Appropriation of Fund Balance $ - $ 1,024,939 $1,037,439 $ - $(1,037,439) 0.00%
Taxes 10,722,698 10,980,713 10,980,713 7,938,685 (3,042,028) 72.30%
Licenses/Permits and Ambulance 580,156 528,000 528,000 351,298 (176,702) 66.53%
State/Federal 740,441 885,464 929,710 422,511 (507,199) 45.45%
Dock/Multipurpose/Miscellaneous 152,902 119,500 119,500 116,097 (3,403) 97.15%
Fines and Forfeitures 67,347 93,000 95,154 53,379 (41,775) 56.10%
Interest and Miscellaneous 316,871 531,741 637,791 515,758 (122,033) 80.87%
Transfers/Central Admin Fees 2,103,951 2,020,420 2,020,420 1,252,093 (768,327) 61.97%
Total Revenues 14,684,366 16,183,777 16,348,727 10,649,821 (5,698,906) 65.14%
EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS
General Government
01 City Clerk $ 247,305 $ 311,005 $ 312,555 $ 213,474 $ 99,081 31.70%
11 Legislative 158,693 174,150 174,150 124,798 49,352 28.34%
12 Legal 297,294 359,998 359,998 235,243 124,755 34.65%
13 City Manager 327,461 352,446 352,446 247,318 105,128 29.83%
14 Human Resources - 169,809 169,809 66,850 102,959 60.63%
15 Finance 635,325 709,531 709,531 494,420 215,111 30.32%
16 Land Administration 1,333 24,337 29,337 9,515 19,822 67.57%
18 Non-Departmental 478,599 903,077 910,577 424,697 485,880 53.36%
19 Planning and Zoning 198,156 226,876 226,876 155,027 71,849 31.67%
20 Safety 3,760 19,150 19,150 650 18,500 96.61%
Total General Government 2,347,926 3,250,379 3,264,429 1,971,992 1,292,437 39.59%
Public Safety
21 Police 2,852,647 3,107,201 3,109,355 2,184,952 924,403 29.73%
22 Fire 3,052,652 3,171,122 3,171,122 2,117,249 1,053,873 33.23%
23 Communications 788,262 858,551 858,551 575,640 282,911 32.95%
29 Animal Control 381,856 422,192 423,692 300,089 123,603 29.17%
Total Public Safety 7,075,417 7,559,066 7,562,720 5,177,930 2,384,790 31.53%
Public Works
31 Public Works Administration 196,415 185,811 185,811 102,843 82,968 44.65%
32 Shop 617,384 669,652 669,652 418,307 251,345 37.53%
33 Streets 961,944 1,077,437 1,077,437 579,350 498,087 46.23%
34 Buildings 320,542 386,950 386,950 241,713 145,237 37.53%
35 Street Lighting 173,925 172,819 176,396 118,429 57,967 32.86%
60 Dock 52,665 74,783 71,206 16,243 54,963 77.19%
Total Public Works 2,322,875 2,567,452 2,567,452 1,476,885 1,090,567 42.48%
Parks and Recreation & Culture
03 Visitor Center 179,048 180,251 180,251 129,779 50,472 28.00%
40 Library 893,001 892,033 900,283 575,662 324,621 36.06%
# Parks, Recreation & Beautification 1,009,708 1,112,167 1,251,163 786,301 464,862 37.15%
Total Parks and Recreation & Culture 2,081,757 2,184,451 2,331,697 1,491,742 839,955 36.02%
Total Operating Expenditures 13,827,975 15,561,348 15,726,298 10,118,549 5,607,749 35.66%
Transfer to other funds
Street Improvement Capital Project Fund 75,172 200,000 200,000 200,000 - 0.00%
Senior Center Impr. Capital Projects - 45,670 45,670 - 45,670 100.00%
Kenai Recreation Center Capital Project Funi - 27,500 27,500 27,500 - 0.00%
New City Shop Capital Project Fund 35,000 - - - - -
Public Safety Building Capital Proj. Fund 120,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 -
Kenai Animal Shelter Capital Proj. Fund 35,000 - - - -
Cemetery Improvements Capital Proj. Fund 250,000 - - - -
Senior Citizen Special Revenue Fund 176,739 170,857 170,857 128,142 42,715 25.00%
Debt Service 142,002 143,402 143,402 143,271 131 0.09%
Total Transfer to other funds 833,913 622,429 622,429 533,913 88,516 14.22%
Total Expenditures & Transfers 14,661,888 16,183,777 16,348,727 10,652,462 5,696,265 34.84%
Net Revenues over(under) Expenditures $ 22,478 $ - $ - $ (2,641) $ (2,641) 209

* Note: The original budget includes outstanding encumbrances at 6/30/2018.



Quarterly Personal Use Fishery Fund
Expenditure Report
For Quarter Ended March 31, 2019

Original *
FY2018 FY2019 Amended YTD
Actual Budget Budget Actual Variance %

REVENUES

Beach Parking $ 174614 $ 175000 $ 175000 $ 118,307 $ (56,693) -32.40%

Beach Camping 210,269 225,000 225,000 129,939 (95,061) -42.25%

Dock Launch & Park 111,528 115,000 115,000 91,478 (23,522) -20.45%

Dock Parking Only 12,009 15,000 15,000 9,547 (5,453) -36.35%

Participant Drop-off Fee 7,481 8,000 8,000 5,943 (2,057) -25.71%

Interest Earnings 1,522 750 750 - (750) -100.00%

PERS Grant 1,546 4,169 4,169 - (4,169) -100.00%

Credit Card Fees 674 (1,500) (1,500) (3,175) (1,675) 111.67%
Total Revenue 519,643 541,419 541,419 352,039 (189,380) -34.98%
EXPENDITURES

Public Safety $ 114542 % 96686 $ 96686 $ 86431 $ 10,255 10.61%

Streets 32,938 61,066 61,066 40,358 20,708 33.91%

Boating Facility 56,380 72,137 72,137 42,853 29,284 40.59%

Parks, Recreation & Beautification 225,445 328,712 328,712 260,916 67,796 20.62%
Total Expenditures 429,305 558,601 558,601 430,558 128,043 22.92%
Net Revenues over Expenditures $ 90,338 $ (17,182) $ (17,182) $ (78,519) $ (61,337

*  Note: The original budget includes outstanding encumbrances at 6/30/2018.

210



REVENUES

Appropriation of Fund Balance

State/Federal

Interest , Leases & Fees
Terminal Revenues
Landing Fees

Transfers In

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS

Terminal Area
Airfield
Administration
Other Buildings & Areas
Training Facility
Total Expenditures

Transfer to other funds

Airport Improvement Capital Projects

Total Transfer to other funds

Total Expenditures & Transfers

Net Revenues over Expenditures

* Note: The original budget includes outstanding encumbrances at 6/30/2018.

Quarterly Airport Fund

Expenditure Report

For Quarter Ended March 31, 2019

Original *
FY2018 FY2019 Amended YTD
Actual Budget Budget Actual Variance %
$ - 8 - $15945% % - $(1,594,590) 0.00%
21,891 36,385 36,385 - (36,385) 0.00%
797,425 716,745 716,745 621,526 (95,219) 86.72%
701,429 748,025 748,025 536,169 (211,856) 71.68%
401,556 432,500 432,500 288,749 (143,751) 66.76%
1,210,348 1,230,025 1,230,025 - (1,230,025) 0.00%
3,132,649 3,163,680 4,758,270 1,446,444 (3,311,826) 30.40%
$ 578328 $ 630,109 $ 630,676 $ 380,620 $ 250,056 39.65%
1,631,810 1,731,779 1,757,779 1,259,043 498,736 28.37%
287,537 596,199 357,611 206,753 150,858 42.18%
199,008 (68,278) 169,743 97,529 72,214 42.54%
36,125 38,474 38,474 3,240 35,234 91.58%
2,732,808 2,928,283 2,954,283 1,947,185 1,007,098 34.09%
397,157 233,221 1,803,987 1,570,721 233,266 0.00%
397,157 233,221 1,803,987 1,570,721 233,266 12.93%
3,129,965 3,161,504 4,758,270 3,517,906 1,240,364 26.07%
$ 2684 $ 2,176  $ - $(2,071,462) $(2,071,462)

211



Quarterly Water Sewer Fund

Expenditure Report

For Quarter Ended March 31, 2019

Original *
FY2018 FY2019 Amended YTD
Actual Budget Budget Actual Variance %
REVENUES
Appropriation of Fund Balance $ -8 -8 - 3 -8 - 0.00%
State/Federal 17,347 33,668 33,668 - (33,668) 0.00%
Water/Sewer Fees 2,796,242 2,863,453 2,863,453 2,124,153 (739,300) 74.18%
Penalty and Interest 36,959 43,250 43,250 34,013 (9,237) 78.64%
Interest and Miscellaneous 36,550 19,000 19,000 3,768 (15,232) 19.83%
Total Revenues 2,887,098 2,959,371 2,959,371 2,161,934 (797,437) 73.05%
EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS
Water $ 841231 $ 967,771 $ 980,271 $ 673372 $ 306,899 31.31%
Sewer 310,002 499,384 499,384 269,685 229,699 46.00%
Wastewater Treatment Plant 1,116,312 1,208,057 1,208,057 771,910 436,147 36.10%
Total Expenditures 2,267,545 2,675,212 2,687,712 1,714,967 972,745 36.19%
Transfer to other funds -

Water & Sewer Capital Projects 146,193 - - - - -
Total Transfer to other funds 146,193 - - - - -
Total Expenditures & Transfers 2,413,738 2,675,212 2,687,712 1,714,967 972,745 36.19%

Net Revenues over Expenditures $ 473,360 $ 284,159 $ 271,659 $ 446,967 $ 175,308

* Note: The original budget includes outstanding encumbrances at 6/30/2018.

212



REVENUES
Appropriation of Fund Balance
State Grants
USDA Grant
Choice Waiver
KPB Grant
United Way
Rents & Leases
Miscellaneous Donations
Donations - Senior Connection
Meal Donations
Ride Donations
Transfer from General Fund - Operations
Transfer from General Fund - Capital
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS
Senior Citizen Access
Congregate Meals
Home Meals
Senior Transportation
Choice Waiver

Total Expenditures

Transfer to other funds -
Total Transfer to other funds

Total Expenditures & Transfers

Net Revenues over Expenditures

Quarterly Senior Fund
Expenditure Report
For Quarter Ended March 31, 2019

Original *
FY2018 FY2019 Amended YTD

Actual Budget Budget Actual Variance %
$ - 3 24354 $ 24354 $ - $  (24,354) 0.00%
198,577 203,626 203,626 143,136 (60,490) 70.29%
18,958 15,000 15,000 12,445 (2,555) 82.97%
195,012 200,000 200,000 105,651 (94,349) 52.83%
126,207 126,207 126,207 126,207 - 100.00%
9,598 15,000 15,000 3,631 (11,369) 24.21%
8,324 13,000 13,000 3,478 (9,522) 26.75%
40,797 25,000 28,500 1,709 (26,791) 6.00%
50,000 50,000 50,000 11,918 (38,082) 23.84%
82,836 82,500 82,500 49,787 (32,713) 60.35%
6,870 7,000 7,000 3,211 (3,789) 45.87%
176,739 170,857 170,857 128,143 (42,714) 75.00%
- 45,670 45,670 - (45,670) 0.00%
(40) 300 300 20 (280) 6.67%
913,878 978,514 982,014 589,336 (392,678) 60.01%

$ 157,065 $ 157,364 $ 157,364 $ 97,030 $ 60,334 38.34%

220,661 285,370 287,995 153,065 134,930 46.85%
205,563 209,875 210,750 131,720 79,030 37.50%
80,086 81,234 81,234 58,759 22,475 27.67%
250,503 244,671 244,671 169,210 75,461 30.84%
913,878 978,514 982,014 609,784 372,230 37.90%
913,878 978,514 982,014 609,784 372,230 37.90%

$ - 3 - 3 - $ (20,448) $ (20,448)

* Note: The original budget includes outstanding encumbrances at 6/30/2017.

213



Vithage with a Fast, City with a Future”
210 Fidalgo Ave, Kenai, Alaska 99611-7794

Telephone: (907) 283-7535 | Fax: (907) 283-3014
www.kenai.city

KENAI, ALASKA
\\7

MEMORANDUM
TO: Mayor Brian Gabriel and Kenai City Council
THROUGH: Paul Ostrander, City Manager
FROM: Terry Eubank, Finance Director
DATE: April 29, 2019
SUBJECT: March 2019 Quarterly Investment Report

City of Kenai Investment Portfolio

At March 31, 2019 the City had investments with a market value of $22,280,896 that is down from
$24,304,851 at December 31, 2018. The City’s portfolio is yielding 2.24% that is up from 2.14%
at December 31, 2019.

City’s Investment Portfolio

US Agency Securities $ 3,487,025
AML Investment Pool 487,341
Wells Fargo Money Market 1,590,806
FDIC Insured Certificates of Deposit 16,152,532
Bank Balance 563,192

Total $22,28,896

Permanent Fund Investments

The first quarter 2019 saw a recovery of the fourth quarter 2018 sell-off and no change in the
Federal Funds Rate. Equities propelled the portfolio to a return of 7.77% for calendar year 2019.
Since inception the portfolio has returned 7.99%. As of March 31, 2019 the portfolio value was
$28,558,245, comprised of $25,251,842 (88.42%) Airport Land Sale Permanent Fund,
$3,158,393 (11.06%) General Land Sale Permanent Fund monies, and $148,011 (0.52%) Kenai
Community Foundation holdings.

With the Airport Land Sale Permanent Fund’s year ending balance of $23,429,628, the allowable
transfer to airport operations for FY2019 is $1,203,690. The FY2019 budgeted amount was
$1,230,025 meaning the actual will be $26,335 less than budgeted. This transfer will be made in
June prior to yearend. Because of the sell-off in the fourth quarter of 2018 there will be no transfer
in FY2019 from the General Land Sale Permanent Fund. Future transfers are more probable with
the new methodology codified by Council.

214



CITY OF KENAI
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY
March 31, 2019

March 31, 2019

Fair Market Current
Value Yield |
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Wells Fargo Checking $ 563,192 0.40%
Wells Fargo Secured Money Market 1,590,806 2.39%
FDIC Insured Certificates of Deposit 16,152,532 2.37%
Alaska Municipal League Investment Pool 487,341 2.34%
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 18,793,871 2.31%
Average
Yield |
Government Securities
Maturities Less than 1 Year 1,000,000 2.43%
Maturities 1 to 2 Years 1,997,505 1.69%
Maturities Greater than 2 Years 489,520 1.50%
Total Government Securities 3,487,025 1.88%
Total Portfolio $ 22,280,896 2.24%
Investment Portfolio - Purchase Price $ 20,394,240 Portfolio Liquidity
Investment Portfolio - Fair Value 06/30/18 20,134,606 $16,000,000 1
. . $12,000,000 -
Fair Value Adjustment - 06/30/18 (259,634)
$8,000,000 -
Fair Value Adjustment thru - 03/31/19 155,321
$4,000,000 -
Cummulative Change in Fair Value $ (104,313) 0 |
Liquidity 20% Maturity 1 - 2 years Maturity over 2 years
Minimum 30% Maximum
BPolicy Minimum/Maximum BActual

215



CITY OF KENAI
INVESTMENTS
3/31/2019

SECURITY
FHLMC 1.70 8/24/20

FNMA 1.375 3/30/21

FNMA 1.50 5/25/21

TVA 3.875 2/15/21
US Treasury 1.625 3/31/19

TOTAL

FDIC Insured CD's
3.55 AXP 12/4/23
2.50 BOBIN 7/31/19
2.35 BOIIN 5/1/19
3.10 BANK MIDWEST CD 9/15/23
2.60 OZK 11/4/19
1.60 BPRN 10/28/19
2.30 BACR 10/18/22
2.85 BAY ST. SVGS BK 4/6/20
1.65 BHLB 10/28/19

2.30 CAMDEN NATION BANK 4/30/19

2.4 COF 4/19/22

2.4 COF 8/30/22

1.65 CATY 10/28/19
2.60 CENBKK 6/18/20
3.15 CFBANK 9/18/23
3.30 C 9/7/23

1.70 ADS 8/28/19

1.65 CWBKNA 12/30/19
2.75 DISCOVER BANK 9/21/20
2.55 CMS 1/18/22

2.55 FRMRBT 3/19/20
2.60 FRSTFD 1/10/20
2.85 FIBIND 6/30/20
1.60 FRME 12/30/19
2.30 FINN 02/21/20
2.70 FRC 7/7/20

1.50 FSBDQN 6/28/19
3.10 SRCE 10/21/22
2.65 First St Bk Bigfork
2.80 FIRST WESTN TR BK
2.35 GS 8/30/22

2.30 HSBC 7/14/22
2.55 HAFC 10/21/19
2.60 IBKC 3/23/20

1.65 ILBKIL 10/31/19
2.35 IDBNY 6/26/19
2.30 KENNEB 08/24/20
1.65 KEY 10/25/19

2.60 LSAVBK 1/3/20
2.25 MBFI 2/14/20

1.70 MSBKGR 10/24/19

1 TIME 5/24/18 w/ 5
days

9/30/2016 Quarterly
w/10 days. Step 3/17
1.50, 3/18 1.75, 3/19
2.0, 3/20 3.25
11/25/2016 Quarterly
w/10 days.

Bullet

Bullet

CD - 12/31/10

2.30 MERCHANTS BNK OF INDIANA 4/30/19

2.40 MERBKB 7/30/19

1.70 MERICK 8/30/19

2.65 Metabank Sioux Falls SD
2.60 MS 2/15/22

1.75 MS 9/30/19

2.05 NTLNYC 8/30/22

3.40 NCBSVG 12/21/23

2.75 NEWBUF 1/17/20

2.15 NRTHFL 10/25/22

2.80 ORIENTAL BANK 9/14/20
2.10 SMARTB 11/27/19

1.75 SOWNAT 5/8/20

2.75 SBIIN 02/16/23

2.35 SYF 10/20/22

2.15 EVER 10/28/22

2.05 THFDSL 10/27/21

1.60 TWNBNK 10/28/19

3.00 TOWN 9/27/21

2.80 UBS 9/14/20

2.45 UMPQ 7/31/19

3.25 VYSTAR CREDIT UNION 12/11/20

1.70 WEX 10/18/19

2.00 WFC 10/27/22

2.50 ZION 8/14/19
TOTAL FDIC Insured CD's

WELLS MONEY MKT
AML POOL - City ACCT

WF Cash
TOTAL
TOTAL CURRENT YIELD
Maturity over 2 years 30% Maximum

Liquidity 20% Minimum
Maturity 1 - 2 years

Agreed to Amlip

Agreed to GL

Agreed to WF

Max/Min
6,684,268.77
4,456,179.18

27471
33681
33648
5170
110
58513
57203
90311
23621
4255
33954
4297
18503
35450
28263
7213
57570
57176
5649
57293
1291
58647
34607
4365
5452
59017
21805
9087
10991
57607
33124
57890
24170
28100
33708
19977
17897
17534
253
3628
5766
8056
57777
34519
30776
32992
34221
18734
32612
31257
28710
31469
58463
4801
33682
27314
34775
30012
18487
35095
57565
17266
68490
34697
3511
2270

Expected Call
or Maturity

CUsIP

3134GBMD1

3136G3DV4

3136G3MW2

880591EL2
912828C65

02589AA28
06062R5M0
06279KRF5
063615BM9
06417NDZ3
064520AH2
06740KLD7
072623AK7
084601KU6
133033DY3
1404202E9
14042RHS3
149159LK9
156444BG5
15721UCQ0
17312QS34
20033AWB8
20084TIW4
254673TS5
29278TAK6
309162AE5
32026UMAL
32056GDE7
32082BEL9
332135HH8
33616CBRO
336460CC2
33646CKJ2
33651EAD4
337504AE4
38148PNS2
40434YLES
410493DS6
45083AKP6
45906ABUO
465076MS3
489265AZ1
49306SZA7
549104EF0
55266CYJ9
56062HAD1
588493JS6
58958PFB5
59013JA25
59101LFD4
61747MK83
61760ADR7
634116CM7
635573AL2
643056BG8
66612ABX5
68621KCC3
83172HDR8
845182BA1
856285HZ7
87164WTC2
87270LAVS
88413QBT4
89210PBL6
89214PCAS
90348JDQ0O
90421MCLS
92891CCB6
92937CGA0
94986T2N6
98970L3N1

MONTHS

Return
2.5020%
2.1077%
2.2729%

2.2437%

CITY OF KENAI
Investments 03-31-19 COK

Current year cost or Unrealized

06/30/18 03/31/19 Gain Accrued

original cost Market Value Market Value or Loss Interest
1,000,000 978,760.00 990,320.00 11,560.00 1,747.22
500,000 485,080.00 493,695.00 8,615.00 3,456.60
502,479 481,300.00 489,520.00 8,220.00 2,625.00
555,678 514,815.00 513,490.00 (1,325.00) 2,475.69
1,000,451 1,000,451.07 1,000,000.00 (451.07)  8,125.00
3,558,607.95 3,460,406.07 3,487,025.00 26,618.93  18,429.51
249,998 249,998.13 251,619.90 1,621.77 2,811.79
245,000 245,000.00 245,088.20 88.20 2,550.68
245,000 245,000.00 245,017.15 17.15 2,381.87
245,000 245,000.00 246,913.45 1,913.45 312.12
245,000 245,000.00 245,262.15 262.15 488.66
245,000 242,040.40 243,843.60 1,803.20 53.70
245,000 236,385.80 240,697.80 4,312.00 2,547.33
245,000 245,000.00 245,911.40 911.40 2,219.10
245,000 242,199.65 243,917.10 1,717.45 1,738.83
245,000 245,000.00 245,004.90 4.90 2,346.63
247,000 240,825.00 244,426.26 3,601.26 2,663.54
245,000 237,809.25 241,770.90 3,961.65 483.29
245,000 242,199.65 243,914.65 1,715.00 55.38
245,000 245,000.00 245,365.05 365.05 244.33
245,000 245,000.00 247,430.40 2,430.40 296.01
245,000 245,000.00 248,946.95 3,946.95 553.77
245,000 242,885.65 244,304.20 1,418.55 45.64
247,000 243,549.41 245,535.29 1,985.88 357.30
245,000 245,000.00 246,006.95 1,006.95 239.97
245,000 240,724.75 244,056.75 3,332.00 273.86
245,000 245,000.00 245,166.60 166.60 22251
245,000 245,000.00 245,259.70 259.70 1,396.16
245,000 245,000.00 246,136.80 1,136.80 612.16
247,000 243,369.10 245,441.43 2,072.33 346.48
245,000 243,576.55 244,634.95 1,058.40 169.82
245,000 245,000.00 245,700.70 700.70 453.08
247,000 244,858.51 246,476.36 1,617.85 324.82
245,000 245,000.00 247,288.30 2,288.30 228.89
245,000 245,000.00 245,367.50 367.50 213.45
245,000 245,000.00 245,820.75 820.75 206.74
245,000 237,333.95 241,374.00 4,040.05 473.22
245,000 237,341.30 241,266.20 3,924.90 1,188.75
245,000 245,000.00 245,188.65 188.65 188.28
245,000 245,000.00 245,284.20 284.20 191.97
245,000 242,177.60 243,902.40 1,724.80 354.41

245,000 245,000.00 244,985.30 (14.70) -
245,000 242,243.75 244,424.25 2,180.50 586.66
245,000 242,226.60 243,934.25 1,707.65 1,749.90
245,000 245,000.00 245,257.25 257.25 1,535.78
245,030 243,432.00 244,541.85 1,109.85 271.85
245,000 242,395.65 244,007.75 1,612.10 91.29
245,000 245,000.00 245,004.90 4.90 2,346.63
245,000 245,000.00 245,007.35 7.35 2,464.77
245,000 242,868.50 244,294.40 1,425.90 365.15
245,000 245,000.00 245,311.15 311.15 2,419.12
245,000 240,996.70 244,216.00 3,219.30 785.34
245,000 242,981.20 244,318.90 1,337.70 375.89
245,000 234,438.05 238,973.00 4,534.95 440.33
247,234 247,233.86 250,034.75 2,800.89 2,305.01
245,000 245,000.00 245,575.75 575.75 276.88
245,000 234,842.30 239,414.00 4,571.70 2,280.18
245,000 245,000.00 246,166.20 1,166.20 375.89
245,000 243,436.90 244,465.90 1,029.00 56.38
245,000 240,563.05 243,042.45 2,479.40 281.92
245,000 239,877.05 243,961.20 4,084.15 812.19
245,000 236,856.20 241,097.15 4,240.95 2,571.16
245,000 234,785.95 239,379.70 4,593.75 2,208.02
245,000 237,356.00 241,508.75 4,152.75 2,146.60
245,000 242,040.40 243,843.60 1,803.20 53.70
245,000 245,000.00 247,364.25 2,364.25 120.82
245,000 245,000.00 246,166.20 1,166.20 338.30
245,000 245,000.00 245,046.55 46.55 2,499.67
245,000 245,000.00 248,219.30 3,219.30 698.08
245,000 242,449.55 244,042.05 1,592.50 1,882.81
245,000 240,016.70 244,492.85 4,476.15 2,094.25
245,000 245,000.00 245,093.10 93.10 2,315.75
16,185,262.20 16,033,315.11 16,152,531.69 119,216.58  65,984.86
1,590,806.18 1,590,806.18 1,590,806.18 - 3,041.94
487,341.22 487,341.22 487,341.22 - 907.13
21,822,017.55 21,571,868.58 21,717,704.09 145,835.51  88,363.44
563,191.81 563,191.81 563,191.81 - -

22,385,209.36 22,135,060.39 22,280,895.90 145,835.51  88,363.44

Actual

5,615,753
11,719,512

4,945,632

22,280,896

Difference
1,068,516.21 OK
(7,263,332.51) OK

(104,313.46)

EFFECT.
RATE

1.700

2.000

1.500
1.370
2.430

1.800

3.160
2.500
2.350
3.100
2.600
1.600
2.300
2.850
1.650
2.300
2.400
2.400
1.650
2.600
3.150
3.300
1.700
1.650
2.750
2.550
2.550
2.600
2.850
1.600
2.300
2.700
1.500
3.100
2.650
2.800
2.350
2.300
2.550
2.600
1.650
2.350
2.300
1.650
2.600
2.250
1.700
2.300
2.400
1.700
2.650
2.600
1.700
2.050
3.220
2.750
2.150
2.800
2.100
1.750
2.750
2.350
2.150
2.050
1.600
3.000
2.800
2.450
3.250
1.700
2.000
2.500

2.368

2.390
2.340

0.400

2.2437%

216



Fixed Income

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

Government & Corporate Securities

Government Securities
Corporate Securities

Total Government & Corporate Securities

Total Fixed Income

Equities
Domestic Equities
Standard & Poor's 500 Index

Standard & Poor's 600 Small-Cap Index
Standard & Poor's 400 Mid-Cap Index

Total Domestic Equities

International Equities
Europe Pacific ETF

Vanguard Emerging Market ETF

Total International Equities
Real Estate

Vanguard REIT ETF
Total Real Estate

Total Equities
Total Portfolio

Total ALSPF Balance
Total GLSPF Balance

Total Kenai Community Foundation

CITY OF KENAI

PERMANENT FUND
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

March 31, 2019

Current or  Current
Fair Market Value Average  Portfolio Target Portfolio
31-Mar-18  30-Jun-18 30-Sep-18 31-Dec-18 31-Mar-19 Yield Weight Weight  Maximum
2,100,230 1,403,998 90,388 1,661,032 1,545,212 2.39% 5.41%
2,100,230 1,403,998 90,388 1,661,032 1,545,212
4,902,429 5,372,788 7,514,414 5,874,888 6,821,504 2.38% 23.89%
5,661,962 5,577,526 5,166,325 5,153,955 4,570,777 2.82% 16.01%

10,564,391 10,950,314 12,680,739 11,028,843 11,392,281 2.56% 39.90%

12,664,621 12,354,312 12,771,127 12,689,875 12,937,493 2.55% 45.31%  45.00% 65.00%
5,529,449 5,579,731 5,702,415 5,007,131 5,751,108 20.14% 20.00% 25.00%
1,459,340 1,412,562 1,402,625 1,170,059 1,323,301 4.63% 5.00% 10.00%
2,879,200 2,802,375 2,819,740 2,416,173 2,807,855 9.83% 10.00% 15.00%
9,867,989 9,794,668 9,924,780 8,593,363 9,882,264 34.60% 35.00% 50.00%
3,335,175 2,957,795 2,893,212 2,577,221 2,845,695 9.96% 10.00% 15.00%
1,940,340 1,588,428 1,451,135 1,321,379 1,449,173 5.07% 5.00% 10.00%
5,275,515 4,546,223 4,344,347 3,898,600 4,294,868 15.03% 15.00% 25.00%
1,056,580 1,140,300 1,410,465 1,315,599 1,443,620 5.06% 5.00% 10.00%
1,056,580 1,140,300 1,410,465 1,315,599 1,443,620 5.06% 5.00% 10.00%

16,200,084 15,481,191 15,679,592 13,807,562 15,620,752

28,864,705 27,835,503 28,450,719 26,497,437 28,558,245 7.77%  100.00% 100.00% 150.00%

25,520,119 24,612,777 25,156,764 23,429,629 25,251,842
3,202,031 3,078,461 3,146,501 2,930,478 3,158,393

142,554 144,265 147,454 137,330 148,011

75.00%

50.00%

25.00%

0.00%

Portfolio Composition

Fixed Income

Standard & Poor's
500 Index

Standard & Poor's
600 Small-Cap

Index

Standard & Poor's
400 Mid-Cap Index

Europe Pacific ETF

Vanguard
Emerging Market
ETE

Vanguard REIT ETF

BCurrent Portfolio Weight

@Target Portfolio Weight

OMaximum Portfolio Weight ‘

15.00%

Portfolio Performance

10.00%

5.00%

0.00%

-5.00%

N

Current Month

Current Quarter

Year to Date

Last 1 Year

Inception to Date

‘D Portfolio

0.98%

7.77%

7.77%

3.85%

7.99%

‘l Benchmark

0.98%

7.97%

7.97%

4.65%

8.11%

217



Total ALSPF Balance
$27,000,000
$25,000,000 " ./\’\
\7
$23,000,000 N Noor /\
$21,000,000 Transfer of $1,158,473
to Airport Operations. Transfer of $1,195,313 Transfer of $1,184,356
to Airport Operations. to Airport Operations.
$19,000,000 \ /
Transfer of $1,147,714 Transfer of 51,210,348
$17,000,000 to Airport Operations. to Airport Operations.
$15,000,000 T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
PN S O S T B R S SR R S R R N T S
& & F &F£ & @& F F & @ F FFFE S LS L
Total GLSPF Balance
$3,500,000
$3,000,000 N W /
o WW / e
2,500,000 /X /\ |
5 Transfer of $161,561 to
General Fund Operations.
$2,000,000 1 Transfer of $154,172 to Transfer of $149,802 to
General Fund Operations. \ General Fund Operations.
$1,500,000 Transfer of $153,493 to
General Fund Operations.
$1,000,000
$500,000
S- T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
> (' \ \J g % & < © o © e A A A % Q> <
Y 2 e I e 2 "e e ; 2 Y "y A 2 e A e 2 N ) ; 2
& T W E Y & Y Y Y Y
160,000 Total Kenai Community Foundation Balance
$140,000 e ‘74
$50,000 investment. ’/.___‘//(
$120,000 / A\\
$100,000 $5,000
/ investment.
$80,000 Initial investment of
$66,143.
$60,000 /
$40,000 \/
$20,000 /
$- ) g ) 4 ) 4 ) g ) 4 ) g D g T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
NI ST\ N BV SOl BN BN B A YN N RV S S SN N SN YN N N
T W T T W T e T W T e T W T e o W e @ Y 218




CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS
Account Statement - Period Ending March 31, 2019

il ALASKA PERMANENT
B CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

*
*|
* %
P ——— Registered Investment Adviser

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY MANAGEMENT TEAM
Portfolio Value on 02-28-19 28,277,366 Client Relationship Manager: Amber Frizzell, AIF®
Amber@apcm.net
Contributions 0
Withdrawals -384 Your Portfolio Manager: Bill Lierman, CFA®
Change in Market Value 203,369
Interest 29,044 Contact Phone Number: 907/272 -7575
Dividends 45,911
Portfolio Value on 03-31-19 28,555,306

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

Current Account Benchmark:
Equity Blend

Percent Total Return (Gross)

- l
0.00

Current Current Year to Latest 1 Inception to
Month Quarter Date Year Date

[= Portfolio 0.98 7.77 7.77 3.85 7.99

ll Benchmark 0.98 7.97 7.97 4.65 8.11

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

6T¢

Emer Mkts Real Estate
5%. 5%




Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

PORTFOLIO SUMMARY AND TARGET
CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS

March 31, 2019

%

Asset Class & Target Market Value Assets Range

FIXED INCOME (45%)

US Fixed Income (40.0%) 11,392,281 39.9 35% to 65%

Cash (5.0%) 1,563,668 5.5 0% to 10%
Subtotal: 12,955,949 45.4

EQUITY (50%)

US Large Cap (20.0%) 5,751,108 20.1 15% to 25%

US Mid Cap (10.0%) 2,807,855 9.8 5% to 15%

US Small Cap (5.0%) 1,301,906 4.6 0% to 10%

Developed International Equity (10.0%) 2,845,695 10.0 5% to 15%

Emerging Markets (5.0%) 1,449,173 5.1 0% to 10%
Subtotal: 14,155,737 49.6

ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS (5%)

Real Estate (5.0%) 1,443,620 5.1 0% to 10%
Subtotal: 1,443,620 5.1

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 28,555,306 100

220



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS

March 31, 2019

Yield
Average Total Market Pct.  Annual Accrued to
Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity
FNMA & FHLMC
20,773 FHLMC POOL G14203 104.56 21,720 103.20 21,438 0.08 831 69 2.62
4.000% Due 04-01-26
Accrued Interest 69 0.00
21,720 21,507 0.08 69
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
DIVIDEND ACCRUAL 21,395 21,395 0.07
WF ADV GOVT MM FD-INSTL #1751 1,542,273 1,542,273 5.40
1,563,668 1,563,668 5.48
CORPORATE BONDS
200,000 MICROSOFT CORP 117.24 234,472 100.24 200,476 0.70 8,400 2,800 2.68
4.200% Due 06-01-19
200,000 HSBC USA INC 99.61 199,216 99.75 199,494 0.70 4,750 1,821 2.78
2.375% Due 11-13-19
250,000 CAPITAL ONE 99.94 249,850 99.50 248,742 0.87 5,875 995 2.96
2.350% Due 01-31-20
200,000 ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS OPER 112.75 225,494 103.33 206,666 0.72 10,400 867 2.78
5.200% Due 09-01-20
250,000 PNC BANK NA 99.72 249,300 99.60 248,995 0.87 6,125 2,484 2.70
2.450% Due 11-05-20
200,000 NBC UNIVERSAL MEDIA LLC 109.20 218,408 103.30 206,608 0.72 8,750 4,375 2.66
4.375% Due 04-01-21
200,000 AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT 99.92 199,850 99.35 198,698 0.70 4,500 1,825 2.57
2.250% Due 05-05-21
200,000 MORGAN STANLEY 114.98 229,964 105.81 211,624 0.74 11,000 1,925 2.89
5.500% Due 07-28-21
200,000 GILEAD SCIENCES INC 96.28 192,564 98.00 196,002 0.69 3,900 325 2.66
1.950% Due 03-01-22
200,000 BANK AMER CORP 99.34 198,686 101.27 202,540 0.71 6,600 1,467 2.94
3.300% Due 01-11-23
200,000 AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES 100.82 201,632 99.65 199,302 0.70 5,700 253 2.94
2.850% Due 03-15-23
150,000 DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS 98.88 148,320 99.55 149,319 0.52 4,875 2,437 3.37
3.250% Due 04-01-23
200,000 AFLAC INC 104.97 209,950 103.92 207,836 0.73 7,250 2,135 2.63
3.625% Due 06-15-23
200,000 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 97.83 195,666 97.26 194,512 0.68 4,400 550 2.87
2.200% Due 08-16-23
200,000 JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 105.18 210,362 104.10 208,192 0.73 7,750 1,292 2.96
3.875% Due 02-01-24
200,000 METLIFE INC 105.46 210,930 103.32 206,638 0.72 7,200 3,420 2.88

TZc

3.600% Due 04-10-24



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS
March 31, 2019

Yield
Average Total Market Pct.  Annual Accrued to
Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity
175,000 PRUDENTIAL FINANCIAL INC 103.15 180,505 103.47 181,072 0.63 6,125 2,314 2.77
3.500% Due 05-15-24
200,000 WELLS FARGO & COMPANY 99.88 199,764 100.78 201,568 0.71 6,600 403 3.14
3.300% Due 09-09-24
150,000 KIMCO REALTY CORP 94.92 142,377 99.08 148,624 0.52 4,950 825 3.47
3.300% Due 02-01-25
150,000 REYNOLDS AMERICAN INC 108.47 162,700 102.79 154,189 0.54 6,675 2,021 3.93
4.450% Due 06-12-25
200,000 APPLIED MATERIALS INC 107.96 215,912 105.20 210,400 0.74 7,800 3,900 3.01
3.900% Due 10-01-25
150,000 CITIGROUP INC 101.65 152,470 101.58 152,373 0.53 5,550 1,218 343
3.700% Due 01-12-26
200,000 LOWE'S COS INC 100.05 200,098 97.35 194,704 0.68 6,200 2,549 3.48
3.100% Due 05-03-27
Accrued Interest 42,201 0.15
4,628,491 4,570,777 16.01 42,201
DOMESTIC LARGE CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
18,975 FLEXSHARES QUAL DIV ETF 40.79 773,897 44.80 850,080 2.98 NA
17,350 SPDR S&P 500 ETF 142.48 2,472,028 282.48 4,901,028 17.16 NA
3,245,925 5,751,108 20.14
DOMESTIC MID CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
14,825 ISHARES CORE S&P MIDCAP 400 ETF 72.98 1,081,926 189.40 2,807,855 9.83 NA
DOMESTIC SMALL CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
16,875 ISHARES S&P SMALLCAP 600 INDEX ETF 33.28 561,644 77.15 1,301,906 4.56 NA
INTERNATIONAL EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
23,400 ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI EAFE 51.54 1,206,150 60.77 1,422,018 4.98 NA
21,950 ISHARES MSCI EAFE INDEX FUND CLOSED-END FU 61.68 1,353,874 64.86 1,423,677 4.99 NA
2,560,024 2,845,695 9.97
EMERGING MARKET FUNDS/ETF
28,025 ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI EMERGING MKTS 42.08 1,179,249 51.71 1,449,173 5.07 NA
REAL ESTATE
17,275 JPMORGAN BETABUILDERS MSCI US REIT ETF 76.55 1,322,481 83.57 1,443,620 5.06 NA
U.S. TREASURY
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.09 200,172 100.39 200,774 0.70 5,000 435 2.29
2.500% Due 02-28-21
150,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.06 150,094 97.57 146,349 0.51 1,687 424 2.24

1.125% Due 06-30-21

cae



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS

March 31, 2019

Yield
Average Total Market Pct.  Annual Accrued to
Quantity Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity
375,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.34 372,510 99.67 373,770 1.31 7,969 2,003 2.27
2.125% Due 06-30-21
750,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.59 754,414 99.36 745,192 2.61 15,000 6,305 2.26
2.000% Due 10-31-21
525,000 US TREASURY NOTES 101.31 531,879 99.38 521,761 1.83 10,500 2,654 2.23
2.000% Due 12-31-21
425,000 US TREASURY NOTES 97.12 412,765 99.66 423,555 1.48 9,031 2,270 2.23
2.125% Due 06-30-22
350,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.72 349,016 101.45 355,071 1.24 9,187 799 2.24
2.625% Due 02-28-23
300,000 US TREASURY NOTES 98.24 294,727 101.07 303,210 1.06 7,500 932 2.24
2.500% Due 08-15-23
500,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.23 501,133 100.50 502,520 1.76 11,875 1,476 2.27
2.375% Due 08-15-24
150,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.71 149,561 102.58 153,867 0.54 4,125 1,037 2.30
2.750% Due 06-30-25
110,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.35 110,382 101.93 112,119 0.39 2,887 479 2.32
2.625% Due 01-31-26
550,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.75 548,645 101.14 556,253 1.95 13,750 1,196 2.32
2.500% Due 02-28-26
205,000 US TREASURY NOTES 93.93 192,557 95.39 195,543 0.68 3,331 1,261 2.33
1.625% Due 05-15-26
250,000 US TREASURY NOTES 95.26 238,145 97.57 243,915 0.85 5,000 1,892 2.35
2.000% Due 11-15-26
190,000 US TREASURY NOTES 95.29 181,049 98.94 187,982 0.66 4,275 1,618 2.39
2.250% Due 11-15-27
220,000 US TREASURY NOTES 98.74 217,225 102.85 226,274 0.79 6,050 752 2.39
2.750% Due 02-15-28
300,000 US TREASURY NOTES 102.38 307,141 106.07 318,222 1.11 9,375 3,548 2.41
3.125% Due 11-15-28
200,000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.48 200,953 101.84 203,672 0.71 5,250 653 2.41
2.625% Due 02-15-29
Accrued Interest 29,733 0.10
5,712,366 5,799,784 20.31 29,733
AGENCIES
250,000 FHLMC 99.73 249,325 98.99 247,485 0.87 4,250 24 2.38
1.700% Due 09-29-20
250,000 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK - STEP UP 99.85 249,625 98.73 246,835 0.86 5,000 1,889 2.36
2.000% Due 11-14-22
300,000 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 100.00 300,000 100.00 300,000 1.05 8,550 3,729 2.85
2.850% Due 04-24-25
200,000 FHLB 99.79 199,580 100.00 200,010 0.70 7,250 242 3.62

€ac

3.625% Due 03-19-27



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS
March 31, 2019

Yield
Average Total Market Pct.  Annual Accrued to
Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity
Accrued Interest 5,883 0.02
998,530 1,000,213 3.50 5,883
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 22,876,025 28,555,306 100 309,050 77,887

vee



TA4

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS
From 03-01-19 To 03-31-19

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount
PURCHASES
U.S. TREASURY
03-07-19 03-08-19 US TREASURY NOTES 125,000 124,833.99
2.625% Due 02-15-29
03-08-19 03-12-19 US TREASURY NOTES 200,000 200,171.88
2.500% Due 02-28-21
03-20-19 03-22-19 US TREASURY NOTES 150,000 150,691.41
2.500% Due 02-28-26
03-22-19 03-25-19 US TREASURY NOTES 100,000 95,117.19
1.625% Due 05-15-26
03-22-19 03-25-19 US TREASURY NOTES 75,000 76,119.14
2.625% Due 02-15-29
646,933.61
646,933.61
DEPOSITS AND EXPENSES
MANAGEMENT FEES
03-31-19 03-31-19 MANAGEMENT FEES 4,046.28
4,046.28
DIVIDEND
DOMESTIC LARGE CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
03-15-19 04-30-19 SPDR S&P 500 ETF 21,394.61
03-21-19 03-21-19 FLEXSHARES QUAL DIV 3,864.58
ETF
25,259.19
DOMESTIC MID CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
03-26-19 03-26-19 ISHARES CORE S&P 10,389.51
MIDCAP 400 ETF
DOMESTIC SMALL CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
03-26-19 03-26-19 ISHARES S&P SMALLCAP 4,395.16

600 INDEX ETF



9¢¢

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS
From 03-01-19 To 03-31-19

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount
REAL ESTATE
03-25-19 03-25-19 JPMORGAN 5,867.11
BETABUILDERS MSCI US
REIT ETF
45,910.97
INTEREST
AGENCIES
03-19-19 03-19-19 FHLB 3,625.00
3.625% Due 03-19-27
03-29-19 03-29-19 FHLMC 2,125.00
1.700% Due 09-29-20
5,750.00
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
03-01-19 03-01-19 WF ADV GOVT MM 2,902.90
FD-INSTL #1751
CORPORATE BONDS
03-01-19 03-01-19 ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS 5,200.00
OPER
5.200% Due 09-01-20
03-01-19 03-01-19 GILEAD SCIENCES INC 1,950.00
1.950% Due 03-01-22
03-11-19 03-11-19 WELLS FARGO & 3,300.00
COMPANY
3.300% Due 09-09-24
03-15-19 03-15-19 AVALONBAY 2,850.00
COMMUNITIES
2.850% Due 03-15-23
13,300.00



L2c

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS
From 03-01-19 To 03-31-19

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount
FNMA & FHLMC
03-15-19 03-15-19 FHLMC POOL G14203 70.81
4.000% Due 04-01-26
22,023.71
PRINCIPAL PAYDOWNS
FNMA & FHLMC
03-15-19 03-15-19 FHLMC POOL G14203 471.72 471.72
4.000% Due 04-01-26
471.72
PURCHASED ACCRUED INTEREST
U.S. TREASURY
03-07-19 03-08-19 US TREASURY NOTES 190.35
2.625% Due 02-15-29
03-08-19 03-12-19 US TREASURY NOTES 163.04
2.500% Due 02-28-21
03-20-19 03-22-19 US TREASURY NOTES 224.18
2.500% Due 02-28-26
03-22-19 03-25-19 US TREASURY NOTES 583.56
1.625% Due 05-15-26
03-22-19 03-25-19 US TREASURY NOTES 206.66
2.625% Due 02-15-29
1,367.79
1,367.79
SALES, MATURITIES, AND CALLS
CORPORATE BONDS
03-08-19 03-12-19 TORONTO-DOMINION 200,000 199,500.00
BANK
2.250% Due 09-25-19
03-20-19 03-22-19 NEWELL BRANDS INC 150,000 147,447.00
3.850% Due 04-01-23
346,947.00



8¢¢

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS
From 03-01-19 To 03-31-19

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount
U.S. TREASURY
03-07-19 03-08-19 US TREASURY NOTES 125,000 123,447.27
1.250% Due 02-29-20
03-22-19 03-25-19 US TREASURY NOTES 170,000 170,484.77
2.625% Due 07-31-20 -
293,932.04
640,879.04
SOLD ACCRUED INTEREST
CORPORATE BONDS
03-08-19 03-12-19 TORONTO-DOMINION 2,087.50
BANK
2.250% Due 09-25-19
03-20-19 03-22-19 NEWELL BRANDS INC 2,743.13
3.850% Due 04-01-23
4,830.63
U.S. TREASURY
03-07-19 03-08-19 US TREASURY NOTES 33.97
1.250% Due 02-29-20
03-22-19 03-25-19 US TREASURY NOTES 653.35
2.625% Due 07-31-20
687.32
5,517.95
WITHDRAW
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
03-20-19 03-20-19 WF ADV GOVT MM 383.81
FD-INSTL #1751
383.81



6¢¢e

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

REALIZED GAINS AND LOSSES
CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS

From 03-01-19 Through 03-31-19

Avg. Cost
Date Quantity Security Basis Proceeds Gain Or Loss
03-07-19 125,000 US TREASURY NOTES 124,806.64 123,447.27 -1,359.37
1.250% Due 02-29-20
03-08-19 200,000 TORONTO-DOMINION 203,782.00 199,500.00 -4,282.00
BANK
2.250% Due 09-25-19
03-15-19 471.72 FHLMC POOL G14203 493.24 471.72 -21.52
4.000% Due 04-01-26
03-20-19 150,000 NEWELL BRANDS INC 159,022.50 147,447.00 -11,575.50
3.850% Due 04-01-23
03-22-19 170,000 US TREASURY NOTES 170,059.77 170,484.77 425.00
2.625% Due 07-31-20
TOTAL GAINS 425.00
TOTAL LOSSES -17,238.40
658,164.16 641,350.76 -16,813.40



(0] 74

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

CASH LEDGER

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS
From 03-01-19 To 03-31-19

Trade Settle Tran
Date Date Code Activity Security Amount

WF ADV GOVT MM FD-INSTL #1751

03-01-19 Beginning Balance 1,497,549.90

03-01-19 03-01-19 dp Interest WF ADV GOVT MM FD-INSTL 2,902.90
#1751

03-01-19 03-01-19 dp Interest ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS OPER 5,200.00
5.200% Due 09-01-20

03-01-19 03-01-19 dp Interest GILEAD SCIENCES INC 1,950.00
1.950% Due 03-01-22

03-07-19 03-08-19 wd Purchase US TREASURY NOTES -124,833.99
2.625% Due 02-15-29

03-07-19 03-08-19 wd  Accrued Interest US TREASURY NOTES -190.35
2.625% Due 02-15-29

03-07-19 03-08-19 dp Sale US TREASURY NOTES 123,447.27
1.250% Due 02-29-20

03-07-19 03-08-19 dp  Accrued Interest US TREASURY NOTES 33.97
1.250% Due 02-29-20

03-08-19 03-12-19 wd Purchase US TREASURY NOTES -200,171.88
2.500% Due 02-28-21

03-08-19 03-12-19 wd  Accrued Interest US TREASURY NOTES -163.04
2.500% Due 02-28-21

03-08-19 03-12-19 dp Sale TORONTO-DOMINION BANK 199,500.00
2.250% Due 09-25-19

03-08-19 03-12-19 dp  Accrued Interest TORONTO-DOMINION BANK 2,087.50
2.250% Due 09-25-19

03-11-19 03-11-19 dp Interest WELLS FARGO & COMPANY 3,300.00
3.300% Due 09-09-24

03-15-19 03-15-19 dp Interest AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES 2,850.00
2.850% Due 03-15-23

03-15-19 03-15-19 dp Interest FHLMC POOL G14203 70.81

4.000% Due 04-01-26



T€C

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

CASH LEDGER

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS
From 03-01-19 To 03-31-19

Trade Settle Tran
Date Date Code Activity Security Amount

03-15-19 03-15-19 dp Paydown FHLMC POOL G14203 471.72
4.000% Due 04-01-26

03-19-19 03-19-19 dp Interest FHLB 3,625.00
3.625% Due 03-19-27

03-20-19 03-22-19 wd Purchase US TREASURY NOTES -150,691.41
2.500% Due 02-28-26

03-20-19 03-22-19 wd  Accrued Interest US TREASURY NOTES -224.18
2.500% Due 02-28-26

03-20-19 03-22-19 dp Sale NEWELL BRANDS INC 147,447.00
3.850% Due 04-01-23

03-20-19 03-22-19 dp  Accrued Interest NEWELL BRANDS INC 2,743.13
3.850% Due 04-01-23

03-20-19 03-20-19 wd  Withdrawal from Portfolio -383.81

03-21-19 03-21-19 dp Dividend FLEXSHARES QUAL DIV ETF 3,864.58

03-22-19 03-25-19 wd Purchase US TREASURY NOTES -95,117.19
1.625% Due 05-15-26

03-22-19 03-25-19 wd  Accrued Interest US TREASURY NOTES -583.56
1.625% Due 05-15-26

03-22-19 03-25-19 wd Purchase US TREASURY NOTES -76,119.14
2.625% Due 02-15-29

03-22-19 03-25-19 wd  Accrued Interest US TREASURY NOTES -206.66
2.625% Due 02-15-29

03-22-19 03-25-19 dp Sale US TREASURY NOTES 170,484.77
2.625% Due 07-31-20

03-22-19 03-25-19 dp  Accrued Interest US TREASURY NOTES 653.35
2.625% Due 07-31-20

03-25-19 03-25-19 dp Dividend JPMORGAN BETABUILDERS 5,867.11
MSCI US REIT ETF

03-26-19 03-26-19 dp Dividend ISHARES CORE S&P MIDCAP 10,389.51

400 ETF



(AN

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

CASH LEDGER

CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS
From 03-01-19 To 03-31-19

Trade Settle Tran

Date Date Code Activity Security Amount

03-26-19 03-26-19 dp  Dividend ISHARES S&P SMALLCAP 600 4,395.16
INDEX ETF

03-29-19 03-29-19 dp Interest FHLMC 2,125.00
1.700% Due 09-29-20

03-31-19 Ending Balance 1,542,273.47

DIVIDEND ACCRUAL

03-01-19 Beginning Balance 0.00

03-15-19 04-30-19 dp Dividend SPDR S&P 500 ETF 21,394.61

03-31-19 Ending Balance 21,394.61



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL
CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS

March 31, 2019

Unit Total Market Accrued Annual
Cusip9 Original Face Quantity Security Cost Cost Price Value Interest Income
FNMA & FHLMC
3128MC3L7 256,397.0000 20,772.6600 FHLMC POOL G14203 104.562501 21,720.41 103.20200 21,437.80 69.24 830.91
Accrued I 69.24
21,720.41 21,507.04 69.24 830.91
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
DIVIDEND ACCRUAL 21,394.61 21,394.61 0.00
VP4560000 WF ADV GOVT MM FD-INSTL #1751 1,542,273.47 1,542,273.47 0.00
1,563,668.08 1,563,668.08 0.00
CORPORATE BONDS
001055AL6 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 AFLAC INC 104.975000 209,950.00 103.91800 207,836.00 2,134.72 7,250.00
0258MOEB1 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 AMERICAN EXPRESS CREDIT 99.925000 199,850.00  99.34900 198,698.00 1,825.00 4,500.00
038222AJ4 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 APPLIED MATERIALS INC 107.956000 215,912.00 105.20000 210,400.00 3,900.00 7,800.00
05348EARO 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 AVALONBAY COMMUNITIES  100.816000 201,632.00  99.65100 199,302.00 253.33 5,700.00
06051GEU9 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 BANK AMER CORP 99.343000 198,686.00 101.27000 202,540.00 1,466.67 6,600.00
06406FADS 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON  97.833000 195,666.00  97.25600 194,512.00 550.00 4,400.00
14042RFH9 250,000.0000 250,000.0000 CAPITAL ONE 99.940000 249,850.00  99.49700 248,742.50 995.49 5,875.00
172967KG5 150,000.0000 150,000.0000 CITIGROUP INC 101.647000 152,470.50 101.58200 152,373.00 1,217.92 5,550.00
25470DAH2 150,000.0000 150,000.0000 DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS 98.880000 148,320.00  99.54600 149,319.00 2,437.50 4,875.00
29379VAP8 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 ENTERPRISE PRODUCTS OPER 112.747000 225,494.00 103.33300 206,666.00 866.67 10,400.00
375558BHS 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 GILEAD SCIENCES INC 96.282000 192,564.00  98.00100 196,002.00 325.00 3,900.00
40428HPN6 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 HSBC USA INC 99.608000 199,216.00  99.74700 199,494.00 1,820.83 4,750.00
46625HIT8 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 JPMORGAN CHASE & CO 105.181000 210,362.00 104.09600 208,192.00 1,291.67 7,750.00
49446RAU3 150,000.0000 150,000.0000 KIMCO REALTY CORP 94.918000 142,377.00  99.08300 148,624.50 825.00 4,950.00
548661DP9 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 LOWE'S COS INC 100.049000 200,098.00  97.35200 194,704.00 2,548.89 6,200.00
59156RBHO 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 METLIFE INC 105.465000 210,930.00 103.31900 206,638.00 3,420.00 7,200.00
594918AC8 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 MICROSOFT CORP 117.236000 234,472.00 100.23800 200,476.00 2,800.00 8,400.00
61747TWAL3 200,000.0000 200,000.0000  MORGAN STANLEY 114.982000 229,964.00 105.81200 211,624.00 1,925.00 11,000.00
63946BAEO 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 NBC UNIVERSAL MEDIA LLC  109.204000 218,408.00 103.30400 206,608.00 4,375.00 8,750.00
69353REU8 250,000.0000 250,000.0000 PNC BANK NA 99.720000 249,300.00  99.59800 248,995.00 2,484.03 6,125.00
74432QBZ7 175,000.0000 175,000.0000 PRUDENTIAL FINANCIAL INC  103.146000 180,505.50 103.47000 181,072.50 2,313.89 6,125.00
761713BGO 150,000.0000 150,000.0000 REYNOLDS AMERICAN INC 108.467000 162,700.50 102.79300 154,189.50 2,021.04 6,675.00
94974BGA2 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 WELLS FARGO & COMPANY 99.882000 199,764.00 100.78400 201,568.00 403.33 6,600.00
Accrued I 42,200.97
4,628,491.50 4,570,776.97 42,200.97 151,375.00
DOMESTIC LARGE CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
33939L860 18,975.0000 18,975.0000 FLEXSHARES QUAL DIV ETF 40.785097 773,897.21  44.80000 850,080.00 0.00
78462F103 17,350.0000 17,350.0000 SPDR S&P 500 ETF 142.479989 2,472,027.81 282.48000 4,901,028.00 0.00
3,245,925.02 5,751,108.00 0.00
DOMESTIC MID CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
464287507 14,825.0000 14,825.0000 ISHARES CORE S&P MIDCAP 400 ER2.979855 1,081,926.35 189.40000 2,807,855.00 0.00

€ee



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL
CITY OF KENAI PERMANENT FUNDS

March 31, 2019

Unit Total Market Accrued Annual
Cusip9 Original Face Quantity Security Cost Cost Price Value Interest Income
DOMESTIC SMALL CAP EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
464287804 16,875.0000 16,875.0000 ISHARES S&P SMALLCAP 600 INDBX282625 561,644.29 77.15000 1,301,906.25 0.00
INTERNATIONAL EQUITY FUNDS/ETF
464287465 21,950.0000 21,950.0000 ISHARES MSCI EAFE INDEX FUNDOCT.679900 1,353,873.81  64.86000 1,423,677.00 0.00
46432F842 23,400.0000 23,400.0000 ISHARES ETF CORE MSCIEAFE 51.544877 1,206,150.11  60.77000 1,422,018.00 0.00
2,560,023.92 2,845,695.00 0.00
EMERGING MARKET FUNDS/ETF
46434G103 28,025.0000 28,025.0000 ISHARES ETF CORE MSCI EMERGIAX®78450 1,179,248.56  51.71000 1,449,172.75 0.00
REAL ESTATE
46641Q738 17,275.0000 17,275.0000 JPMORGAN BETABUILDERS MSCIT8S54600 1,322,480.72  83.56700 1,443,619.92 0.00
U.S. TREASURY
9128283F5 190,000.0000 190,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 95.289063 181,049.22  98.93800 187,982.20 1,617.89 4,275.00
9128283W8 220,000.0000 220,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 98.738636 217,225.00 102.85200 226,274.40 752.07 6,050.00
9128284A5 350,000.0000 350,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.718751 349,015.63 101.44900 355,071.50 798.91 9,187.50
9128285M8 300,000.0000 300,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 102.380210 307,140.63 106.07400 318,222.00 3,548.00 9,375.00
9128286A3 110,000.0000 110,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.347655 110,382.42 101.92600 112,118.60 478.59 2,887.50
9128286B1 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.476565 200,953.13 101.83600 203,672.00 652.62 5,250.00
9128286D7 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.085940 200,171.88 100.38700 200,774.00 434.78 5,000.00
9128286F2 550,000.0000 550,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.753551 548,644.53 101.13700 556,253.50 1,195.65 13,750.00
912828D56 500,000.0000 500,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.226562 501,132.81 100.50400 502,520.00 1,476.17 11,875.00
912828F96 750,000.0000 750,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.588543 754,414.07  99.35900 745,192.50 6,304.95 15,000.00
912828R36 205,000.0000 205,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 93.930453 192,557.43  95.38700 195,543.35 1,260.72 3,331.25
912828827 150,000.0000 150,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 100.062500 150,093.75  97.56600 146,349.00 42421 1,687.50
912828U24 250,000.0000 250,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 95.257812 238,144.53  97.56600 243,915.00 1,892.27 5,000.00
912828U81 525,000.0000 525,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 101.310269 531,878.91  99.38300 521,760.75 2,653.85 10,500.00
912828VS6 300,000.0000 300,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 98.242279 294,726.84 101.07000 303,210.00 932.32 7,500.00
912828 WR7 375,000.0000 375,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.335939 372,509.77  99.67200 373,770.00 2,003.19 7,968.75
912828XG0 425,000.0000 425,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 97.121094 412,764.65  99.66000 423,555.00 2,270.29 9,031.25
912828XZ8 150,000.0000 150,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.707033 149,560.55 102.57800 153,867.00 1,036.95 4,125.00
Accrued I 29,733.43
5,712,365.75 5,799,784.23 29,733.43 131,793.75
AGENCIES
3130ACNX8 250,000.0000 250,000.0000 FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK - STE®.850000 249,625.00  98.73400 246,835.00 1,888.89 5,000.00
3130ADUEO 200,000.0000 200,000.0000 FHLB 99.790000 199,580.00 100.00500 200,010.00 241.67 7,250.00
3133EHGK3 300,000.0000 300,000.0000 FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 100.000000 300,000.00 100.00000 300,000.00 3,728.75 8,550.00
3134GBH21 250,000.0000 250,000.0000 FHLMC 99.730000 249,325.00  98.99400 247,485.00 23.61 4,250.00
Accrued I 5,882.92
998,530.00 1,000,212.92 5,882.92 25,050.00
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 22,876,024.60 28,555,306.16 77,886.56 309,049.66

1474



KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH - LAND TRUST

INVESTMENT FUND
Account Statement - Period Ending March 31, 2019

il ALASKA PERMANENT
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

Registered Investment Adviser

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY MANAGEMENT TEAM
Portfolio Value on 02-28-19 5,334,426 Client Relationship Manager: Amber Frizzell, AIF®
Amber@apcm.net
Contributions 0
Withdrawals 0 Your Portfolio Manager: Brandy Niclai, CFA®
Change in Market Value 10,311
Interest 4,489 Contact Phone Number: 907/272-7575
Dividends 0
Portfolio Value on 03-31-19 5,349,227

PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Current Account Benchmark:
FTSE 90 day t-bill

Percent Total Return (Gross)

S
Current Current Year to Latest 1 Inception
Month Quarter Date Year to Date
[® Portfolio 028 | 030 03 [ n~NA | 030
["Benchmark| 021 |  0.39 03 | NA [ 039

Performance is Annualized for Periods Greater than One Year

GE¢

Fixed Income Portfolio Statistics

Average Quality: AAA Yield to Maturity: 2.38% Average Maturity: 0.22 Yrs




Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH - LAND TRUST INVESTMENT FUND
March 31, 2019

Yield
Average Total Market Pct.  Annual Accrued to
Quantity Security Cost Average Cost Price Value Assets Income Interest Maturity
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
WEFB PUBLIC INST BANK DEPOSIT ACCOUNT 70,493 70,493 1.32
U.S. TREASURY
1,100,000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.57 1,095,316 99.69 1,096,568 20.50 13,750 3,456 2.49
1.250% Due 06-30-19
Accrued Interest 3,456 0.06
1,095,316 1,100,024  20.56 3,456
TREASURY BILLS
900,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.67 897,019 99.90 899,109 16.81 NA 0 2.24
0.000% Due 04-16-19
1,050,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.42 1,043,889 99.66 1,046,440 19.56 NA 0 2.32
0.000% Due 05-23-19
1,050,000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.23 1,041,967 99.47 1,044,487 19.53 NA 0 2.37
0.000% Due 06-20-19
1,200,000 US TREASURY BILLS 98.79 1,185,493 99.06 1,188,672 22.22 NA 0 2.40
0.000% Due 08-22-19
4,168,367 4,178,709  78.12 0
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 5,334,177 5,349,227 100 13,750 3,456

9¢¢



LEC

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

TRANSACTION SUMMARY

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH - LAND TRUST INVESTMENT FUND
From 03-01-19 To 03-31-19

Trade Settle Trade
Date Date Security Quantity Amount

DEPOSITS AND EXPENSES

MANAGEMENT FEES
03-31-19 03-31-19 MANAGEMENT FEES 668.65
668.65
INTEREST

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

03-01-19 03-01-19 WFB PUBLIC INST BANK 3311.51
DEPOSIT ACCOUNT

3,311.51



8¢¢

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.
REALIZED GAINS AND LOSSES

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH - LAND TRUST INVESTMENT FUND
From 03-01-19 Through 03-31-19

Avg. Cost
Date Quantity Security Basis Proceeds Gain Or Loss
TOTAL GAINS 0.00
TOTAL LOSSES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00



6€¢

Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

CASH LEDGER

KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH - LAND TRUST INVESTMENT FUND
From 03-01-19 To 03-31-19

Trade Settle Tran

Date Date Code Activity Security Amount
WEFB PUBLIC INST BANK DEPOSIT ACCOUNT
03-01-19 Beginning Balance 67,181.64
03-01-19 03-01-19 dp Interest WFB PUBLIC INST BANK 3,311.51
DEPOSIT ACCOUNT
03-31-19 Ending Balance 70,493.15



Alaska Permanent Capital Management Co.

PORTFOLIO APPRAISAL
KENAI PENINSULA BOROUGH - LAND TRUST INVESTMENT FUND

March 31, 2019

Unit Total Market Accrued Annual
Cusip9 Original Face Quantity Security Cost Cost Price Value Interest Income
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
WFBPIBDA6 WEB PUBLIC INST BANK DEPOSIT A 70,493.15 70,493.15 0.00
U.S. TREASURY
912828XV7 1,100,000.0000 1,100,000.0000 US TREASURY NOTES 99.574219 1,095,316.41  99.68800 1,096,568.00 3,456.49 13,750.00
Accrued 1 3,456.49
1,095,316.41 1,100,024.49 3,456.49 13,750.00
TREASURY BILLS
912796QHS5 1,050,000.0000 1,050,000.0000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.417976 1,043,888.75  99.66100 1,046,440.50 0.00 0.00
912796QM4 1,050,000.0000 1,050,000.0000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.234930 1,041,966.77  99.47500 1,044,487.50 0.00 0.00
912796SE0 1,200,000.0000 1,200,000.0000 US TREASURY BILLS 98.791083 1,185,493.00 99.05600 1,188,672.00 0.00 0.00
912796UX5 900,000.0000 900,000.0000 US TREASURY BILLS 99.668750 897,018.75 99.90100 899,109.00 0.00 0.00
4,168,367.27 4,178,709.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 5,334,176.83 5,349,226.64 3,456.49 13,750.00

ove



PURCHASE ORDERS BETWEEN $2,500.00 AND $15,000.00 FOR COUNCIL REVIEW
COUNCIL MEETING OF: MAY 15, 2019

VENDOR DESCRIPTION DEPT. ACCOUNT AMOUNT
REPAIR &
BEACON CHSS KTF FIRE TRAINER TRAINING FACILITY MAINTENANCE 13,235.31

YUKON EQUIPMENT

ALASKA LIBRARY NETWORK

CREATIVE PRODUCT SOURCING

AXON ENTERPRISES

ANNUAL ARFF CERTIFICATION

AK DIGITAL LIBRARY ANNUAL FEE

DARE SUPPLIES

BODY CAMERAS

SHOP

LIBRARY

POLICE

POLICE

REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 3,500.00

BOOKS 3,300.00
OPERATING SUPPLIES 8,004.38
SMALL TOOLS 4,794.00

241



2" Annual Disability Pride Event

The Kenai Peninsula will celebrate its 2" Disability Pride Celebration on Saturday, July 20, 2019 at the
Soldotna Creek Park from 12pm-4pm. This is a national event, which celebrates the signing of the
Americans with Disability Act. But it is particularly significant for our state, since we now have a Shared
Vision for Developmental Disabilities in Alaska, which was signed into law in August 2018. Celebrations
will occur across the state in Anchorage, Juneau, Kodiak and Fairbanks. We anticipate a strong turnout
for the event and are looking forward to seeing Senator Micciche on the giant, accessible slip and slide
again.

The day gives individuals with disabilities, and their families and friends, a chance to FULLY participate.
As a community it's important to empower our people. We are doing this through inclusion and pride.
This is a fully accessible and inclusive event in which all activities will be available to all individuals of any
ability. We encourage individuals from all over the Kenai Peninsula to participate. In the future, we
hope to expand and reach as many rural communities as possible.

The budget for this event is $3000.00. We achieve this goal by inviting state and local businesses to
participate. Proceeds will purchase the venue, t-shirts, self-advocacy, employer and community member
awards, food and activities. All sponsors will be listed on the back of the 2019 Disability Pride t-shirt.
Your donation is tax deductible and a public acknowledgement and thank you will be printed in the
Peninsula Clarion.

Disability Pride extends a warm invitation to you and your business to participate in this awesome
community event.

We hope to hear back from you by June 3, 2019. For more information, please contact Maggie Winston
at 907-740-0410 or Nikki Marcano 907-262-6351.

Donations can be mailed to the:

Independent Living Center: 47255 Princeton Ave #8; Soldotna, AK 99669
Thanks in advance for your support.

Maggie Winston

Disability Pride Coordinator

242



	City Council Agenda
	2018-959-CC - Ordinance No. 3063-2019.pdf
	2018-959-CC - Ordinance No. 3063-2019 Budget Amendments.pdf
	2018-960-CC - Ordinance No. 3064-2019.pdf
	2018-961-CC - Ordinance No. 3065-2019.pdf
	2018-962-CC - Resolution No. 2019-28.pdf
	2018-963-CC - Resolution No. 2019-29.pdf
	2018-964-CC - Resolution No. 2019-30.pdf
	2018-965-CC - Resolution No. 2019-31.pdf
	2018-966-CC - Resolution No. 2019-32.pdf
	2018-967-CC - Resolution No. 2019-33.pdf
	2018-968-CC - 05-01-19 Council Minutes - DRAFT.pdf
	2018-969-CC - Payments over $15,000.pdf
	2018-970-CC - Purchase Orders over $15,000.pdf
	2018-971-CC - Kenai Golf Course License No. 5788.pdf
	2018-972-CC - Ordinance No. 3066-2019.pdf
	2018-973-CC - Ordinance No. 3067-2019.pdf
	2018-974-CC - Ordinance No. 3068-2019.pdf
	2018-975-CC - Ordinance No. 3062-2019.pdf
	2018-975-CC - Ordinance No. 3062-2019 Memo Amendment - Roberts Rules.pdf
	2018-975-CC - Ordinance No. 3062-2019 Memo Amendment No. 2.pdf
	2018-976-CC - Application for Extension of Lease.pdf
	2018-977-CC - Lease Assignment to Don Moffis.pdf
	2018-982-CC - Land Sale and Leasing Policy Scheduling.pdf
	2018-990-CC - Mid-Month Reports.pdf
	2018-990-CC - Quarterly Financial Report.pdf
	2018-990-CC - Quarterly Investment Report.pdf
	2018-995-CC - PO's between $2,500 - $15,000.pdf
	2018-996-CC - Disability Pride Event.pdf



